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Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred
to as the “Group”) is the largest manufacturer and exporter
of longitudinal welded steel pipes and is engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). The Company has been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 1938) since February 2010. The Group’s steel pipes
are mainly used for energy transmission including oil and gas
transmission pipelines, deep sea pipelines, city gas networks,
and petrochemicals, mining, infrastructure construction, offshore
engineering, steel structures and water utilities industries.

The Group’s production bases and offices are located in Panyu,
Zhuhai, Lianyungang, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Yunfu and Indonesia,
with 5 production lines for longitudinal submerged arc-welded
(“LSAW"), 2 production lines for spiral submerged arc-welded
(“SSAW”") and other production lines with a combined annual
production capacity of 1,750,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2021.

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in research
and development, holding 105 patents (including 41 invention
patents) and 13 international certificates and having a long
standing international and nationwide track record. Furthermore,
the Group is the first and only steel pipe manufacturer in the
PRC to manufacture and successfully develop deep sea welded
steel pipes for use at a water depth of 3,500m and a qualified
supplier of Petrobras and Petronas. The Group is a welded steel
pipe manufacturer in the PRC that has received various honours
and awards, including “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of

”ow

Metallurgical Products”, “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality
of Metallurgical Products”, “National Key New Products”, “Province-
recognised Enterprise Technology Centre” and “High and New
Technology Enterprise”, hosted a “Academician Workstation” and
is the main drafter of the national standard for longitudinal welded

steel pipes in the PRC.
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC
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Guangzhou City
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KONG
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Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TR/ES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
would like to present to you the consolidated audited annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Despite the continuing outbreak of COVID-19 in 2021, the global
economy grew by 5.5% in 2021 compared with that of last year,
and China’s economy grew by 8.1% compared with that of last
year, which led to the improvement in unemployment rates
with continuous increase in prices of crude oil and natural gas.
The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB1,813.4
million (2020: RMB1,141.8 million), representing an increase of
approximately 58.8% compared with that of 2020. The Group
recorded a loss of approximately RMB94.4 million (2020: profit of
RMB622.9 million). Loss per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders was approximately RMB0.09 (2020: earnings per share
was RMBO0.62). The Board did not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In 2021, under the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group delivered a
total of 458,000 tons of steel pipes and received orders for a
total of 390,000 tons of steel pipes, including, among others,
projects of three large oil companies, the Huangzeshan-Yushan
Crude Oil Submarine Pipeline Project, Yuanba-Deyang Natural
Gas Transmission Pipeline Project, and Huizhou LNG Receiving
Terminal External Transmission Pipeline Project.

During the year, the Group successfully delivered the 45-meter-
long piling pipes for an offshore pipeline rack project in the
Philippines, which is located in the eastern part of Batangas Bay,
Batangas City, Philippines, to construct a LNG terminal at the
Batangas Port. The terminal will be the main channel for LNG
imports in Luzon Island. The Group undertook the production of
15 pallet jacket structures and pallet top platforms with a total of
14,000 tons, which included 140 piling pipes for the terminal with
a single length of 45 meters, highlighting the strong technology
capability of the Group.

The terminal for Zhuhai Base is located in Gaolan Port, Zhuhai,
and the Group had been approved to upgrade the berthing
standard from the original 5,000-ton berth to a 20,000-ton berth
during the year, which, together with two 150-ton gantry cranes
in Zhuhai, has a total lifting capacity of 300 tons, making it the
strongest gantry crane combination in Zhuhai. This marked a
development direction of manufacturing larger and heavier steel
pipes for Zhuhai Base of Chu Kong Steel Pipe, and also provided a
strong guarantee to the Group to take part in new energy, offshore
wind power and other key development projects in the 14th Five-
Year Plan, thus expanding the market share in the future.

In December 2021, the Group announced the sale of the land
held by Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Lianyungang) Co Ltd.
(“PCKSP (Lianyungang)”) to the government at a consideration of
RMB102.1 million. The undeveloped land with a total site area of
approximately 1,400,000 sqg.m. is situated at North of Zhongtong
Road and East of 226 Sheng Road, Xuwei New Area, Lianyungang
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (BT & B @ EB MR T HE
2264 ER K FiBiEdL) . The sale of the land will not have any
material impact on the business and operations of the Group and
can also generate cash flow for the Group, so as to save cost of
idled land and enhance the utilization of the assets.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ITRHRES

PROSPECT

In the face of the ongoing COVID-19 epidemic, supply chain
shortages, rising raw material costs, rising inflation and tensions
in Ukraine, it is expected that there will be fluctuation of prices of
crude oil and natural gas in 2022, however, China will continue to
promote the development of the natural gas industry. In China, the
construction of oil and gas pipeline facilities will be accelerated
during the 14th Five-Year Plan period. In addition, in order to
implement the “dual carbon” policy, natural gas has been a key
clean energy for carbon emission reduction, but the construction
of natural gas pipelines still has fallen short of the goals as set
out in the Medium and Long-Term Oil and Gas Pipeline Network
Plan ( (P EEHEREMIRE]) ), and the next five years will still
be a peak period for pipeline construction. As such, the Group will
continue to benefit from the increase in demand for pipelines.

With unremitting efforts, the Group is very confident that, it will
overcome any hardships, adjust its strategic direction, build up
its strength and lay a solid foundation to guard the Group with
fearless spirit, as well as improve and strengthen its technologies,
actively expand new product areas, and expand its product range
from originally only supplying oil and gas transmission pipeline to
offering steel pipes for infrastructure and high-end construction
projects such as bridges, wind power generation, offshore
platforms and water pipes so as to meet the diversified demands
of domestic and foreign markets for high-performance steel pipe
products, and expand product use and increase its market share.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all our staff for
performing their tasks diligently in such a challenging year. | am
also grateful to our shareholders for their continuous support to
the Group during this consolidation stage where it is accumulating
strength for a prosperous future.

Chen Chang
Chairman

Panyu, Guangdong, China
29 April 2022
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
RIPHERAE

1996

RREBEHNER
(RRELHAEEE)
Guangdong Province
Outstanding New Product*
(The Economic Commission

of Guangdong Province*)

GPEC

2002 st

)
EREEEEE
(BERIETHREER)
Guangdong Province
Famous Trademark*
(Guangdong Province
Bureau for Administration of
industry and Commerce*)

2005 (Renewed in
2011/2012/2015 4% )
AEERBYEER
SRE (BREE)
(FERSE T X))

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* - ERW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

1997

AEERBYWEESFR
(PEDAET¥E)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products*

(Ministry of Metallurgical
Industries of the PRC*)

2004
B A B
2004 F i

(PEAANARILIREIENGS)
China Reserved Petroleum
Pipeline Manufacturing Industry -
Top Ten Enterprises in 2004*
(China Petroleum and Petro-chemical
Equi Industry A iation*)

2006

2005 FEREHEEEE
SR
(EREEBRMEER )

Leader in Quality Management
in Guangdong Province in 2005*
(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2001

BRI XRERE
(BENTNREMEER )

Certificate for the Recognition

of High and New Technology
Enterprises*

(Guangzhou City Science and Technology
Committee*)

2005 St 015 )
REERBYEE
SREE (EAETUEE )

(FESRS T X )

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* - LSAW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2007

BRI EIEE
(PEIRLBERME)
China Torch Item*
(Science and Technology
Department of the PRC*)
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2007 Sosas )
EREBMEER

(EREEBREWEER)
Guangdong Province Top
Brand Product*

(Guangdong Province Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

2008

BREFAREE SR
BRETERRE
(TERABE)

International Exhibition of Inventions

Golden Awards* (Three-roller forming
technology and equif t*)
(China Inventions Association*)

2009

EREFESE

—ZERAETERRE
(EREASEREREAORERER )
Guangdong Province Patent Excellence
Award*

(Three-roller forming technology and
equipment)

(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Personnel &
Intellectual Property Office of Guangdong Province*)

AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

2007

2007 FERMEAFCERES
RlER
(EREAGCEBESERERDEANLC
BETEER)

Best Original Product of Innovative
Record for Guangdong Enterprise
in 2007*

(Association of Enterprise in Guangdong
Province & The Innovative Record

of Guangdong Enterprise Approval
Commission*)

2008 (Renewed in

2011/2014 4% )

[CEiE Y

(RREPBEIME - MREMBE - RREERB
BRE ERERARER )

Guangdong High and New Technology Enterprise*
(Department of Science and Technology of Guangdong
Province*, Guangdong Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Municipal Office of the State Administration

s 27 27
HETH EH 3R 58

N Az

2007

EMTREGES — S5
(M ARBT)

First Prize for Sci-Tech
Achievement in Guangzhou
City*

(The People’s Government of
Guangzhou City*)

200 (Renewed in 2013

2013 7%)
EREENRMER
( BERE R M )
High-tech Product of Guangdong
Province*
(Department of Science and Technology of

of Taxation*, and Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation
Bureau*)

20 I (Renewed in 2013

2013 4)
BRA B E
BB
(B RPHEEHISER BN EB/ B M AR B )
Key High and New Technology Enterprise of
China Torch Item*
(Torch High-tech Industry Development Centre of
Science and Technology Department of the PRC*)

dong Province*)

2010

B RABELER M0
(ERBREEE - D - MRS - BEHAE -

ERBBHER )
National-recognised Enterprise

Technology Centre*
(National Development and Reform Commission*,

Science and Technology Department*, Finance
Department*, General Administration of Customs*,
State Administration of Taxation*)

BIRAMARRMEZRERAF



AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
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2010 2010 2010

EthEzEEH EREANBRI—E8R BEREBTRAFER

REGRE SEDEEXNE (BREARER) (REANSELAM FRERRAAEERS
WREE First Prize for Sci-tech of ERACHENEE (L ERE - ERAYIE -
(REXAEE) Guangdong Province* EREMHERR - EREERR WEER)
1st Runner-up of The 19th (The People’s Government of

Indigenous Innovation Product of

National Invention Exhibition* Guangdong Province*) Guangdong Province*

Dual-drive push-press type steel
pipe expanding device*
(Invention Association of China*)

2010

ERE TREMPE L
(ERENBHIME REREPRAKEZES -
ERAKBEAZRER)
Technology Research and Development
Centre of Guangdong Province*
(Department of Science and Technology of

d Province*, Devel and Reform

[ ission of Province*, ic and
Trade Commission of Guangdong Province*)

2011

EREMREREREEE
(ERENBERER )
Intellectual Property
Demonstration Enterprise of
Guangdong Province*
(Intellectual Property Department
of Guangdong Province*)

Department of Science and Technology of Guangdong Province®,
Reform issi Province*,

ic and Infor ion of Province*,
Finance Department of Guangdong Province®, Intellectual
Property Province®
of ity upervision of Province*]

2010

EMT AR SR
(EMNTRHRETEE A )
Innovative Enterprise of
Guangzhou*

(Technology and City

Steering Committee of Guangzhou*)

2011

E-t+EZERS
RESEE  HHE

IR IRIERE

(RERBHE)

1st Runner-up of The 20th National
Invention Exhibition*
Five-electrode submerged arc
welding equipment

(Invention Association of China*)

2011

ERETEEEmE
(ERECEBEE  ERELHE
R )

Top 10 Original Brands of
Guangdong Province*
(Association of Enterprises of
Guangdong Province*, Association
of Entrepreneurs of Guangdong
Province*)

CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2011

BR+ TSk
(BEREARBA)
Academician Workstation
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
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2011

BN BT E 5%
(EREARBUT)
Governmental Quality
Award of The Guangzhou
Government*

(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2013-2016

BERERAIF B
(EREPBLEIE  EREABEN
BEZE®  WREACENELES
g EREARBAEREEEEE
BEZEE® RREDHEMR - mR
HBTE)

Innovative Enterprise of
Guangdong

Province*

(The Guangdong Provincial Department
of Science and Technology, the
Guangdong Development and

Reform Commission, the Economic &
Information Commission of Guangdong
Province, the State - owned Assets
Supervision and Administration
Commission of the Guangdong
Province, the Guangdong Intellectual
Property Office and the Guangdong
Provincial Federation of Trade
Unions*)

2012

EREBFEER

(BREARBA)
Government Quality Award of

Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of

Guangdong Province*)

FEASEREYEER
BEEER
(FEME T NS )
Superior Quality Award
for Actual Quality of

Metallurgical Product
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2012
BENBHER—ER
g@ﬁ&:ﬁm=~¢m@u$

First Prize of Metallurgical
Sci-Tech Award*

(China Iron & Steel Association,
The Chinese Society for Metals)

2014

EREEAEETRHAR
A

(BEREEAHE)

Model Experimenting Enterprise
for Credit Management of
Guangdong Province

(Guangdong Credit Association)

2016

BEERENRESNE-

BRE (RE)
(FEME TG )
Gold Cup Prize for Actual

Quality of Metallurgical
Products*-welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

2016

BEERBENRESTE-
BEHEIRE

(FEIRE T X))

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products*-spiral submerged

arc-welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

ERE R BT
(EREARBA)

Science Technological Award
of Guangdong Province*

(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2015

R e piar S

( BERERHBETNE - PR E WBUE -
EREERBER  EREBFHER)
High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Province*,

Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Municipal Office of the State

-ation of Taxation*,

Provincial Local Taxation Bureau*)

2016
WA S — %%
(RARARSAE)
(BEREARBA)

First Prize of Sci-Tech
Achievement

(Deep Sea Pipe for Natural Gas)
(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province)

BIRMARRMEZRERDA
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
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2016 2016

2017

BREHEEM O

(EREACENEMESE &
REME - RREBHBBER -
RREERBBR - BHEER

BEREABLIRANERE Y DSEFHEEA % 20" 7 ROE)
(BEREADE RN ERERE ) (FEEDBAAATEAMELE - Provincial Enterprise
Guangdong Postdoctoral WRERATECRTGE ) BEERTRBRMESR Technology Centre*
Innovation Practice Base* Saudi Arabia Excellent —y ( Provincial
(Department of Human Resources Chinese Project Award* (EEEHARKA) and Information Commission*,
and S'o:ial Security of Guangdong (Chinese Embassy in Kingdom First Prize of Lianyungang Guangdong Provincial Department
Province*) of Saudi Arabia*, Saudi Arabia Science and Technology of Finance, Local Taxation
Chinese Enterprises Association*) Progress Award* Bureau of Guangdong Province*,
(The People’s Government of Guangdong Branch of the General
Lianyungang) Administration of Customs*)

2018
i 2019 2019

(FERENBRME - EREMK ERAHRYEEED DR EREMRERTRELCE

B - ERBBRREREBER ) (BRABEER) (ERABERRENHE)

High Technology National Intellectual Property Guangdong Province Intellectual

Enterprises* _ Advantage Enterprise* Property Demonstration

(Department of Science and (National Intellectual Property Enterprise*

Technology of Guangdong Bureau*) (Guangdong Intellectual Property 2020

Province*, Guangdong Province Protection Association*)

Department of Finance*, SE o ag
Guangdong Provincial Taxation i§§$§f§ﬂz§§;&
Bureau of the State Administration BRF) B B

of Taxation) Lianyungang Science and

Technology Innovation
Outstanding Umt*
(Lianyungang C

of the Communist Party of China*,
The People’s Government of
Lianyungang*)

2021 2021 2022

BABETFLXE BRTFEREREADE 2019-2020 FE SHEFEIHAHE

(BBTHRHRAIHR ) CIHALXEAEEHS) (BETLEERERETFASMBLE REQCBAKIHRERE

Unicorn Seed Enterprise* Provincial Contract-Abiding and BRETFAEEPMMBAE) )

(Zhuhai Science and Technology Credit-Worthy Enterprise 2019-2020* Outstanding Enterprise of the Year in Jinwan District*

Innovation Bureau*) (Jiangsu Enterprise Credit Management ( Office of the Leading Group for the Work of Jinwan District, Zhuhai
Association*) City(Zhuhai E: ic and Technological Devel Zone Strong Quality

District Work Leading Group Office)* )
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LITY CERTIFICATIONS

TEENEERERAES

UTEREERE:
42 Year & Certifications
1996 1SO9001
1996 API
1999 CE
2002 BV
1SO9001 1SO14001
2004 OHSAS18001
2006 DNV
2009 Shell
2011 CNAS
2011 ASME
2012 CMS
2014 TUV
2017 Saudi Aramco
2019 TOTAL

TR FFEWRS

The Group has been awarded the following international
quality certifications:

REHEE Authority

7B ML R B Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
EB A H % E American Petroleum Institute

FEE 4 KM 404t Lloyd's Register of Shipping

7= BIME A *t Bureau Veritas

&7 ML R B Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
R EE &R & F L China Quality Certification Centre
B L M 4% #E Det Norske Veritas

B8 % % Shell Global Solutions

PEA KT EE KA ZEE € China National Accreditation Service for

Conformity Assessment

3 B T2 AD Tﬁz’;@ American Society of Mechanical Engineers

AR R ET €182 32 B 0 China CMS (Issuing Authority)
2 E L% E TUV SUD China

b 5 B 35 7 5 /A &) Saudi Arabian Oil Company
EBAHAREER TOTAL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group mainly (i) manufactures and sells longitudinal welded
steel pipes, as well as provides manufacturing service for
processing raw materials into steel pipes; and (ii) engages in
property development and investment.

Our welded steel pipe products can be broadly categorised into
LSAW steel pipes, SSAW steel pipes and ERW steel pipes. We
are the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and exporter in the
PRC, and are capable of producing LSAW steel pipes that meet
the X100 standard. We are also accredited with 13 international
quality certifications such as Det Norske Veritas (“DNV”) and
American Petroleum Institute (“API”). In addition, we are the first
and the only PRC manufacturer that has successfully produced
and developed deep sea welded pipes for use at 3,500m under
water. Our products are widely applicable to major oil and gas
pipeline projects (both onshore and offshore) and infrastructure
projects domestically and internationally.

Our Group is capable of manufacturing subsea pipes and drilling
platforms for offshore projects, and is being classified as a member
of the Offshore Engineering Equipment Industry* (/& ¥ T2 4 5l
mE) .

Panyu Land Development

In 2013, the Group has converted a piece of land in Panyu
into commercial use. The total land area of such piece of land
is 125,000m? which accounted for 25% of the total area of the
parcels of land owned by the Group in Panyu (the “Panyu Land”).
The total construction area of the Panyu Land is 550,000m2. The
Panyu Land was divided into three phases for development.

16 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

Project name:
Golden Dragon City Fortune Plaza* (*GDC")

Address: Qinghe Road, Shiji Town, Panyu District, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong, PRC

Usage: large-scale integrated commercial complex of offices, shops,
service apartments and villas

Total permitted construction area (including underground
construction area)

Phase | 135,000 m?
Phase Il 191,000 m?
Phase Il 224,000 m?

Most of the units under Phase | of GDC have been sold. The
Group had pre-sold the units under Phase Il of GDC and the total
contracted sales were approximately RMB1,062 million as at 31
December 2021. Shops of Phase | are leased for rental income.
Such rental income was reflected as revenue under property
development and investment sector. Phase Ill of GDC was sold to
Guangzhou City Panyu District Land Development Centre* (&M
HBRITMFED L) in 2019.

The steel pipe business will remain as the Group’s core business.

Proposed change of land use in Panyu from “industrial”
to “residential and commercial”

On 12 February 2018, the Group has entered into an agreement
(“Agreement”) with Guangdong Yuecai Trust Co Limited* (/&
REBEB{EFLBMR L F) (“*Guangdong Yuecai”) and Guangzhou
Asset Management Company Limited* (BN EEEEBR A F)
(“Guangzhou Asset Management”) (collectively the “Investors”) in
relation to the cooperation to facilitate the change of use of land
(the “Land”) held by Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co. Ltd (& &%
ST E B BR AR (“PCKSP”) from “industrial” to “residential and
commercial” and the disposal of (actual and deemed) an aggregate
of 59% of the equity interest in PCKSP to the Investors. Chu Kong
Steel Pipe Group Co. Ltd (“CKSPG”) and PCKSP shall complete
an asset reorganisation, after which, the only asset held by PCKSP
shall be the Land. Pursuant to the Agreement, Guangdong Yuecai
shall, by stages, (i) inject capital into PCKSP and acquire 19% of
the equity interest in the PCKSP for RMB240 million; (ii) implement
the asset reorganisation; (iii) apply for the change of use of the
Land; and (iv) acquire 40% of the equity interest in PCKSP from
CKSPG for a consideration equivalent to 40% of the fair value of
the Land (after the change of use of the Land).

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purpose only

TR FFEWRS

HEAM:
SEAMERS ([EEHA])

it FEERE BN E SR A EES TR

A% 252 B BREXABNHENAREERERE

XA

AAREAEEE (BFL TRERE)

135,000 77 K

191,000F 75 3K
224,000F 75 K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

The disposal of 59% equity interest of PCKSP was approved
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 19 April 2018.

The capital injection under the Agreement has been completed on
12 October 2018. Guangdong Yuecai has made capital injection
into PCKSP in the amount of RMB240 million and acquired 19% of
the registered capital of PCKSP (on enlarged basis). Following the
completion of the capital injection, PCKSP was legally held as to
20% by Guangdong Yuecai and 80% by CKSPG.

On 27 February 2019, the Group entered into a disposal agreement
(the “Disposal Agreement”) with Guangzhou Xingchen Consultation
Company Limited (EME R#F#@ER X F) (“Xingchen”),
Guangdong Yuecai and Guangzhou Asset Management in relation
to (i) the nomination of Xingchen by the Guangzhou Asset
Management under the terms of the Agreement as its nominee to
acquire 40% equity interest of PCKSP; and (ii) the disposal of the
remaining 40% equity interest of PCKSP to Xingchen, for a total
consideration of RMB2,448 million with a possible payment of the
premium of RMB272 million.

Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27
February 2019 and circular dated 26 March 2019.

The transactions contemplated under the Disposal Agreement were
approved by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 16 April 2019.

On 15 June 2020, the Group entered into supplemental
agreements (the “Supplemental Agreements”) to provide a
framework for the unwinding of the Agreement dated 12 February
2018 and the Disposal Agreement dated 27 February 2019.

On 15 September 2020, the Group entered into the land
resumption compensation agreement (the “Land Resumption
Compensation Agreement”) with Guangzhou City Land
Development Centre* (“Guangzhou LDC”), pursuant to which
Guangzhou LDC would resume, and the Group would sell the
Land at the compensation of RMB3,453.4 million (subject to
an early completion bonus payment of RMB690.7 million). The
land resumption contemplated under the Land Resumption
Compensation Agreement was approved by the Shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
October 2020. The Land Resumption was completed as at the date
of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

Order Status

In 2021, the Group received new orders of approximately 389,000
tonnes of welded steel pipes and most orders were received from
domestic customers. The Group has received some sizeable
orders like orders from Huizhou LNG Receiving Station External
Pipeline Project and Huangzeshan-Yushan Crude Oil Subsea
Pipeline Project. The Group delivered approximately 458,000
tonnes of welded steel pipes during 2021.

LSAW Steel Pipes

The Group is one of the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturers
and exporters in the PRC. Sales and manufacturing of LSAW steel
pipe was the largest source of revenue of the Group and accounted
for approximately 83.8% of our total steel pipe revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2021. For the year ended 31 December
2021, revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of LSAW
steel pipes amounted to approximately RMB1,351.0 million and
RMB158.6 million, respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 106.2% and 4.1%, respectively, as compared to that
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase in sales of
LSAW steel pipes was mainly due to major oil and gas projects as
well as construction projects in the PRC and overseas have been
recovered during the year.

SSAW Steel Pipes

Our SSAW steel pipes produced in our plant in Lianyungang using
the pre-welding and precision welding SSAW technique, which
is the most advanced standard among all SSAW technologies.
Revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of SSAW steel
pipes amounted to approximately RMB129.4 million and RMB90.6
million respectively. The total revenue from SSAW steel pipes
accounted for approximately 12.2% of the total steel pipe revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing a decrease
of approximately 13.2% as compared to that for the year ended
31 December 2020. The decrease in sales of SSAW steel pipes
was mainly due to the decrease in construction projects during the
year.

TR FFEWRS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW 5t 7 [0 R
Revenue and gross profit KA R EF
Revenue of the Group mainly comprises (i) sales of steel pipe, and REBBAEZZREG)HEHE L) WEHEE-

(ii) sales of property.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our revenue was REBEEZFTZ_—F+A=+—HLFE AEEK
approximately RMB1,813.4 million, representing an increase of A4 B AR #1,813,400,0007T 8 =T = T F N4
approximately RMB671.6 million or 58.8% as compared with that of AR #671,600,0007T 558.8% ° W A G N FE Z B AR
2020. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in SEEWHBANIETESE M- AR EREINGEER
both domestic and overseas orders received by the Group. Major HERKARIBE AREEBBE YD IRIE-

oil and gas projects as well as construction projects in the PRC

and overseas have been recovered.

The following table sets forth the revenue, gross profit and sales TREIFARSEEEBR D BAWA - EFREES

volume by business segments for each of the periods indicated:

2021 2020

—B--F —ZE-F
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
A A EAEHA
ARE TR BAH ARETFT Bt

Revenue L'ON

Steel pipes WE 1,802,568 99.4 1,125,851 98.6
Property development and investment MEZERREE 10,802 0.6 15,956 1.4
1,813,370 100.0 1,141,807 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED AT

Steel pipes i E
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-%
Revenue Revenue
A L'ON
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
1A KA AEHA
AE¥ETFT B#lt ARETFT Bk
Sales of steel pipes HERE
LSAW steel pipes HEEEEE 1,351,040 75.0 655,108 58.2
SSAW steel pipes RHEIR IR E 129,359 7.2 121,354 10.8
Subtotal NET 1,480,399 82.2 776,462 69.0
Manufacturing services IE AR5
LSAW steel pipes HEBIEE 158,640 8.8 152,322 13.5
SSAW steel pipes e R lEE 90,617 5.0 131,981 11.7
Subtotal INEE 249,257 13.8 284,303 25.2
Others Hh 72,912 4.0 65,086 5.8
Grand total Bt 1,802,568 100.0 1,125,851 100.0
Steel pipes o &
2021 2020
—EB=-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFr
Sales HE 1,802,568 1,125,851
Cost of sales k=D (1,608,617) (921,216)
Gross profit E 5 193,951 204,635
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

The revenue generated from the sales of steel pipes accounted
for approximately 82.2% of our total steel pipe revenue in 2021
as compared with approximately 69.0% in 2020. Steel pipe
manufacturing services accounted for approximately 13.8% of our
total steel pipe revenue in 2021 as compared with approximately
25.2% in 2020. The revenue classified as “Others” mainly
represented the trading of steel plates, sales of steel fittings
and sales of scrap materials which accounted for approximately
4.0% of our total steel pipe revenue in 2021 as compared with
approximately 5.8% in 2020.

Gross profit of steel pipe sales for 2021 was approximately
RMB194.0 million as compared with approximately RMB204.6
million in 2020, representing a decrease of approximately 5.2% or
RMB10.7 million. Gross profit margin for 2021 was approximately
10.8% which was lower than that of 18.2% in 2020. The decrease
in gross profit was due to the drop in gross profit margin. Overseas
sales increased significantly during the year which led to increase
in freight charges. Decrease in gross profit margin was due
to increase in freight charges in relation to overseas sales. In
addition, overseas sales were denominated in USD while costs
were denominated in RMB. Appreciation of RMB against USD
during the year further dragged down the gross profit margin.

Our domestic sales accounted for approximately 53.0% of our total
steel pipe revenue in 2021, as compared with approximately 88.7%
in 2020.

Sales by Geographical Areas — Steel Pipes

Overseas sales BINEE
Domestic sales WEHE

Total steel pipes and HE REE R G

manufacturing services
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BHES s NWHEE-WE

2021 2020
“E--F —ECEF
Revenue Revenue
WA WA

RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
1A KA A A

ARE TR BAlE AREFT B
848,065 47.0 127,699 11.3
954,503 53.0 998,152 88.7
1,802,568 100.0 1,125,851 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Property development and investment MEBRRRRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR®TFT
Revenue WA 10,802 15,956
Cost of sales SHE R A (9,237) (13,904)
Gross profit EF 1,565 2,052

Revenue under property development and investment mainly
comprises sales of property of GDC and rental income from
shops in Phase | of GDC. Revenue under property development
and investment was approximately RMB10.8 million in 2021
as compared with approximately RMB16.0 million in 2020,
representing a decrease of approximately 32.3% or RMB5.2
million. Most of the units under Phase | of GDC had been sold in
2018 and 2019.

Cost of sales primarily represents the costs we incurred directly
for the Group’s property development activities. The principal
component of cost of sales is cost of properties sold, which
includes the direct costs of construction and the costs of obtaining
land use rights. Cost of sales was approximately RMB9.2 million
in 2021 as compared with approximately RMB13.9 million in 2020,
representing a decrease of 33.6% or RMB4.7 million.

Gross profit of property sales was approximately RMB1.6 million
in 2021 as compared with approximately RMB2.1 million in 2020,

representing a decrease of 23.7% or RMBO0.5 million.

All revenue under property development and investment was
domestic in nature.

TR FFEWRS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

CHANGE IN FAIR VALUES OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group has adopted the accounting policy of measuring
investment properties by using fair values. Accordingly, gains or
losses arising from the changes in the fair values of investment
properties are reflected as profit or loss for 2021. The investment
properties as at 31 December 2021 were the shops of Phase
| of GDC. The Group has engaged RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent valuer, to value the investment properties as at
31 December 2021. According to the valuation report as at 31
December 2021 issued by RHL Appraisal Limited, the market value
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2021 was RMB370
million. Loss in fair values of the investment properties in 2021
was approximately RMB17 million (2020: loss of RMB20 million).

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains in 2021 mainly represented gain on
resumption of land use rights, bank interest income and subsidy
income from government. Other income and gains decreased by
approximately 17.3% or RMB330.5 million from approximately
RMB1,911.3 million in 2020 to approximately RMB1,580.8 million in
2021. Other income and gains was mainly net gain on resumption
of land-use-rights from local authority in 2021 pursuant to the land
resumption agreement dated 15 September 2020, details of which
were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 8 October
2020.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
52.0% or RMB18.1 million from approximately RMB34.8 million in
2020 to approximately RMB52.9 million in 2021. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in sales during the year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 8.3% or
RMB24.0 million from approximately RMB287.6 million in 2020
to approximately RMB263.6 million in 2021. The decrease in
administrative expenses was mainly due to decrease in office
expenses during the year.

24 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

REWNELFELSD

REBOHEBSTHE WA FEFEREDE-H
I REMELATFTEEHEAZRE BER S =—
FREABEZ R_T-_—F+-A=+—HHEKE
MERSENE-—BHOEHE - AREEZTRE LHAE
B FITTRIEBERERAR AR - =_—FT=-A
=T —HMEEWEETHE BB KFITHEBERM
BB A _;_—¢+ A=+t—HHANEER
HEIREMER Z—H+-A=t+—HHMWEA
AE%NO%O%WEFfiffﬁ KEWMEDR
FEREEL A AREK17,000,000t (ZE-ZFF : 518
AR #20,000,0007T) °

EMWA&W%

T —FHHEMBARKSEZEIMEAEZK
FﬁuﬂzﬂiﬁﬁﬂEuﬁz)\&ﬁﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬂﬁz)\oﬁwﬂz/\&
WamBA — T T FHARML911,300,0007T ik 2 4
17.3% sk A R#330,500,000ZE - = —FHARE
1,580,800,000 e H M A R F B AR T = —
FREAHA-ZZE-_EFNA TR I EmMHE
BEEM T ERWF L ERARRELNF G F
BHEBEEARABRAZZS_ZSF+ANBHNAER
R o

HERDHBEX
HERDHEATH-_FTZTFLHARME34,800,0007T -
8 HN0#952.0% st A R #18,100,00000 &2 — T~ —F
# AR ¥52,900,000T - ZE MDD EZHNFRIEE
e

THEHA

TRBRABA T _TF4 AR¥287,600,0007T 7
5783%&)\&%2400000075 EZT—FOAR
#263,600,0007C TR ER B EHRFARLEE
R o

Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs for 2021 was approximately RMB144.3 million
as compared with that of 2020 of approximately RMB475.4 million,
representing a decrease of RMB331.1 million or 69.7%. The
effective interest rate in 2021 was approximately 8.0% (2020:
10.2%). Decrease in finance costs was due to decrease in average
loan balance during the year.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses increased by approximately 25.0% or RMB75.3
million from approximately RMB300.7 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB376.0 million in 2021. The increase was mainly
due to loss on disposal of land in Lianyungang during the year.

EXCHANGE LOSS, NET

The Group recorded exchange loss of approximately RMB33.5
million in 2021 as compared with exchange loss of approximately
RMB120.1 million in 2020. The exchange loss was mainly due to
depreciation of HKD against RMB. Payables to inter-companies
denominated in HKD held by the Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries
that led to unrealised exchange losses of approximately RMB33.3
million (2020: unrealised exchange loss RMB120.4 million).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group recorded income tax expense of RMB371.6 million in
2021 as compared with income tax expense of RMB253.8 million
in 2020.

Income tax expense in 2021 was mainly because the Group sold
the land in Panyu during the year and there was tax provision on
the gain on resumption of land use right.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the reasons discussed above, the Group recorded
a loss of approximately RMB94.4 million in 2021 (2020: profit of
RMB622.9 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The following table sets out certain information regarding the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended

RBEERMBEIR
TERBIEBAEERE_S_SFER_T_—F
ToASH-ALFENGARSRERNETER

31 December 2020 and 2021:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-HLEE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBEFT

Net cash (used in)/flows from operating KT (MA) /FEReREFE
activities (904,628) 71,365
Net cash flows from investing activities KREEZHAFRERNEFE 2,561,963 1,661,998
Net cash flows used in financing activites Bl & /ZFEFTAB S REFH (1,709,156) (1,785,138)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents & &kReSEEWR L FHR (51,821) (51,775)

NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash inflows from operating activities of
approximately RMB71.4 million in 2020 changed to net cash
outflows of approximately RMB904.6 million in 2021. The change
of net cash flows from operating activities were primarily due
to the combined effect of (i) profit before taxation; (ii) increase
in inventories, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, pledged bank deposit, prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, trade payables and, contract
liabilities and (iii) decrease in trade receivables, and other
payables and accruals.

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows from investing activities increased
from approximately RMB1,662.0 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB2,562.0 million in 2021. The increase in net cash flows were
mainly due to increase in net receipt of compensation for land
resumption of land of Panyu in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows used in financing activities decreased
from approximately RMB1,785.1 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB1,709.2 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly resulted
from the combined effect of (i) increase in amounts due to a
director, the issue of new bonds and the borrowing of new interest-
bearing loans and other borrowings of approximately RMB2,435.4
million and (ii) the repayment of bank loans, other borrowings, and
principal portion of payment of lease and payment of interest of
approximately RMB4,144.5 million.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in Renminbi except for export sales and
overseas borrowings which are mostly denominated in US dollar
and HK dollar. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi. Although the Group may be exposed to
foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect that
future currency fluctuations would materially impact the Group’s
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies nor
instruments of foreign currency for managing the exchange risk
exposure during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group invested
approximately RMB52.0 million for the upgrading of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets. These capital expenditures
were fully financed by internal resources.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group guaranteed RMB73.7 million
(2020: RMB99.5 million) to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties for mortgage facilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group guaranteed RMB514.1
million (2020: RMB512.5 million) to a joint venture company for
banking facilities in Saudi Arabia of which RMB514.1 million (2020:
RMB416.6 million) was utilised by the joint venture company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged the following assets with an aggregate net
book value to secure bank loans granted to the Group as at
31 December 2021:

(i) certain plant and machinery of approximately RMB567.9
million (2020: RMB1,198.0 million);

(i) certain leasehold lands of approximately RMB501.9 million
(2020: RMB816.2 million);

(iii) certain deposits of approximately RMB nil (2020: RMB2,000);

(iv) certain properties under development of approximately
RMB1,086.1 million (2020: RMB1,264.7 million);

(v) completed properties held for sale of approximately RMB93.8
million (2020: RMB102.6 million);

(vi) trade receivables of approximately RMB nil (2020: RMB2.6
million); and

(vii) prepayments and other receivables of approximately RMB nil
(2020: RMB115.7 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated based on the sum of bank
loans, other borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes divided
by total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were approximately 22.9% and 43.3%, respectively.
Decrease in gearing ratio in 2021 as compared with that of 2020
was due to the Group’s repayment of borrowings during the year.

On 27 April 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with an investment
fund, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue, and the
investment fund agreed to subscribe for HK$140,000,000 12%
bonds due in April 2022 (the “Bonds”). Mr. Chen Chang (“Mr.
Chen”), an executive director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company, undertakes and covenants that for so long as any of the
Bonds remain outstanding, he shall remain as (i) the single largest
direct or indirect shareholder of the Company; and (ii) the chairman
of the Board and executive Director (the “Specific Performance
Obligations”). Any breach of the Specific Performance Obligations
may constitute an event of default under the Bonds, pursuant to
which the bondholder is entitled to redeem the Bonds immediately
upon the occurrence of the breach in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Bonds.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB1,810.2 million, of which approximately 46%
(2020: 40%) were long term borrowings and approximately 54%
(2020: 60%) were short term borrowings. The total borrowings
included, (i) a loan of RMB850 million in relation to the Group’s
property development business; (ii) net borrowings under steel
pipe business of around RMB960.2 million. The Group had to
finance its working capital of steel pipe business by short term
borrowings as around 90% of the cost of sales was incurred on
the procurement of steel plates and steel coils. Once the Group
received sales proceeds from its customers, it would then repay
the short term borrowings. Taking into account the Group’s cash in
hand, the Group has sufficient liquidity and is in a strong financial
position to repay its short term borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, approximately 80% (2020: 56%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi, which carried
interest rates linked to the benchmark lending rate published by
the People’s Bank of China; approximately 15% (2020: 37%) of
the total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried
fixed interest rate; and approximately 5% (2020: 7%) of the total
borrowings were denominated in US dollar and HK dollar which
carried fixed interest rate.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 9 December 2020, the Group has entered into the agreement
(the “Agreement”) with National East, Central and West Regional
Cooperation Demonstration Zone (Lianyungang Xuwei New
District) Management Committee* (“CECW"”) ( B 5 % & 75 [& 18] & 1
TEE (GEESRITFR)EEZEE), pursuant to which CECW
has agreed to purchase, and PCK (Lianyungang) has agreed to
sell, the Land for a consideration of RMB102.1 million. Details
of the above were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
and circular dated 9 December 2021 and 30 December 2021
respectively.

Except for the above, the Group had no other material acquisitions
or disposals during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LITIGATION

The Group has an outstanding lawsuit in which Jiangsu Binxin Iron
and Steel Group Company Limited T & & B ZMEEEBRAF])
(*Jaingsu Binxin”) alleged Nanjing Rongyu Group Company Limited
(MRBWEEAMR AT (“Nanjing Rongyu”) having breached a
contract to purchase goods for a claim of RMB34.3 million during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The purchase contract was
executed prior to the Group’s acquisition of Nanjing Rongyu in May
2013. The Group was not informed of such purchase contract at
the time of acquisition. According to the second instance judgement
made by the Jiangsu Province Lianyungang Intermediate People’s
Court, Nanjing Rongyu has to pay compensatory amount of
RMB34.3 million and related interest to Jiangsu Binxin. As of the
date of this report, the Group has fully settled the claim.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 April 2022, Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. (the
“PCKSP”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the disposal agreement with the joint venture partner,
Abdel Hadi Abdullah Al Qahtani & Sons, Co. (the “AHQ"), pursuant
to which AHQ has conditionally agreed to purchase, and PCKSP
has conditionally agreed to sell, the 50% equity interest in the JV
Company. The consideration payable by AHQ is SR41.5 million (or
equivalent to approximately RMB70.55 million). Upon Completion,
the Group will cease to hold any interests in the JV Company.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
26 April 2022.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries) were approximately
RMB140.8 million (2020: RMB114.7 million).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
Competitive remuneration package is offered to retain elite
employees. Our package includes salaries, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in
the PRC. Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme and
share award scheme, options to subscribe respectively for shares
in the Company or share awards of the Company may be granted
to eligible employees. No share option or share award was granted
under the share option scheme or share award scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 862 full time
employees (2020: 821 employees). The following sets forth the
total number of our staff by functions:

[

—F+_A=+—HB A£EEH£E862F 2R
—E_TF 81K/ EER) T XEHIIEBAEE

2021 2020

—s=- % —E-THF

Management =3 59 74
Production and logistics FERYR 347 336
Sales and marketing HE R M iGHRE 66 67
Finance 81 7% 45 41
Quality control BT 83 64
R&D fff 3 94 80
Procurement e 19 17
General administration and others —MRATIE R H Aty 149 142
Total &t 862 821

PROSPECT

With the resumption of business activities, the worldwide demand
for oil and natural gas has been growing, and prices of oil and
natural gas have rebounded sharply from the lows in 2020.
However, the global prolonged pandemic of COVID-19 and slow
economic recovery have laid uncertainties on the world economy
and reduced the demand for oil and natural gas. The Group
expects that 2022 will remain a challenging year for the oil and
natural gas industry.

2022 marked the second year of the “l4th Five-Year Plan”
development. According to the Medium and Long-Term Oil and
Gas Pipeline Network Plan ( (R &EHEREE MR E) ) formulated
by the National Development and Reform Commission, the scale
of domestic oil and gas pipeline network is expected to increase
to 240,000 kilometers by 2025, of which the mileages of natural
gas, crude oil and refined oil pipelines are expected to reach
163,000 kilometers, 37,000 kilometers and 40,000 kilometers,
respectively. During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, China’s oil and
gas pipeline mileage is expected to increase by 71,000 km, the
capital expenditure on pipeline investment in China is expected
to exceed RMBL1 trillion during the 14th Five-Year Plan period. In
order to keep up with the progress of the “14th Five-Year Plan” and
achieve its goals, the construction of oil and natural gas pipelines
will speed up, and there will be more opportunities in the future.
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During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, in terms of crude oil
pipelines, it is expected that construction of many pipelines under
construction will be completed, such as Dongjiakou-Dongying
and Rizhao-Puyang — Luoyang pipelines under construction, and
the construction of trunk pipelines such as Lianyungang-Yizheng
pipeline. It mainly target the construction of crude oil pipelines,
focusing on areas such as Liaoning, Hebei and Shandong,
to promote the supply of oil via crude oil pipelines to local
refineries. In terms of refined oil pipelines, we will proceed with
the construction of coast-inland evacuation pipelines, including
Changxing Island, Dalian — Jinzhou refined oil pipeline, Dongming,
Heze — Zhengzhou refined oil pipeline, Zhoushan — Huzhou
refined oil pipeline and other external transmission pipelines
supported by refineries; and improve the service coverage scope
of refined oil pipelines in central and eastern area by focusing
on the interconnection and interoperability construction with the
construction of Jiangsu-Anhui, Jiangxi-Hunan, Guangdong-Jiangxi
connecting lines and Lanzhou — Zhengzhou — Changsha refined
oil pipeline, Jinzhou — Zhengzhou refined oil pipeline and pipelines
between North China, East China, Central China, Southwest and
other regions, as well as the pipeline interconnection construction
within the Southwest refined oil pipeline. In terms of natural gas
pipelines, it targets the construction projects of the Yongqing-
Shanghai section of the China-Russia Eastern Natural Gas
Pipeline, the fourth line of the West-East Gas Transmission
Pipeline, the middle section of the Western Third Line, the second
line of the Sichuan-East Gas Transmission Pipeline, the duplicate
line of the External Transmission Pipeline of Tianjin LNG and the
External Transmission Pipeline of the Coastal LNG, to improve
the transmission capacity of the truck pipelines. In addition, a
number of cities, such as Guangzhou, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Shaanxi,
Jilin, have initiated more specific plans on pipelines. Among them,
the People’s Government of Guangdong Province announced to
promote the construction of the Guangdong-Hunan-Jiangxi refined
oil pipeline to promote the interconnection and interoperability of
refined oil pipelines and to form a refined oil pipelines connecting
major refineries and oil depots, covering the Pearl River Delta,
connecting the east, west and north of Guangdong and covering
the surrounding provinces. The construction of natural gas trunk
pipelines will be accelerated, such as Maoming — Yangjiang
pipeline, Yunfu — Xinxing pipeline, Huizhou — Haifeng pipeline,
Zhuhai-Zhongshan-Jiangmen Pipeline and Hainan-Guangdong
pipeline, to improve the level of usage of natural gas in the
whole Guangdong province. The construction of natural gas trunk
pipeline under “county — county interconnection projects” will also
be accelerated.

32 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

El+OARE]BAE RaEETE Eit BTl E
FEREMARB-EE - ZESTEEEERNE
EES - EISHGEE -SHHEERMNER UE
b IR S E R E R - HE) R )b B AR 7 R
H 1/\553°W§J/EF§%@HE'E&/ﬁ/ﬁimﬁﬁmﬁ)ﬁ%&(
CRERERES-HINKRAEE  SIERE -
0B B A L RN A GR s B B R R B E A
REPRERSBEK M ERBEERL =5
R B BEBEBAS BN -EMN-KR2PKE
/EW CERM BN K M BB ER ER
AESREEACANEHERATIE LEAMNKD
MEANSHEAEBE IR - RAKEN E &
HETRFRRERAREENNE-LER ARKE
BAAREENGR A=-HFR JISREEB_H-
/iLNGW%'JE.L@‘@E BBINGIH BEEEHERE
e B REMEIXEE N BN BN IE L
@5@ EMRERMEERGTRAARNEERE -
HPERAEARBFEREEEMEXNDAEBER
HEENAK ool B8 B B B - T2 A o 2R &
BEU-A EREREREL REFAEZEHHK
MABEEREE MRERXE BT EF—HE &
M-8 KPIL BESXRAREHREHE Ea2d
RARERAKE-NMREZRAR IR EBE([ZED
TH#]e

Eﬂ o 49@ ?«";

=

So

|

C O &
Mo S
@t fl'ﬁ*

Hﬂ}

Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWED AT

In addition, China Oil & Gas Pipeline Network Corporation (“Pipe
China”), which was established in late 2019, will take over the
relevant oil and gas pipeline infrastructure assets of three large
oil companies in China and officially put them into operation,
invest the capital for the construction of oil and gas infrastructure,
accelerate the process of marketization, vigorously promote the
pipeline construction plan, enhance the speed of construction of
pipeline networks, achieve interconnection and interoperability of
pipeline networks, establish the “national network” covering the
west-east gas transmission, north-south gas transmission, coastal
delivery to inland, east-west synergy, north-south interoperability
in accordance with the national plan, so as to enhance oil and gas
transportation capacity and ensure a safe and stable supply of oil
and gas energy. Pipe China plans to build a natural gas pipeline
network of “5 vertical, 5 horizontal” in the next five years. By
2025, the natural gas pipeline network of Pipe China will form a
trunk pipe network pattern of “four major (import) channels” and “5
vertical, 5 horizontal”. Pipe China forecasts that the growth of the
natural gas market will focus on the eastern region, including the
Bohai Rim, Southeast region, South Central region and Yangtze
River Delta, which will be immensely beneficial to the Group’s
production base in Zhuhai. With the establishment of Pipe China, it
is believed that the construction of the oil and gas pipeline network
in China will be significantly accelerated in the future.

The Chinese government has reaffirmed its commitment of “dual
carbon” to “strive to peak carbon dioxide emission before 2030
and achieve carbon neutrality before 2060” at the Leaders’ Summit
on Climate, marking that ecology-focused green and low-carbon
development will become the leading strategy in the future. This
indicates that China will pay more attention to natural gas, wind
power and hydro-power and other clean energies. The construction
of a series of natural gas pipeline and storage facilities, smart grid,
wind power and offshore wind power will be accelerated and will
drive the demand for our products in the future.

The Group believes that the above projects and policies will
generate significant opportunities for the steel pipe manufacturing
industry and the Company will firmly seize the opportunities to
boost its sales. In view of our long-term strategic goal to become
a leading global steel pipe manufacturer, the Group will grasp the
opportunities of potential oil and natural gas development projects,
expand our customer bases and market share by participating in
more global oil and gas and engineering projects, and continue to
leverage our strengths in the steel pipe industry to secure more
project orders.

TR FFEWRS

ZBEROMAAREFEEIERAA ([BARES
SEDR-_ZF-NAFEXRL $2EZREFE=KA
HARMWAAMRREBERREEE  EARARE
SIABARBRAMBREMRBER  MRTHIER
ARNHBHERERAE RAEEEREE REE
RAERERNEB TR BEARRE LRm
TABRX RAGR BitEEN [2E—KE]
RAMBERRE N BRBRERZEZREHE-E
REREERRIARKAFREX [ERDE]IHRA
RBEREHE J_T_1F BREAEENRAR
EESTERIOACGED)BEIMRAATRE] WBR
ERER - BREBEEER RARTHERNE
DEIBERMEE BRRDE KRB TEEAE=A
MEs R BEARRECRKENEEZWIEEGH -
BREMEEXLE HEFPEAHBRERERER
s & K& AR

PERFEESARRBR EERBR [ HFB=
TENBRGEE —EATFNERBPA 0[S
R BRENEEAERNGEERRRER
BRKMESHE - EXPTEAFEINEERAR
AARERKESERER- — R RATE B R
mEE - BEEE BERS LABNRREE MR
WHERFEBROERNHBS -

AEBERRLMARMBROZMERETENEK
BE ARFAEERERBREAHE - ENRMAPE
HEE B R AR ERELNMERERN NEEK
ELEBEEABMRRARERBEENKE BABR2HE
FLZEMARTIZEER HATRAT SR BE
BEAEEEHETENEDS FNEZWHEATE-

WIAARARMEEZRERAT 33



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Chang (R &)

Mr CHEN Chang (FR& ), aged 76, is the chief executive officer
and the chairman of the Board and also a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr Chen is the father of Mr Chen Guo Xiong, and
Ms Chen Zhao Nian (both being executive Directors). Being the
founder of the Group, Mr Chen is primarily responsible for the
overall management, strategic planning and business development
of the Group. Mr Chen has over 53 years of experience in areas
related to woodwork, machine tool equipment and lift/escalator
equipment and has accumulated abundant experience and
knowledge in the mechanical and electrical industry. Mr Chen
graduated from the graduate school of Sun Yat-Sen University*
(FR I A2) in Guangdong Province in October 1995 majoring in
decision management.

Mr Chen has been appointed by several steel pipe related
associations and organisations for various positions, including:

. Member of the Fourth Session of Welded Steel Pipe Academic
Committee of the Steel Rolling Branch Association of the
Chinese Society for Metals* (1 Bl ¢ B 2 2 8Ll 5 & £ 10217
EMESRMEEEEE) (2001)

. Vice president of the China Township Enterprises Association*
(R E4EPZEHEalER) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th and 5th sessions of the board of
directors of the China Steel Construction Society and the
Steel Pipe Branch Association* (R Ef&EHBEME S S H
NERERFEFRAEEELEIEER) (2004, 2008)

D Vice chairman of the 4th, 5th and 6th consecutive council
of the Cold-formed Steel Sub-committee of the China Steel
Structure Association* (FEI#lZ&EHe L 8RO S F M-
T ANEEESRIEZER) (2004, 2005 and 2010)

. Vice president of the Metallurgical Chamber of Commerce of
the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce* (FF # 2
IEBeg Mg R) (2006)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Mr Chen has received various awards, honours qualifications,

including:

*

Honoured by the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy
of the Republic of Korea for his contributions to Korean
economic development through trade revitalisation (2004)

Excellent Entrepreneur in Chinese Private Technology
Enterprises awarded by the All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce* (REZHTHEBAGT ATEHESRERMED®
%K) (2004)

Awarded the First Prize of Science and Technology Awards by
the Guangzhou Municipality People’s Government* (& /I A
REBUF R AR 2R 8% —F 8153 ) (2007)

Awarded as authority expert of welded pipe industry by the
Chinese International Authority Expert's Association* ( &

BERERBETREETEEBER) (2007)

The invention of “ three-roller forming technology and
equipment” was awarded the gold prize in the Sixth Session
of International Exhibition of Inventions and outstanding
award by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Personnel and
the Guangdong Province Intellectual Property Department*
(% PA=ERATERRBUEENERNRERARES X

CRNRERREAETELREREANBERBT REFE) (2008)

Outstanding Individual in Earthquake Relief in Guangzhou*

(BN ERLE S fE A ) (2008)

The Fourth Invention and Entrepreneur Award by the China

Steel Association* (7 B3 #] 173 & 25 /0 “ 2 B 8| 22 42" ) (2009)

Guangzhou Model Labour* (&N 7125 B)1E &5 ) (2009)

First Prize of Science and Technology Award in Guangdong
Province (R & Bl 2 # {if 8 — % #2) for the research and
development of LSAW manufacturing process and technology
and its series of products (2010)

Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur* (BN HEF D ER)
(2011)

Nationwide Outstanding Entrepreneur* (2 EEF P %K)
(2012)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. Guangzhou Outstanding Contribution Award for Science and .
Technology* ( EM T EIEBHirZe B HEEHE) (2012)

. Outstanding Industrial Province of Science and Technology in .
the PRC's iron and steel industry* (B8 T2 E@HFRFE T
¥%) (2012)

«  Guangzhou Figure of Focus* (£ X% A %) (2012) .
. The Outstanding Entrepreneur for the Competition of the Top .

10 Guangzhou Construction Project in 2012* (2012F Z E R
ATEIRYYHEEEEBCER) (2013)

. Outstanding Contribution Award for Innovation in Guangzhou* .

(BN B 81 B B2 58 B8R 22) (2013)

. Top 10 Guangdong Economic Influential Individuals in 2013* .

(2013F EHR + RA&ERZEAY) (2013)

«  Nationwide “May 1st” Labour Award* (2B E— 48 E) .
(2014)
. Gold Prize of the 8th International Invention Exhibition* ( 5 )\ .

[EE R 3 & & 52) (2014)

. 5th China Overseas Chinese Community (Innovative .
Achievement) Contribution Award* (55 /g #F B 5 R (Bl 3TA
R) AR (2014)

«  14th World Outstanding Chinese Award* ( 25 -+ P0 fE ttf 524 .
#E A 1%) (2015)

«  National Model Worker* (2Bl 4 8)#£ % ) (2015) .
. Guangzhou Entrepreneurial Entrepreneur for 30 years* ( /N .

BIZE30F I B % %K) (2016)

. Gold Prize of the 19th International Invention Exhibition* ( & .
TN E BB 385 58) (2016)

e Yu Shan Outstanding Contribution Award* (&L &8 &t 28) .
(2016)

¢ 2016 Guangzhou Industry Leader* (20164 EE N THAE¥EE .
AT (2017)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. The Most Socially Responsible Entrepreneur in Guangzhou*
(BEMZEMEEFARDER) (2017)

+  Top Ten Economic Persons in Guangzhou* ( &M 1 X477 &
EAY) (2018)

. The Central Committee of the Communist Party of China,
the State Council and the Central Military Commission
jointly issued a commemorative medal to celebrate the 70th
anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic of China*
(PR BEFKR FREZHRABREEFERREARALMBIK
M70EF LR E) (2019)

As at the date of this annual report, Mr Chen is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Bournam Profits Limited, which is
interested in 701,911,000 shares of the Company. Together with
Mr Chen’s personal interest of 4,350,000 shares of the Company,
Mr Chen has a total interest of 706,261,000 shares of the
Company.

Mr Chen Guo Xiong (R B %)

Mr CHEN Guo Xiong (FREI%E ) |, aged 48, is an executive Director
and vice chairman of the Board. He is the son of Mr Chen
Chang (being chairman of the Board and an executive Director)
and also the brother of Ms Chen Zhao Nian (being executive
Director). Mr Chen is responsible for overseeing overall business
development plan and strategic management of the Group. Mr.
Chen joined the Group as deputy general manager in February
2019. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen had extensive
experience in the manufacturing industry including management
and administration.

Ms Chen Zhao Nian (BRIK &)

Ms CHEN Zhao Nian (BRJKE4 ), aged 45, is an executive
Director. She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being chairman
of the Board and an executive Director) and also the sister of
Mr Chen Guo Xiong (being vice chairman of the Board and
executive Director). Ms Chen is primarily responsible for the
daily management and operations of the Group. Ms Chen joined
the Group in October 2002 as vice general manager after her
graduation. Ms Chen obtained her PhD in Economics from the
Jinan University in 2021, her bachelor’s degree in arts from
the University of Central Lancashire in the United Kingdom in
June 2000 and her master’s degree in accounting from Leeds
Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in October 2002.
Ms. Chen has taken up the following public duties and has
received the following awards:

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Public duties: NI

Member of the Standing Committee of 16th Session of NPC in
Panyu, Guangzhou* (EMMHEBERE T+ SEAKXTZE) (2011)

Executive member of the Guangzhou Glory Society* (& /I
K EEMESEE) (2012)

Vice chairwoman of the Federation of Industry & Commerce
in Panyu District of Guangzhou* (EMNTMHREE THEHE S
BlE®) (2012)

President of the Youth Association of Panyu Merchants and
Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (BB EBSHAIXEFHE Y
£) (2012)

Member of the 12th Executive Committee for Guangzhou
Women* (BEMTHRELE+T—EHITEEGEZE) (2012)

Chairlady of the Guangzhou Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (BN M Z X RIBEEK) (2013)

Representative of Guangzhou in the 11th All-China Women
Federation Conference* (RE2HiEAHMEEE T —EEEE

N FR) (2013)

Committee member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 12th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (1 & A
EBamEmeRsE t—BERMNMEZE®ZE) (2014)

Guangzhou Deputy Director of the Federation of Young
Entrepreneurs Committee* (BN M TABSFEEREZER
5 &l E ) (2014)

Committee member of the 12th Guangdong Provincial
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* ( & 5 4 i Bt
FET_EHNZGEHELZE) (2014)

Vice President of Guangdong Province Private Enterprises
Investment Development Association* ([ ER & R & ¥ % &%
RiEEERIERK) (2015)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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*

Vice President of Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (ERE XX R IHEEIEK) (2015)

Executive Vice President of Guangdong Province Association
of Public Affairs* (EREHEARREFEBKEETR) (2015)

Vice President of Guangzhou Taxpayers Association* ( E /I ™
MBAMERIER) (2015)

Representative of the 15th People’'s Congress of Guangzhou

City* (BINTE+RAEARRRARAEREK) (2016)

President of Guangdong Women and Children’s Fund* (&%
ERZREESEEER) (2017)

Member of the 12th Executive Committee for National
Women'’s Federation* (2B GHEHE+ _—_ERTZESTELZE)
(2018)

Member of the 13th Executive Committee for Guangzhou
Women’s Federation* (EMMHFHBHET=—ERNTEZEEELZER)
(2019)

Honorary President of the Youth Association of Panyu
Merchants and Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* ( &N T & &
EEMAXETFHELEEFR) (2019)

Committee member of the 13th Guangdong Provincial
Women's Federation, the Executive Committee* (/& 3 & /7 B
FTZERLZERHKELZE) (2019)

Vice President and member of the 14th Executive Committee
for Guangzhou Women’s Federation* (BN T & B R iHEH &
THEMRITEEEFREEF) (2020)

Instructor of Women’s Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Mentor Group in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay
Area (BER KX E R im 2 815781 X E R E FAT) (2020)

Member of the Standing Committee of the 14th Guangzhou
Municipal Committee of Zhi Gong Party* (IR EEM T E
THEZEGEEHEEFLE) (2021)

Entrepreneurial mentor of the Yunfan Project of the
Guangzhou European and American Alumni Association* ( &
ME RS2 g ZNaTERIZXZBA) (2021)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Awards: 425

The 8th Civilised Family with Five Distinctive Merits by the
All-China Women’s Federation* (2 HBZHE g EN\/E
T XA BE) (2012)

Female Pace Setter with Great Contribution (National Level)*
(ZBIMEZINE L) (2013)

Most Charismatic Woman in 60 years of Guangzhou Loving
Hearts* ( R &) E 604 & B 1 & 1F) (2013)

Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur Honors* ( & M & & 1
%K) (2013)

Guangdong Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Honours* ( &

REBHELLER") (2013)

“March 8th Flag Bearer” of Guangzhou* ( EMM“=\AEF")
(2010-2013)

Outstanding Women Entrepreneur* (£ H 8] % 2215 ) (2014)

Guangdong Province Top Ten Outstanding Scholarly Home*

(ERE"TREFEBFTZR") (2014)

Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneur* (T EEFFTEDER)
(2015)

Guangdong Top Ten “Charity Contribution Award™ ( &8 +{£«
EEFEE) (2015)

Top 10 Guangdong Business New Individuals in 2015* (2015
&R R+ R#EAY) (2016)

Diamond Award of Charity Figures* (20165 E &= AMEAL
%) (2016)

Guangzhou New Generation Outstanding Entrepreneur* ( /|
MAEREBSFEER) (2016)

FEX2RARLABACE ) \BEAFXHARE (=T
——%F)

2EMEARNEEL(ZT—=F)

RBEMOFRAB N LML (ZF—=%)

EREBALLER] (ZF—=%)

BM@I=N\AEF] (ZF-FFE_F—=
)

ﬂ

BHAIEZE (ZF—mF)

ERETAREFERZFK] (ZF—0%F)

TEEFEFEER(ZFT—1F)

ERTEZZHFRE] (ZF—01F)

2015 ERAR T AFMAY (ZZ—XF)

2016FEREEANYBAR(ZT—RF)

BNMHERBELER (ZT—XRF)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Outstanding CEO (2016 [E#t i CEO ) (2016)

The 1st National Civilized Family* (£ — &2 B XA K E)
(2016)

Award of 2nd Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur* ( 8 — B & &
PERE) (2017)

2017 District “Industry Talent Urgently Needed Shortage™
(2017F E R [EXESFTRERAL | BIE) (2017)

Panyu District Integrity Family Award* (% £ % 52K R 88)
(2018)

Top 10 Guangzhou Most Beautiful Philanthropist Families*
(2018F EEMM T AHEZEERE) (2018)

Charity Love Award by Guangdong Province Association of
Women Entrepreneurs* (ER A XL EZRpE-—&EEE L %)
(2019)

Charity Award by Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs, Guangdong Province Women and Children’s
Fund* (EREALCEZHE BEREGRLEZEESE- BEA
1) (2019)

Advanced Individuals in Social Service Work by Zhi Gong
Party Guangdong Provincial Committee (A EERE L8 S -
BMABEMERBIIELEREA) (2020)

The 8th Guangzhou Moral Model * (5 /\fE B/ T EEEE)
(2021)

“Guangdong Good People” in the first quarter of 2021* (2021
FE-FE[ERHFAI) (2021)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ping (FR¥)

Mr CHEN Ping (£ ) , aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr Chen is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr Chen graduated from the Jinan University, the PRC in 1984
majoring in finance and later obtained a doctoral degree in finance
in Nankai University, the PRC in December 1990. Mr Chen has
lectured at the Lingnan College, Sun Yat-Sen University for
more than 29 years in Guangdong Province, the PRC, teaching
international finance. He is currently the head of Marine Economic
Research Centre of Sun Yat-Sen University (/8 ¥ &8 % 3 35 &
I£x) . Mr Chen also assumed various posts in societies and clubs
concerning economics and finance, such as a council member
at International Finance Society of China* (FEIEE L mES ),
International Finance Society* (EIFR ¢ @2 € ) and China Society
of World Economics* (R Bt 4L EE @) . Mr Chen is also
engaged in academic researches with focuses on finance theories
and policies, global economics and so forth, and has published a
number of essays and publications. As an experienced professor,
Mr Chen has won various awards for the lecture materials used
and also for the essays published. In 1997, Mr Chen’s teaching
materials entitled International finance* ( (B £ &) ) was
awarded National Educational Achievement Award — Second
Class* (BIR#HEZE —F %) by the Committee of Education of the
PRC. In May 2002, Mr Chen'’s paper entitled Study on the effect of
merger and acquisition of listed companies on wealth*( { £ 2R
ARG ELUCRE /9 B = U 9E) ) was selected for the Best Paper
Award of the 9th Global Finance Association Annual Conference
by the 9th GFA Annual Conference Program Committee. In
2005, Mr Chen’s teaching and research achievements entitled
Exploration and practice of educational internationalisation*( {#
BEEENEREEFTRE) ) was awarded Guangdong Province
Educational Achievement Award — First Class* (ER&AHEK R
—%4%) . In 2006, Mr Chen was selected as talented person for
Ministry of Education New Century Outstanding Person Support
Scheme* (M & 42 EF AL ZHEE) . In 2007, Mr Chen
received Bao Steel Outstanding Teacher Award* (& i - /£ E &
FSZEM4E) . Mr Chen was an independent director of Guangzhou
Zhujiang Brewery Group Co., Ltd.* (BEMETEBR D ERAA]) ,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, with effect
from 10 October 2016. Mr Chen was also an independent director
of Shenzhen Universe (Group) Co. Ltd CFEIJITRH (S H) &5
AMRAF), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000023), with effect from 15 July 2019.

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purpose
only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHEEERE

Mr Tian Xiao Ren (HEF)

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (HEEZ)), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 August 2014. Mr Tian
is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr Tian graduated from Zhejiang Radio and
Television University in the PRC in 1985 and studied the Master
of Business Administration Degree at Hangzhou University in the
PRC from 1995 to 1998. He was appointed as vice chairman of
Bank of China Group Investment Company Limited from 2006 to
2013. Prior to 2006, Mr Tian was the president of Bank of China
of Guangdong Province and Jiangxi Province, the PRC and the
vice-president of Bank of China of Zhejiang Province, the PRC for
26 years. He has over 32 years of experience in the banking and
financial field. Mr Tian is now a senior economist in the PRC and is
entitled to the special subsidy awarded by the state council of the
People’s Republic of China in recognition of his contribution to the
economy of China.

Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah (Bt & E )

Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah (5 &%) , aged 57, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 October 2019. Mr Au
Yeung is also the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. Au Yeung obtained a bachelor's degree in commerce from
the Bond University in Australia in September 1996, a master’'s
degree in accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in December 2000, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2005 and an EMBA degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 2008. Mr. Au Yeung is a member of
CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 25 years of experience in auditing and
financial control through his prior employments with accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Au Yeung was an
independent non-executive director of Modern Media Holdings
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 72), until his resignation with effect from 30
September 2019.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Liu Yonghe (BI5k )

Ms LIU Yonghe (#I3k#j) , aged 53, joined PCKSP in June 1994
and had worked as accounting staff and financial manager. Ms Liu
has acquired profound experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing during her employment with the Group
for over 26 years. Ms Liu is now responsible for cash flow
and working capital control of the Group. She completed her
professional accounting education at Lanzhou University of
Finance and Economics, the PRC in 1990 with a bachelor’s degree
in economics and obtained professional qualification as assistant
accountant in 1991. Ms Liu has over 29 years of experience in the
accounting and finance industry. She was awarded the “March 8th
Flag Bearer” in 1999 and 2002, and the post she held was awarded
as the Women’'s Exemplary Post by the Guangzhou Women’s
Union in March 2005. In October 2009, Ms Liu obtained a master’s
degree in the Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
programme at the Asia International Open University (Macau).

Ms Wong Pui Shan ( Z 3 H})

Ms WONG Pui Shan ( T ¥iHft) , aged 45, joined the Group in April
2011 as the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company. She is responsible for corporate finance management
and company secretarial work of the Group. Ms Wong received her
Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor of Arts Degree (Hons) in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered
Governance Institute. Prior to joining the Company, she had served
international audit firms for four years and listed companies as
financial controller and company secretary for more than 19 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Wong Pui Shan ( Z i)

Ms WONG is the company secretary of the Company. Ms Wong
is working for the Company on a full time basis. Details of her
biography are set out above in this section.

Ms Wong has complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company include
manufacture and sales of welded steel pipes. The Group is also
engaged in property development and investment.

Details of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 97 to 250.

The Directors did not recommend payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’ s performance during the year
under review can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 7 to 9
and pages 16 to 33 respectively.

The Group will continue to focus on its steel pipe business by
diversifying its product usage and market segment. For property
development, the Group will continue to sell units of Phase Il GDC
and receive rental income from shops of Phase | GDC.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment
protection and has not noted any material non-compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. The Group has implemented environmental
protection measures to reduce energy consumption, treat sewage
before recycling and discharge, and sell wasted steel products to
recycling companies. Further details of the Group’s environmental
policies and performance can be found in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” set out on pages 80 to 96.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that might have a significant impact on the businesses
of the Group.

RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees: The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Our package includes salaries, medical insurance, discretionary
bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as mandatory
provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the PRC.
Our current relationship with our employees and the labour unions
are good and are based on mutual support and respect.

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships with
our major customers, and established a strong customer base.
We have obtained numerous patents, awards and recognitions,
international certificates and long standing international and
nationwide track record to establish our stable customer base.
We are an industry pioneer and are the first and only steel pipe
manufacturer in the PRC to manufacture and successfully develop
deep sea welded steel pipes for the use at a water depth of 3,500m
and a qualified supplier of Petrobras and Petronas. We believe
that this can enable us to establish and maintain market leadership
in the steel pipe industry.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers that set out
the quantities, prices and specifications of the products to be
purchased, delivery arrangement, and credit terms at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. We believe the relationship between us and our major
suppliers is good and stable. Most of our procurements were paid
in RMB.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on pages 251 to 252. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations would
be affected by a number of factors. The principal risks and
uncertainties relating to the Group are set out below:

. The Group's revenue of steel pipe business is dependent on
securing sales orders for new projects through biddings from
customers. Most of our revenue is generated from pipeline or
other infrastructure projects that are mainly project-originated
and non-recurring in nature. Our revenue will be affected if we
cannot successfully obtain biddings from customers.

. The Group does not have any long term contracts with its
customers of steel pipe business. If the Group’s customers
choose not to engage the Group in the future, the Group’s
steel pipe business operations, financial results and
profitability will be affected.

. The Group’s revenue of property business is dependent on
the policy of PRC government. Any change of PRC policy will
affect the property business operations, financial results and
profitability.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves, including the
share premium account and contributed surplus and accumulated
losses, available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”), amounted
to approximately RMB116.5 million. The Board do not recommend
the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021. Details of the reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.
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The reserves of the Group available for distribution depend on
the dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries. For
dividend purpose, the amount which the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC can legally distribute by way of dividend is determined
by reference to their distributable profits as reflected in the PRC
statutory financial statements which are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. These
distributable profits differ from those that are reflected in the
Group’s financial statements prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 49% of the total revenue of
the Group, and sales to the largest customer amounted to 27%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
42% of the total cost of sales of the Group, and purchases from
the largest supplier amounted to 9%. None of the Directors or
any of their associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of
the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are
as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Guo Xiong (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Ping

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren

Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. Chen Ping, Mr.
Tian Xiao Ren and Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah, and as at the date
of this report, the Company considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 34 to 44 of this annual report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Chen Chang and Mr. Tian Xiao Ren will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

According to code provision B.2.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, if an
independent non-executive Director serves more than nine years,
any further appointment of such independent non-executive
Director should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by the shareholders.

Mr. Chen Ping has served as an independent non-executive
Director for more than nine years. Mr. Chen Ping has never held
any executive or management position in the Group nor has he
been employed by any member of the Group during the such
period. The Directors noted the positive contribution of Mr. Chen to
the development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
his independent and constructive advice. Mr. Chen has given the
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules to the Company and the nomination committee of
the Company has assessed and is satisfied of the independence
of Mr. Chen. The Board believes that Mr. Chen’s continued tenure
brings considerable stability to the Board and the Board has
benefited greatly from the presence of Mr. Chen Ping who has
over time provided the Group with valuable insight. Hence, the
Board considers that the long service of Mr. Chen would not affect
their exercise of independent judgments, and therefore considers
Mr. Chen to be independent and recommends Mr. Chen to be re-
elected.

A separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of each

of Mr. Chen Chang, Mr. Tian Xiao Ren and Mr. Chen Ping at the
forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has a letter of appointment or
re-appointment with the Company for a term of three years and
is subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice. Our independent non-executive Directors
has a letter of appointment or re-appointment with the Company
for a term of two years and is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice. The Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee have reviewed
the terms of service contracts and letters of appointment or
reappointment of all Directors.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares or
underlying shares or, as the case may be, the percentage in the
equity interest and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the “SFO”)), which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by
the Company referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors (the
“Model Code”) of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as

follows:
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Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEnE &4
Chen Chang Interest of controlled corporation (note 1)
BRE —fEAIREHI AR 2 e (EEL)
Personal interest
(EPN £
Note:

1. These shares are held by Bournam Profits Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen
Chang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Chang is deemed to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam Profits Limited.

Shares of Associated Corporation

Mr. Chen Chang beneficially owns the entire issued share capital
of Bournam Profits Limited, which is the beneficial owner of about
69.42% of the issued shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement or material contracts, to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates,
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme” or the
“Scheme”) was approved by the Shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 18 June 2020. The details
of the Scheme are disclosed below pursuant to the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme: the purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or
provide benefits to eligible participants.

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme include:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive Director but excluding any non-executive
Director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
equity entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds
an equity interest;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or
any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

(f) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of the
Group or any Invested Entity.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme: the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share
option scheme of the Group (if any) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption
of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. not exceeding 101,114,200
shares). Up to the date of this annual report, no options have
been granted under the Share Option Scheme and thus the
total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme remained 101,114,200 shares, representing
about 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report.

Grant of options to connected persons: grant of options
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
proposed grantee of the option).

Grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates, which would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme: for any 12-month period, shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.
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6. Period within which the securities must be taken up under
an option: an option may be accepted by a participant within
21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day after the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

7. The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised: unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no such minimum period.

8. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option: a nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

9. Basis for determining the exercise price: such price will be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

10. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme: the Scheme
has a life of 10 years commencing on 18 June 2020, being
the date on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted.
The scheme will expire on 18 June 2030.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to
31 December 2021, no share option has been granted or agreed to
be granted to any person under the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME IR 17 2R B =t &)
On 22 March 2012, the Board approved the adoption of the share RITE——F=ZfF-+_-_H EEFeHEFNRHDE
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”). EhEt & (TR D BEmEt &) -

1. Purpose of the Share Award Scheme: the purpose of the
Share Award Scheme is to recognise the contributions by and
to give incentives to certain eligible persons in order to retain
them for the continuing operation, growth and development
of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

2. Operation of the Share Award Scheme: the Share Award
Scheme shall be administered by the Board in accordance
with the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The trustee
shall hold the shares and the income derived therefrom in
accordance with the terms of the trust deed.

The Board may select any grantee for participation in the
Share Award Scheme as a selected grantee (the “Selected
Grantee”) and determine the number of awarded shares and
inform the trustee and the Selected Grantee(s) accordingly.

The Board shall either before or after identification of the
Selected Grantee(s) (i) cause the Company to directly instruct
a licensed securities dealer to purchase the awarded shares
and settle payment for the awarded shares and deliver the
awarded shares to the trustee subsequently; or (ii) cause
to be paid to the trustee (either by way of contribution or
loan from the Company’s funds) (a) the sum of purchasing
the shares and the related purchase expenses or (b) the
nominal or such other amount required for the subscription
of the awarded shares by the trustee as soon as practicable
to purchase the awarded shares required (the “Reference
Amount”).

Within 30 business days on which the trading of the shares
has not been suspended (or such longer period as the Trustee
and the Board may agree from time to time) after receiving
the reference amount, the Board shall instruct the trustee
to apply the same towards the subscription of shares at the
benchmarked price as stipulated in the Listing Rules from
time to time or the purchase of the awarded shares from the
market during a specific period and at a specific price range
as instructed by the Company.
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Awarded shares and related income held by the trustee
upon the trust and which are referable to a Selected Grantee
shall vest to that Selected Grantee on the vesting date.
The Board may also, in its absolute discretion, determine
the performance, operating and financial targets and other
criteria, if any, to be satisfied by the Selected Grantee before
the awarded shares can vest.

The trustee shall not be obliged to exercise any voting rights
and powers in respect of any shares held under the trust
(including but not limited to the awarded shares, the returned
shares, any bonus shares and scrip shares) until such shares
have been transferred to the relevant Selected Grantee.

Participants of the Share Award Scheme: any employee
or director (including, without limitation, any executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive directors) of any
member of the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

Share Award Scheme limit: the Board shall not make any
further award of awarded shares which will result in the
number of shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme representing more than ten per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the first date
of each financial year during the term of the Share Award
Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Award Scheme: the maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to an award or awards to a Selected Grantee who
is an independent non-executive Director of the Company
at any one time shall not in aggregate exceed 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the first date of
the relevant financial year of the Company and the aggregate
value of which shall not exceed HK$5,000,000 (based on the
closing price of the shares on the business day immediately
preceding the vesting date) as at the vesting date.

The maximum number of shares which may be subject to an
award or awards to any Selected Grantee at any one time
shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the first date of the relevant financial
year of the Company.
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6. The duration of the Share Award Scheme: subject to any
early termination of the Share Award Scheme as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on
22 March 2012.

The Share Award Scheme has ended on 21 March 2021 and no
share has been awarded or granted to any person under the Share
Award Scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme (up
to 21 March 2021), at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which
would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief
executive of the Company) have an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise been notified to the Company:

Shares of the Company

Name Capacity

wE /BB 4%

Bournam Profits Limited
(“Bournam”)

Beneficial owner (note)

BEamBEAA ()

Bournam Profits Limited
(IBournam |)

Note:
The entire share capital of Bournam is solely and beneficially owned by

Mr. Chen Chang. Mr. Chen is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
701,911,000 shares held by Bournam.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 60 to 79.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a purchase agreement
with Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool Works Co., Ltd.* (&
N TR TR A BR A R]) ("GZMT”) for the purchase of spare parts
and production line (“Purchase Transaction”) from the latter for the
maintenance of machines, installation of rolling line electrical drive
system equipment and transformation of steel transportation system
of bimetal composite plate processing plant in Lianyungang, the PRC.
The consideration for the Purchase Transaction is approximately
RMB173.6 million. The purchase of the spare parts and production
line is mainly for the construction of the bimetal composite plate
processing plant in Lianyungang, the PRC as per the Company’s
announcement dated 27 April 2017 and the circular dated 2 June
2017. GZMT is a limited liability company established in the PRC
and is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of machine
tools. GZMT is ultimately, wholly and beneficially, owned by Mr. Chen
Chang, the controlling shareholder and chairman of the Company,
and is therefore an associate of Mr. Chen Chang and a connected
person of the Company. The Purchase Transaction constituted a
connected and discloseable transaction of the Company was duly
passed by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 19 June 2017. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, GZMT has returned the advance payment
to the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group had no significant event after the reporting period
required to be disclosed.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the Report of the Directors prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a)
of the Companies Ordinance.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young tendered its resignation on 15 December 2021
as auditors of the Company. The Board has appointed KTC
Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the Company with effect from
15 December 2021 to fill the vacancy following Ernst & Young
resignation.

KTC Partners CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution
will be proposed for approval by shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint KTC Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chen Chang
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 April 2022
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The Board
considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the opinion
of the Board, saved as disclosed in section “Chairman and Chief
Executive” below, the Company has complied with the CG Code.
The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory requirements
and to meet the rising expectations of the Shareholders and other
stakeholders.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems,
monitoring the performance of senior management and
determining the policy for corporate governance. The
management is responsible for daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors have
the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of these Committees are set out below in section B of this
corporate governance report.

The Company had arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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Board Composition
The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Member of
the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Guo Xiong

Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ping Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of
the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee
Mr. Au Yeung Chairman of the Audit Committee
Kwong Wah

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Member of
the Audit Committee and

Nomination Committee

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. Mr. Chen Chang, Mr. Chen
Guo Xiong and Ms. Chen Zhao Nian are members of the
same family. Mr. Chen Chang is the father of both Mr. Chen
Guo Xiong and Ms. Chen Zhao Nian.

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among
members of the Board. The profiles of each Director and the
relationships among the Directors are set out in the “Profile
of Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective delivery of the Board functions. The
number of independent non-executive Directors constitutes
more than one-third of the Board. A list containing the names
of the Directors and their roles and functions is published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.pck.com.cn and pck.todayir.com.
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Upon reviewing the directorships and major commitments
of each Director, and the attendance rate of each Director
at the meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board
is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during 2021.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting is sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communication.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all the
Directors at least 3 days before meetings. All the Directors
will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company
is responsible for keeping the minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, six Board
meetings were held.
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The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest. According to current Board practices, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company is aware of the requirement under paragraph
C.2.1 of the CG Code that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not separately
have any officer with the title of “chief executive”. Mr. Chen
Chang, the Chairman and founder of the Group, is also
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, ensuring that all material issues are decided by the
Board in a conducive manner. The Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The roles of the respective
executive Directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the
chairman and chief executive. The Board is of the view that
this structure provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, facilitates effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies, and
ensures the generation of shareholders’ benefits.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time to
time to ensure appropriate measures are being taken should
suitable circumstance arise.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Board is responsible for selection and approval of
candidates for appointment as Directors. The Company has
established a Nomination Committee on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition including the board diversity policy, evaluating the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and
making recommendations on the appointment of Directors.
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Each of the executive Directors has signed or renewed his/her
service contract with the Company for a period of three years.
All of their appointments are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed or re-appointed for a term of two years, and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the re-
appointments/appointment of both executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors and recommended to
the Board of Directors for decision.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Mr Chen Chang, and Mr. Tian Xiao Ren will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, if an
independent non-executive Director serves more than
nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders. As
such, although Mr. Chen Ping has served as an independent
non-executive Director for more than nine years, the Board
considers that Mr. Chen Ping is a person of integrity and
independent in judgement and character. He is independent
of management and free from any business or other
relationships or circumstances which could materially
interfere with the exercise of his independent judgement. The
Board considers that Mr. Chen Ping meets the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and is of
the view that his independence is not affected by his tenure
with the Company. The Board believes that his valuable
experience in the Group’s business and his professional
knowledge will continue to generate significant contribution to
the Board, the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code and in
accordance to the Company’s Articles of Association, a
separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of
each of Mr. Chen Chang, Mr. Tian Xiao Ren and Mr. Chen
Ping and at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

The Directors have endeavoured to keep abreast of the
changes in their responsibilities as a Director and of the
business activities and development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Directors have provided to the Company their records of
continuous professional development during the year ended
31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors (being
Mr. Chen Chang, Mr. Chen Guo Xiong, Ms. Chen Zhao Nian,
Mr. Chen Ping, Mr. Tian Xiao Ren and Mr. Au Yeung Kwong
Wah) attended seminars and training courses in relation
to corporate governance, Listing Rules update or financial
markets update arranged by professional firms/institutions.
Records of continuing professional development have been
maintained by the company secretary. Besides, the company
secretary also conducted briefings on corporate governance,
directors’ duties and responsibilities and provided materials
for Listing Rules amendments to all Directors for their
reference.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Following a specific enquiry, all the Directors has confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
its Directors in advance.

Non-Competition Undertakings

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the confirmations given by Mr Chen Chang and Bournam,
being controlling shareholders of the Company, in respect
of each of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 January 2010. The independent non-executive
Directors are satisfied that the controlling shareholders
have fully complied with the terms of the non-competition
undertakings and no new competing business was reported
by the controlling shareholders throughout the year ended
31 December 2021.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

(B)
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah and Mr Tian
Xiao Ren. Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and the internal control and risk management procedures and
systems of our Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the condensed unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2021, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
internal auditor or external auditors before submission to
the Board;

. To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021, of which two meetings with
external auditors’ presence, and all members of the Audit
Committee attended all meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report
of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems and processes, and the re-
appointment of the external auditors. No major issue on the
internal control system of the Group has been identified.
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There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee
and the Directors in respect of matters about selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of an external auditor.

The Company had established a whistleblowing policy
and system for employees to raise concerns of possible
improprieties where all concerns are addressed to the Audit
Committee.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company recognises the benefits of a board that is
composed of a balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
development of the Company. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy in 2013. The Board has reviewed
its composition and considered a number of aspects,
including gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in
accordance with its board diversity policy. The Board
considers that the existing board composition is well
diversified and appropriate to the business development of
the Company.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
22 March 2012 in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen Chang.
Mr Chen Ping is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The majority of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
to review and monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, and review the board
diversity policy and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives.
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During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition of the
Board and made recommendations to the Board for the re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the
chairman, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and reviewed the board diversity policy
determined the policy for nomination of directors, nomination
procedure process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and all members of the Nomination
Committee attended the meetings.

According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit
basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria. The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability
of a candidate include:

. the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and
knowledge which are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy);

. the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;

. the candidate’s character and integrity;

. the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote
adequate time in discharge of a director’s duties;

. whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a
diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

. (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director) whether
the candidate is in compliance with the criteria of
independence under the Listing Rules; and

. any other factors as may be determined by the Board
from time to time.
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In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member
may nominate or invite a candidate for appointment as a
Director to be considered by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee will then evaluate the personal
profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria set out
above, undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate
and make recommendation for the Board’s consideration
and approval. For nomination of independent non-executive
Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess the
candidate’s independence in accordance with the CG Code
and the Listing Rules. For re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee will review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance (including the candidate’s
attendance at Board committee meetings, Board meetings
and general meetings, his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board), and make recommendations
to the Board and shareholders for re-election at general
meetings.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen Chang.
Mr Tian Xiao Ren is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The majority of them are independent non-
executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of our Directors and senior management and determine
on behalf of the Board specific remuneration packages
and conditions of employment for our Directors and senior
management. Remuneration will be determined by reference
to the duties and level of responsibilities as well as market
practice and conditions. None of the Directors themselves
approve their own remuneration.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy, assessed the performance of executive
Directors and reviewed the remuneration package of
the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of
the Remuneration Committee were held and all members
attended the meetings.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company. Terms of reference
adopted by the Board include the duties of the Board on
corporate governance functions to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management
and to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The attendance of individual members of the Board and other
Board Committees meetings for the financial year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the table below:

AGM
RRAFAE
Executive Directors HITEZS
Mr Chen Chang GELE(EEFSZRE)

(Chairman of the Board) 11
Mr Chen Guo Xiong BREELE (EZEDHLE)

(Vice Chairman of the Board) 0/1
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BkFLL n
Independent Non-executive BUFATES

Directors
Mr Chen Ping bR k& n
Mr Tian Xiao Ren AEgxE n
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah BEEERE 11

Chairman of the Board had a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Executive Directors (save as the chairman himself) during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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(C) Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department of the Group, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, IFRSs
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
and statutory requirements have been consistently complied
with. The Board aims to present a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and
interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

Directors’ Responsibility on the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and suitable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable;
and the financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 97 to
104 of this annual report.

Management had provided monthly updates to Directors for
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties.
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Independent Auditors
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration
paid or payable to the independent auditors, KTC Partners

B %A
RBE_F-_—F+_A=t+—BLFE 5Hf
TR AR B A5 3 9 98 32 4% BB NS & 5HAD E 75

CPA Limited, for services rendered is broken down below: FIERAGIMMEREMIT :
2021
—E-—F
HKD’000
FHE T
Audit services %R 1,280
Non-audit service FEAZ ER 75
— Working capital comfort letter on -HEMEENEER
major transaction-land sale B %é%i% 120
Total a&t 1,400
(D) Internal Controls and Risk Management (D) AEBEEHE R R b B

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the Group. The
Company has an internal audit department to ensure effective
internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system
of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group
achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems
and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The internal audit department conducts internal audit throughout
the year. The internal audit process includes conducting
supervision and examination on financial management and
contract management, identifying problems and overseeing the
rectification and correction of these problems, and reporting
to the Audit Committee and the Board any material issues
identified in the internal audit and the rectification and correction
thereof for their review.
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The Board has reviewed the internal audit report on
quarterly basis and assessed the effectiveness (according
to its magnitude and significance) of the Group’s internal
control system which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management functions during the year ended 31 December
2021. The Board is of the view that risk management and
internal control systems are adequate. No major risk was

identified which affect operation of the Group.

The Company is in strict compliance with the related
requirements of the Listing Rules, the SFO and the Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission. The Company discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable.
Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.

Company Secretary

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance with
the Company'’s Articles of Association and in compliance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. Biographical details
of the current Company Secretary is set out in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and senior management” on page
34 to 44 of this annual report. The Company Secretary has
complied with the professional training requirement as set out
in the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views
and shareholders may at any time submit their questions
and concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put to the
Board by contacting the Company Secretary through our
shareholders’ email at ir@zhujiang.com.hk. Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth of Company’s paid-up capital
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
related requisition deposited at the Company’s registered
office and addressing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
extraordinary general meeting will be held within 2 months
after the deposition of such requisition.

(E)

(F)
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Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director

Subject to the applicable laws and the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company may from
time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director. A shareholder may propose a
person for election as a Director by lodging the following
documents to the Board or Company Secretary at our Hong
Kong office at Unit 605-606, 6/F., Tower Ill, Enterprise Square,
No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong:
1) a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person
(with full name and biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules) for election as a Director; and
2) a notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected as a Director. Such notices shall be lodged at least
7 clear days before the date of the general meeting and the
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and shall be at
least 7 clear days in length.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantial separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.
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(G) Investor Relations and Communication With

Shareholders

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.pck.com.cn or http://pck.todayir.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted. A shareholder communication policy is in place to
ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to information of the Company. The policy is
available on the Company’s website.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings
for and on their behalf. The chairman of the Board as well as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available
at the AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 29 June 2022. The notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

The Company attended conferences, roadshows and media
interviews to keep the Shareholders and potential investors
informed of the latest development of the Group. The head
of investor relation will be the primary contact point for
communications with investors and analysts.
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The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year. The latest version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
posted on the Company’s website.

2021 Annual General Meeting

The Board is committed to the constructive use of the AGM
as a forum to meet shareholders. The chairman of the Board
and the chairmans of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and the external
auditors attended the 2021 AGM.

At the 2021 AGM, the Company proposed separate
resolutions on the issues considered. Resolutions passed
at the 2021 AGM were as follows: (i) received the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 together with the reports of the Directors and
auditors of the Company; (ii) re-elected Mr Chen Guo Xiong
and Ms Chen Zhao Nian as executive Directors, Mr Chen
Ping as independent non-executive Director and authorised
the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration; (iii) reappointed
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company and authorised
the Directors to fix its remuneration; (iv) approved a general
mandate for the Directors to allot and issue of new shares
of an amount not exceeding 20 per cent of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the 2021 AGM; (v)
approved a general mandate for the Directors to repurchase
shares of an amount not exceeding 10 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Company’s issued share
capital as at the date of the 2021 AGM; and (vi) extended the
general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company
to allot, issue, and deal with additional shares in the share
capital of the Company by an amount not exceeding the
amount of the shares repurchased by the Company. All
resolutions were passed by way of a poll conducted by the
Company’s registrar. The poll results of the 2021 AGM were
available on the Company’s website.
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The 2022 annual general meeting (“2022 AGM”") of the
Company will be held at 2/F., 3-5 Golden Dragon City
Yayun Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, The PRC on Wednesday, 29 June 2022 at 10:30
a.m.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2022 AGM and
exercise their rights to vote. Shareholders are invited to ask
questions relating to the business of the meeting. Details of
the resolutions to be considered in the 2022 AGM will be set
out in a circular to be sent out to the Shareholders together
with the 2021 annual report.

Others

Share Interests of Senior Management

As confirmed with the senior management of the Company,
they did not hold shares of the Company as at 31 December
2021.

Sufficiency of Public Float
The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2021.

Dividend Policy
In order to enhance transparency of the Company and
facilitate the shareholders of the Company and investors to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company,
the Board adopted a dividend policy on 28 March 2019
(“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether
to declare any dividend in the future and the amount of
dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a
number of factors, including but not limited to:

. the Group’s actual and expected financial results;

. the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company;

. the Company’s business operation strategy, including
expected working capital requirements, capital

expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

. the Company’s liquidity position;

(H)

U
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. retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the o ARRTEZBIFWE TR o B AR
Company;

«  the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends o HMARTERAREMEEEMNE @R
imposed by the Company'’s lenders and other institutions; REHE KRR &
and

« any other factors that the Board considers to be e EFETRRREAZEMNEMEE-

applicable from time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend RATDRAERITEENRE DB AISk DB o
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, BEZER EKNEREEBHESGHNERE-
payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the EXxeRBERRAKREBE-

Board’s discretion. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
on a regular basis.

ST EEERE BIRmARARAEERERAT 79



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HEREGHRE

The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which the Group operates and
continually enhances investment value to stakeholders through
proper and effective internal control systems and ESG risk
management measures throughout its operations. The Board
maintains oversight of and approves the identification and
assessment of ESG issues and confirms that to the best of its
knowledge, this report addresses the material topics related to the
operations of the Group and fairly presents its ESG performance
and impacts.

The Group’s management is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the compliance with local laws and regulations
with regards to ESG-related issues. The management is also
responsible for establishment of sustainability strategies, policies
and measures to implement sustainability initiatives, provide
sustainability reporting and prepare the ESG report.

This section is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) of the Listing Rules. The Board is pleased to present our
performance and progress on the environmental and social aspects
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

This ESG section would separate into two subject areas — (A)
environmental and (B) social and each subject area included
relevant aspects as follow:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to energy saving and environmental
protection. The Group is trying to keep the damage to the
environmental at a minimal level by reducing pollutants and
hazardous wastes during the manufacturing process and
ensuring our activities and operations are to be energy, water
and resources saving, and to prevent pollution, reduce wastes
and minimize the negative impacts on and harmonize with the
environment. The Group has set up procedures and systems
to comply with the rules and impose control on emissions.
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The Group is complying with the following laws and
regulations that are most relevant to the Group:

. Law of the PRC on the Environmental Protection* ( 7 %
AR EMBIRBREE) ;

o Law of the PRC on the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control* (FFEE A R £ MBS 1K) ;

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste* (fF # A R £ F1
BlE B EY s R2REN LX) ;

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air
Pollution* (#F ZE A R H A B K G05 24B5587%) ;

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution* (% A & 4t 71 B 18 35 4

A RBEZE)

«  Law of the PRC on the Energy Conservation* (FF & A &
HAEEF R BEIRE)

. Law of the PRC on the Cleaner Production Promotion*
(PEAREMBEBTREERER) ;

. Regulations on Environmental Protection Management of
Construction Projects* (#2278 5 BRIFREE B IE0) ;

. Measures for the Administration of Hazardous Waste
Transfer Forms* (& E W S5 B BE T IB 9% ) ;

. Regulations on the Safety Management of Hazardous
Chemicals* (ER{L 2R L2 ERIEH)
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A.1 Emissions

Types of emissions from the Group were mainly carbon
dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide etc emitted during operation
of production lines.

For the energy indirect emissions, the Greenhouse gases
(GHG) emissions associated with the electricity purchase in
PRC are provided by the relevant provider of electricity.

AEBFRYMERTIZEERNEERETHRSE
BE —Efbix TRk —8ta%-

FERERE A& E L EE Y m - NP B AT
BEENSRRERBHWER T HAMENH
FEm B

Quantity of CO, equivalent

purchased CO, equivalent emission

Industry’s region Emission factor electricity emissions per tonne
=3 R4

TEME HHEAEF BEEE _—StmEEFH EEHN
2021 2021 2021

B — —EB-—fF B —f

Electricity supplied by China 0.63 kg/unit (kwh) 49.8 million 31.4 million 69
kWh kg/kWh kg/kwh

hEHESE S 0.63F 5 /B (TRH) 49,800,000 31,400,000 69
T R FR/TEE T/ FRE

Hazardous wastes were produced during production including
waste oil, waste sludge, waste mineral oil, paint, paint
residue, waste grease, waste grease drum, waste paint drum,
waste emulsion drum, waste activated carbon, waste organic
solvent, waste developer, and fixer. Total hazardous waste
produced in 2021 was approximately 138 tonnes and 0.0003
tonnes of hazardous waste was produced for each tonne of
product.

Non-hazardous wastes were produced during production
including welding slag, iron filings, scrap steel. Total non-
hazardous waste produced in 2021 was approximately
3,516 tonnes and 0.008 tonnes of non-hazardous waste was
produced for each tonne of product.
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Emissions are proportional to the production level. Therefore,

total emissions in 2021 increased as compared to 2020.

However, the Group has implemented the policies to reduce

the emissions of carbon dioxide or greenhouse gas as follow:

1)

2)

3)

The design of factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is
allowing more natural light and ventilation in order to
reduce use of electricity;

Solar photovoltaic power generation equipment are
installed on the roof of the factories of Lianyungang
and Zhuhai factories in order to extend the use of clean
energy;

The light and equipment would be turned off during
luncheon rest time.

Treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes

1.

The Group has set up procedures in the collection,
storage, transportation and disposal of polluting wastes
to prevent scattering, draining, leakage. Authorization is
need for dumping, stacking, discarding or scattering the
wastes;

The Group has identified specific rubbish bins for
different types of wastes like scrap steel, industrial
wastes, domestic wastes, oil-bearing wastes, and
delivered the wastes to units with waste treatment
qualification for waste disposal or recycling;

The Group has strengthened training for employees to
enhance their skills and knowledge of handling waste;

Hazardous wastes are disposed to qualified and
designated institutions with special care.

The Group has received no cases of environmental pollution

or complaints in 2021.
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A.2 Use of Resources
The major resources used by the Group relates to electricity,
water, petrol and natural gas. The Group aims at and has
been reducing consumption of various resources. Resources
consumption by the Group during the year is listed in the
table below:

Resources Consumption
BRER

Electricity consumption
&

Water consumption
FEK

Petrol

2 H

Natural gas

RIARR

Packaging material

4R
Measures on efficient use of resources:

1. The Company will assess its staff to reduce the
environment impact from the major resources;

2. The design of factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is
allowing more natural light and ventilation in order to
reduce use of electricity;

3. The light and equipment would be turned off during
luncheon rest time;

4. Use of energy efficient lighting products;

5. Increase the awareness of employees on energy saving
by training.

Use of resources like electricity is proportional to the
production level. Therefore, electricity usage increased in
2021 as compared to 2020 as production increased.

A2 ERER
AEBEFANERIERED K JTURARRA
R-AKBEBNY -—BEFBERSERBRERER:
TREJFAREEERBEE:

Amount per

Total amount each tonne of
Unit in 2021 product in 2021
R=TB=—-%F R=B=—%F
B nys EWERYE
kWh 49.8 million 109
TR 49,800,000
Tons 338,000 0.74
Mg
Litre 167,000 0.36
9’_\_
M3 151,000 0.33
SFTOK
Tons 149 0.0003
g
BREAEIRABUR
1. BRTRIEZERVRENTE ANFe
HHEB THEITTZ

2. BEEERKEBIBMEMBBME AR LB
EE R LNZREEENNER:

3. MNFENRBEHBARAERRRE:

FEAENEEREAEKEREL -BREEN
BN R FNAEER S _ZFHM
e
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A.3

Water source

The water source that is fit for purpose of the Company
and is the running water supplied by the government which
guarantees reliable quality and supply. There has been no
suspension of water supply.

Water was consumed mainly for office general use,
hydrostatic pressure test and ultrasonic tests.

Measures to enhance water efficiency:

1. Reuse water for production use;

2. Use of water-saving taps and sanitary wares with sensor;

3. Increase awareness of employees on water saving by
training.

Water consumption efficiency was improved. Total water
consumption in 2021 reduced by 7% as compared with 2020.

Package material
The Group use packing rope, packing tape and dunnage for
packaging final products.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group endeavors to calculate the amount of materials
needed for our production based on the principle of minimizing
surplus materials. In addition, the Group puts in place a scrap
metal recycling mechanism to sell the wasted steel produced
in our process of production to recycling companies.
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A4

Climate Change

Extreme weather events are becoming more frequent and
severe, while tackling climate change has become a global
consensus. The Group has realized that climate change will
affect its business operations. The Group regularly reviews
global and local government policies, regulatory updates and
market trends to identify potential climate-related risks which
may have impact on the Group’s business operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there
are two major categories of climate-related risks, physical and
transition risks. Climate change can pose threats to the Group
such as business disruption, physical damage and rise in
operational costs due to severe and extreme weather events.
The Group has insurance policies in place to mitigate such
risks.

SOCIAL

Employment

The Group has committed in cultivating a good workplace
practice free from discrimination and providing equal
opportunities for all regardless of age, gender, race, colour,
sexual orientation, disability or marital status to increase
employee satisfaction.

The Group has also adopted principles in hiring new
employees regardless of colour, religion, gender, nationality,
race for selection, hiring, training, compensation and
promotion.

A4
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The Group has complied with the all the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including but not
limited to:

«  Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China {(FZE AR
HAALEE) |

«  Labour Contract Law of People’s Republic of China &
EARLNMBELEH S RE) ;

. Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REERROE ) ;

. Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.485
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our employment contract specified the terms including
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and
other benefits and welfare of our staff. The Group’s employee
handbook distributed to employees also includes information of
policies on compensation and dismissal, employment benefits,
rights on termination, business conduct and leave benefits.

In relation to 2021, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations
in to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
that have a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 862 (2020: 821)
employees. The demographics of the Group’s workforce was

as follows:

By gender
* male

« female

By age group
e 20-30
e 31-40
e 41-50
* 51-60
e 61 or above

By geographical location
* PRC
* Hong Kong

R-E-—F+-_A=+—H AEEHBET
862/ (T —THF:821%) - AEBHNE I HMH
BRI

Percentage of
each group
to total
employment

FABME AN
Btk
B
. Bk 75.9%
o it 24.1%
RFEE R
+ 202307% 14.5%
+ 31405 34.2%
« 41E505% 36.5%
+ 51%605% 13.2%
s 61pREIA L 1.6%
2 b [
o FEIRH 99.2%
- BE 0.8%

The following table shows the employee turnover rate by

gender and age group:

By gender
¢ male
« female

By age group
* 20-30
e 31-40
* 41-50
» 51-60
e 61 or above

By geographical location
¢ PRC
* Hong Kong

tag il

. Bk

=g

REERAER

+ 20%305%
+ 31Z405%
+ 41E505%
+ 51%605%
s BLliRE Ak

1zl

. REAM
. BB
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Turnover rate

MK =

77.1%
22.9%

26.8%
30.7%
28.8%
11.8%

1.9%

98.7%
1.3%
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B.2 Health and Safety B2 BEEZE

The Group has complied with the laws and regulations
and adopted the Health Safety and Environmental (“HSE”)
management policy, in an effort to prevent pollution, to ensure
people’s health and safety, and to promote sustainable
development. Our target is to achieve zero accidents, zero
injuries and zero losses in order to meet the international HSE
management standard.

The Group’s employees reside in the neighbourhood areas.
Within our plant zone, there are gardening landscape, fish
ponds and recreational facilities, which offer a comfortable
environment and a sports ground for our employees.

Occupational Safety

We have adopted the HSE risk identification, risk assessment
and control procedures to manage our occupational safety
risk. The Group’s management is responsible for organising
periodic risk identification and evaluation exercises, and
is responsible for sorting, aggregation and distribution of
relevant information, which includes the identification of risk
factors for occupational safety and health, risk assessment on
operating conditions, possibility of accidents, the formulation
of operational control procedures, contingency plans, safety
level standards, as well as training and education issues.

The Group has kept records and documents relating to risk
management, including the “Control procedures of the new,
rebuilding and extension projects”, “Risk sources identification
and risk evaluation form” and “List of major risks” for staff

reference.

The Group always finds great importance in occupational
safety and regularly provides training for staff. In 2021,
the Group hosted trainings and rehearsals in productions
bases for fire alert, so as to enhance safety awareness
and emergency response, and held hazards identification
programs and assemblies of risk management activities.
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Work-related injuries and fatalities of the Group for last three M=FAEERIETER:

years:
Work-related Work-related Working
injuries fatalities Proportion days lost
(individual) (individual) (%) (day)
ITEAE EIXTAE L BRIEBRH
Year F4 (A) (A) (%) (X)
2019 —E-hF 0 0.01 105
2020 —E-EHF 0.01 90
2021 —EB=—fF 0.01 85
B.3 Development and Training B.3 BEREI
Staff Development and Training BT /7 8%

Through meetings, trainings and notifications on notice board,
the Group promotes its safety philosophy and amiable working
environment among various departments and teams. We offer
our employees access to learning and understanding about the
Group, so that each employee and contractors of the Group
or visitors can recognize their responsibilities and obligations
in the aspect of improving the environment and enhancing
occupational health and safety performance. We make great
efforts on improving the environment and occupational safety.

Our adherence to the HSE management policy is a testimony
of the greatest commitment of the Group towards environment
and occupational health and safety. This policy is available
for review by employees at any time. In the year, the Group
further improved site management standards, achieved the
goal of dedicated management, and further promoted the 6S
management model in the Company. Project meetings were
kicked off in the production sites of Zhuhai and Lianyungang.

The Group endeavours to enhance the skills of each
employee in various aspects by providing staff trainings,
which include the “Weekly Star” and “Weekly Talk”. A wide
array of training courses is provided for employees to
strengthen their work-related knowledge and skills. Also, the
Group hosted an “advanced employee’s election”, whereby
each of the employees obtaining a certificate of honorary was
offered an outdoor training opportunity. To enable excellent
employees to take up management positions and to bolster
our team’s management capabilities, the Company also
organised the “team leader for production and management
training” courses during the year.
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The Group has set up a labour union to further promote
spiritual positive energy with various social activities.

To reinforce the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group,
a wide range of sport events are provided by the Group for its
employees every year, including basketball and table tennis
contests and a game of tug-of-war, etc. In addition, we have
provided activities that are of educational significance and
served to enhance the work performance of our employees,
including the “Business Oral English”, “Training and Assembly
for Fire”, “Sales Training”, “Joint Training and Team Building
Program for Financial Department”, and “Annual Sales
Meeting”, etc. The Zhuhai Company of the Group also
held the third quarter award ceremony of “Set an example
around you and consolidate the strength of the Company”.
The Company honored the advanced teams and individuals
emerging from various functions with great ceremony, and
called on all employees to learn from such advanced teams
and individuals. The Zhuhai Company also organized a warm
spring trip for the 8th March Women’s Day.

We encourage our employees to take an active part in local
community activities, including the “Green Enterprise Cup”
Table Tennis and Badminton Tournament of Panyu District
Youth Entrepreneur Association and the private enterprises
working concern group activities. Various events were held,
including the second “We Are Family-PCK” friendly wall
donation, the hike of female employees for the 8th March
International Women’s Day, the Lantern Festival Fair jointly
held by the Lianyungang base of Chu Kong Steel Pipe and the
Community Workstation of the Neighborhood Center of Xuwei
New Area, and the employee-oriented “1st May Caring Show”
organized by the Artistic Association of Zhuhai Trade Union.

Performance of professional trainings
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B.4

B.5

Labour Standards

The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (3 A R HEFEI& &)%) |, Labour Contract
Law of People’s Republic of China (F#E AR L MELEHE
[Fl7%) , the Law of the PRC on Prohibition of Using Child
Labour* (ZH{F A E T # F) and other relevant laws. The
Group has specified staff recruitment procedures which avoid
the recruitment of child labour and ensure the fulfilment of
entry requirements by recruited staff through examining their
identification card and certificate. The Company is required to
enter into written labour contracts with employees upon their
entry. There is no forced labour within the Group. The Group
has not employed any staff aged under 16.

Staff Code

The staff code of the Group is prepared based on the PRC
labour law and is in line with the national standards of
the PRC. The Group has also been providing its staff with
guidance in accordance with the national legislation.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained proven track records of high
production efficiency and timely delivery. We have established
deep and cordial relationships with our suppliers. The
Group keeps a list of qualified suppliers, whose appraisal is
based on their track record of compliance with international
standards and the Group’s past cooperation relationship with
them. The Group also consider factors such as compliance
with environmental requirements in our supplier vendor
assessment, selection and evaluation process.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has 1,477
suppliers which are located in the PRC.

B.4

B.5
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B.6

The Group has adopt the following procedures to select and
evaluates suppliers:

1. Evaluating their product quality and company background
including but not limited to the environment, health and
safety awareness;

2. Comparing historical level and test results of products;

3. Evaluating the standards of their products;

4. Evaluating their production capacity, delivery time and
stability, reputation, cost and services;

5. Inspecting the sample of purchased products fulfilling the
requirements;

6. Checking the products fulfilling the specific requirements
under the laws and regulations or supply contracts.

Product Responsibility

Product quality

With its state-of-art technology, equipment, management and
well-established reputation, the Group is dedicated to the
provision of high-quality products and services that satisfy
customers’ needs. Our product quality has met a number of
international standards. We are also the only domestic welded
steel pipe manufacturer being granted five honors, namely
the “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality of Metallurgical

Products”, “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of Metallurgical

Products”, “High and New Technology Enterprise”, “Province-

recognised Enterprise Technology Center”, and “National Key
New Products” and hosts a “Academician Workstation”. We
are the main drafter of the national standard for longitudinal
welded steel pipes in China. Meanwhile, with the setting up
of the “Post-doctoral Research Station” and “Academician
Workstation”, the Company strives to further enhance its

product quality and extend the application of its products.
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B.7

The Group strictly upholds the ISO9001 quality management
system. With the use of advanced testing equipment, and the
conduct of on-line and off-line testing as well as mechanical
and chemical properties testing, we inspect the products at
each production process stage in accordance with the best
product quality requirements through a myriad of tests, such
as steel ultrasonic testing, ultrasonic welding detection, weld
X-ray inspection system, hydrostatic testing and flattening
test. Upon obtaining post-test data, we will make a rigorous
analysis on product quality, so as to ensure that each product
meets customer requirements. We have built a testing
center in compliance with the national standards, and the
center has been recognised by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS). The Group’s
testing center is equipped with a wide variety of laboratory
equipment, including universal materials testing machine, low
temperature impact material testing machine, drop weight
tear test (DWTT) machine, hydrogen induced cracking (HIC)
testing, sulfide stress corrosion cracking (SSC), crack tip
opening displacement (CTOD) test, computer-controlled
chemical composition vacuum direct reading spectrometer
and microscope. Achieving six standards, our measuring
chamber has passed through the 1SO10012: 2003 AAA
measurement management system certification. This proves
that our measuring instruments are of high qualification
and effectiveness. The Group’s testing centre has passed
the “National safety quality standardisation” and obtained
the “TUV SUD Metal Materials Laboratory Accreditation
Certificate”. Our products, an unfailing symbol of quality,
are blessed with unparalleled reputation in the international
market under the “PCK” brand. In 2021, return of products
sold or delivered due to safety and health reasons was zero.
The Group would repair the products to customers if there are
problems.

Anti-corruption

The operation of various departments of the Group is in
compliance with legal regulations and legislations. We
have established a whistle blowing policy, which enables
our employees to express their views to the management
anonymously. In 2021, the Group did not encounter any
corruption procedures or cases.

B.7
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE HEREARS

B.8 Community Investment

Contribution to the Community

The Group has been playing an active role in charitable
activities in Panyu, Guangdong Province, China and other
regions in which we operate. With the organisation of a
couple of educational, sports, cultural and charitable activities,
we promoted the exuberance of Guangzhou City, thus
enhancing foreign interest in Guangzhou and fostering urban
development. These activities included:

. Sponsoring Panyu District “PCK Cup” 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Table Tennis Contest

. Sponsoring Zhujiang “PCK Cup” 1st and 2nd World Go
Team Championships

. Sponsoring “Golden Dragon City Cup” 1st and 2nd
Dragon Boats Championships

. Sponsoring the 9th Table Tennis Competition of “Mayor’s
Cup” of Guangzhou

. Exclusively supporting the 2nd National Calligraphy
Poster Exhibition and Invited Exhibition, to promote the

art of calligraphy and inherit national cultures.

In addition, the Group also participated in the assessment by
the government and other organisations. We participated in:

. Supporting the events related to Chinese Bonsai Art
organized by the Flower Bonsai Society of China

. Supporting the events organized by Baiyue Art
Association of Panyu District

. “Panyu District Mayor Quality Award Assessment
Management Approach” granted with the Quality Award

by the provincial government

. “Guangdong Enterprise with integrity”
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HEREGHRE

The Group has also encouraged its employees to actively
participate in community activities in Guangdong Province,
including:

. Participating the seventh “Guangzhou’s Mayor Cup” for
table tennis tournament sponsored by Chu Kong Steel
Pipe Group

. Joining the photographic contest arranged by the district

. Participating the “Charity Hiking” activity arranged by the
City of Guangzhou

. Arranging a “Paternity Day” on the Nation’s Day

. Arranging the “Mid-Autumn Celebration” activity

. Joining the “International Dragon Boat” competition
arranged by the City of Guangzhou

. Participating in the Charity Projects of Guangzhou
Association of Women Entrepreneurs

. Participating in the poverty alleviation activities organized
by Guangzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce,
Guangzhou Women’s Federation, Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs and District
Federation of Industry and Commerce

. Participating in the poverty alleviation projects organized
by Guangdong Women And Children’s Foundation,
Guangzhou Women’s Federation and Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs

Charity Fund

In April 2013, the Group established a charitable fund, named
as the “Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. — Blessing
Charity Fund”, aiming to improve the living environment of
single mothers and orphans and assisting single mothers for
seeking job. The Group donates certain amount of money to
the fund every year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBEMRE

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

MESHMEBEMERLF]

To the shareholders of Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas
Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chu
Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
105 to 250, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. In addition
to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going
concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBEMRE

Key audit matter

BREREHR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Y RS R AR BB E

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded property, plant
and equipment with a net book value of RMB1,874,309,000,
among which RMB1,871,229,000 represented property, plant
and equipment of the steel pipes segment. During the year,
the steel pipes segment recorded a profit of RMB400,289,000
which was mainly due to the gain on land resumption of
RMB1,540,336,000. The steel pipes segment recorded a
loss of RMB1,140,047,000 when excluding the gain on land
resumption, which indicated possible impairment of the non-
current assets included in the steel pipes segment
RZB_—S+_A=+—H E5EHEEDE BERIXER

EFE R AR1,874,309,0007T ' Hf1 A R #1,871,229,0007T
REE DI YER -BERERE-FA-BEDBEEENAR
#400,289,0007T * &= Z Ty T b Ui Es AE%lmowsmo
TC e HHE D E 8RS 518 A R #51,140,047,0007T (B FE £ b U
Was) - BBRE D E 2 IEREEE ] e IR RE -

Management estimated the recoverable amounts of these
property, plant and equipment using the value-in-use model.
The estimated value in use was dependent on management’s
determination on the Group’s future events and its measures
to improve its efficiency of cash flow management,
macroeconomic assumptions about future demands of steel
pipe products, the discount rate and exchange rates as well
as the production levels and operating costs. These estimates
were particularly significant due to the uncertain economic
outlook, product price volatility, forecasted future production
and market demand. The outcome of impairment assessment
can vary significantly when different assumptions are applied.

ERERRAEREERAMGAZEYE HELRENTEKRS
B EAEERARNEEEHEREARFEHNINEARS
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%Z%mnﬁ%ﬁ%%&*%%?Z%ﬁ%@@“

IR RERAREENRKT REEKARZRTE - BREER =
EmERES AARREERDSERTEE ZFFELA
BZRoFEN L ERTETEEATRBEMERNBEER -

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Summary of
significant accounting policies”, note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates” and note 13 “Property, plant and
equipment” to the financial statements.

EREERHNY BRI 242 [E 2 BERBE] 7332
[BEE gt HET RMer] RWET132 [ME  FE k&l -

TR FFEWRS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMTEERRERSRE

We performed the following procedures to address this
matter:

FEEEHRITIA TR 7 ABR UL R8

. Reviewed the management’'s assessment on the
recoverability of these assets and the reasonableness
of the judgements and estimates used by the
management in the value-in-use calculations made by
the independent valuer;

- HHEBEEBYRFEENATREENGE UREEE
B LB RN ETT 2 B ERT & A B &y A B &
A EME

. Discussed the indication of possible impairment
with the management and, where such indication
were identified by the management, assessed the
impairment testing performed by the management;

e HEBENBASALRNRETR WEEERREH
TR AEERBETHRMERR:

. Tested the cash flows projections on whether they
were agreed to the budgets approved by the directors
of the Company and compared with actual results
available up to the report date;

- AHBReRERARLE SARESLENEE -
WEEZREAHNERERETHR:

. Challenged the appropriateness of the management
judgements and estimates used in the cash flows
projections, including the sales growth rates and gross
profit margins;

o HRSAMEBWADEANEIREHE RETOEE LR
HER BREEEERIREMNE:;

. Engaged an independent expert to assist us in
challenging the discount rates adopted in the value-in-
use calculations by reviewing its basis of calculations
and comparing the input data to market sources;

. %Wﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%%iLL%@Aﬁ KRR A
BEETIS AR REREREER $%%Wﬁﬁ$:

. Engaged the independent expert to assist us in
assessing the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and checked
on sample basis, the accuracy and the relevance of
the input data adopted in management’'s value-in-use
calculations; and

- ZEBUIERMBEZAEMEAGEETERBRRE
WEEN WARMET AR ER B EERAEERRK
R ABUR ) EREE R AERE M &

. Assessed the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in
the Group’s financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B

Key audit matter

BREREHR

Impairment of trade receivables

B ENIFEZLZ B E

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables
of gross carrying amount of RMB508,402,000, of which
impairment of RMB13,516,000 was provided.
RZBEZ—F+_R=1—H E45EAGESRKERZEAL
{8 AR %508,402,0007T * HH AR #13,516,0007T 2 1 H A (B #
1o

The calculation of the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for
trade receivables, including the assessment of the historical
observed default rates and forecast economic conditions
involves significant management judgements and estimates.
AEHESRWRFZESGERE ([FEHEEFE]) (B1EF
HETERINBEARRFEALERR) P RERNHEEREH
i R fEt e

Specific factors which management would consider include
the ageing of the balances, past collection history and
other available information related to the forecast economic
conditions. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
EEEBEENABAEOEABRR BE KT RESN
Hih BBRALEGRMHONEN -TRREEBEZ SEHRFE(L
Ko FEOBI A B R 8 R U

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Summary of
significant accounting policies”, note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates” and note 22 “Trade and bills
receivables” to the financial statements.

FHABEHNV BRI 242 [FE2SHBEME] W32
[BZestHE KAt ] k222 B SRR REWER] -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMTEERRERSRE

We performed the following procedures to address this
matter:
EEEHITU TR ABAR LRI RE

. Reviewing and assessing the application of the
Group’s policy for calculating the ECL;
- BHKIME ESEFEEHEEEEBRRNER:

. Evaluating techniques and methodology adopted
by the management in the ECL model against the
requirements of IFRS 9;

- BREBEEMHBRELENFIRNFTE FHEIEEN AL
EEBEEL P RB ORI R

. Assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing whether there was
an indication of management bias when recognising
loss allowances;

- HAEEEYUBEBELTNSGEL FEAEREER

AR ERABNER  SFARELZOBIEN

R SR R BB R D AREE AL &1 N AR

MERETHEHENAR UREAVBRFELHENER

BE HEERAEERERESEERERANTR

TE]

. Inquiring management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end
and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as understanding on-
going business relationship with the customers based
on trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence with
the customers; and

e MNEEBSHRNFRARERSZEAHNERE S ERKETD
BRUTATHEEZEEEENRE IOREES
THTREZFOBEEBRE REEFPNELRIE
BRrETHEAREEFOEMBH: R

. Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 to
the underlying financial records and post year-end
settlement to bank receipts.

s DHMEFAREBE_ZT-_—F+TA=1T—H®HESH
JE T R R 0 B e 15 50 BRAR B B TS RS B I SR AR A AR VAR
7Y
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBEMRE

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 March
2021.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% BIED R 5

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the s YHEERAFALCEHEROREMIELAR
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit WIREFMEHNEZEE AEREFEEEHFK
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists EREEHERNTREES MAH EEEGE
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt MENENENEARE - NREERAEGTHAE
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we ANIAHEFE M RN EEZEMBRETIREF A
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to EHEIGEMBRERTPOAEREER BRESR
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures BEEANTR AESALEAFERBERY
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures ZHMBE EENEREERNBEZEAMERS
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are HIEFTREEZERE A %ﬂi%ﬁ@ﬂ%?ﬁi
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our AREEHESETRBESELE -

auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the o EGEUBRERNERIHRAN LEERAD
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, PREBEBEEMN UREE Eﬂ%#&?\%mé’&ﬁ f B
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent HEXSREHE-.

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the . ?ﬁﬁ%@jiiﬁgﬁﬁi%i‘%%%ﬂé’\]ﬁﬂ‘“ﬁ*ﬁgﬁiﬁ“‘
financial information of the entities or business activities ENEZERE UNHGEMBmERERER -
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated EZEAEES EERVTEBEERZ - EEHE
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, ZERAEZHE

supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other EEHERLZEEBIEEREE HHELH &
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant AEZEREZE BRERESFNEZHMB A LRI
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal PRSI B E T E R ERPA o

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we EENMNERZZESRREN HBAESEHFEEHE
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding BYEMEREEER TEFESBEBMAEAEME
independence and to communicate with them all relationships RESTESERIMNBRREMEIE & (HER)
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our EREUERBENITEI S FTERMN G-

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

SR EEEES WIRMAARAERRERAT 103



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB AR S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Chow Yiu Wah, Joseph
Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number: P04686

Hong Kong

29 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
CREE

Year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ-ZT-—F+-FA=+—HILF5E

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ik=s ARBTR ARET T

REVENUE A 5 1,813,370 1,141,807
Cost of sales SHE B AR (1,617,854) (935,120)
Gross profit E5 195,516 206,687
Other income and gains g PN 5 1,580,778 1,911,272
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (52,906) (34,808)
Administrative expenses THREA (263,635) (287,638)
Exchange loss, net PESEE FRE (33,476) (120,098)
Finance costs Bl & pR AR 8 (144,253) (475,384)
Fair value loss on investment properties wREMEZ N FEEE 7 (17,000) (20,000)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ % i &= MR & 2 B E 7 (596,765) -
Other expenses E & A 6 (376,014) (300,702)
Share of loss of a joint venture N /NE - = 19 (15,020) (2,668)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B A1 32 Al 7 277,225 876,661
Income tax expense Frieii& R 11 (371,579) (253,750)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, AAEHE AR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF EFEE (BB &R

THE COMPANY (94,354) 622,911
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEEERBAX

Year ended 31 December 2021 #E==Z=-—F+=-F=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 ARBTR ARET T

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EATEE AEML

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF KEE (FEB) a5F

THE COMPANY (94,354) 622,911
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit2mEWaE (F18)

INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income that REEHBTREER S EE RN

may be reclassified to profit or Hoh 2 e

loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of WEIINEEBEENE L EZE

foreign operations 67,149 189,906
Net other comprehensive income that REBERETEEN S BEEERN

may be reclassified to profit or Hih 2= F5E

loss in subsequent periods 67,149 189,906
Other comprehensive loss that will not REBEHREETEN S BEERN

be reclassified to profit or Hth2HEEE:

loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BRERRNBMBHREZINEEEED

the Company’s financial statements into MEH A=

the presentation currency (3,974) (11,091)

Net other comprehensive loss that will not ~REEHREEITEFTHOBEERTHN

be reclassified to profit or Ht2mEBFE
loss in subsequent periods (3,974) (11,091)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRNKRHBHEAEMZEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 63,175 178,815
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE KATBEEBAELRER
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR, 2 (FE) W88
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (31,179) 801,726
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE KATBEEAEGER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF (E518) B
THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted B #E RMB RMB
AR¥E AR
12 (0.09) ;& 0.627T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT ARBEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE BB MR E 13 1,874,309 2,530,037
Investment properties wEME 16 370,000 387,000
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 661,172 1,031,276
Long term prepayments and deposits REBEBNRBERES 17 61,494 75,679
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERRIZERE 19 = 10,510
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 2,966,975 4,034,502
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BEREAPYE 14 2,255,293 2,064,560
Completed properties held for sale B REEME 15 385,203 365,422
Inventories FE 21 416,885 415,709
Trade and bills receivables H 5 W BRI M ERRIE 22 503,106 511,538
Prepayments, other receivables and TE AT FRIE - H At B U 5k IE
other assets HiEE 23 1,125,353 1,003,330
Due from a related party JiE W Ba B 75 3R IA 39 - 84,522
Pledged and restricted bank balances 2R & PR B8R 1T 45 8 24 249,719 22,712
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEY 24 20,588 19,466
4,956,147 4,487,259
Assets classified as held for sale NEARFIELENEE 32 = 19,767
Total current assets REBEEAE 4,956,147 4,507,026
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Trade and bills payables EORNERRENZE 25 1,289,635 614,511
Other payables and accruals E b ER RIBRERE A 28 693,026 782,666
Contract liabilities CR =N 27 1,351,558 1,286,986
Fixed rate bonds and notes EBEHREE 30 88,930 33,903
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3t 2R1TREMEE 26 881,394 2,178,336
Due to a director JENZEERIA 39 449,111 80,768
Tax payable FETBIR 25,844 417,928
Provision B 29 30,488 54,579
4,809,986 5,449,677
Liabilities directly associated with the assets Hi5 B A EHENEE
classified as held for sale BEERENAE 32 - 7,552
Total current liabilities wBEEERE 4,809,986 5,457,229
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE (816 FE 146,161 (950,203)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRDESR
LIABILITIES 3,113,136 3,084,299

TR FFEWRS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE PR R

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2021 2020
—E-—F B
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Due to a director Bt EERIE 39 = 50,000
Fixed rate bonds and notes EBEHERE 30 = 114,608
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T BIRTRHEMEE 26 839,905 1,373,109
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 20 349,578 353,876
Long-term tax payable RHFERTIA 1 767,930 -
Government grants I # BG 31 330,207 336,011
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEERE 2,287,620 2,227,604
Net assets BEFE 825,516 856,695
EQUITY %
Equity attributable to owners of KRBEBAEBEESR
the Company
Issued capital EEITRA 33 88,856 88,856
Reserves & 34 736,660 767,839
Total equity B 825,516 856,695

CHEN CHANG
[Sg=
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GABERBDE

Year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ-ZT-—F+-FA=+—HILF5E

Attributable to owners of the parent

RAGERAEE
Asset Exchange
Issued Share  revaluation  Contributed Capital Statutory ~ Accumulated  fluctuation
capital premium* reserve® surplus* reserve* reserve fund* losses* reserve* Total
AE Ex
BRARA  ROEE*  EfRE* BB ALEE AEQEE  RHER RIRE g

RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'00D ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETTE  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

(Note 33) (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Hi5t33) (FrsF@)  (FEm) (W)
At 1 January 2020 W-2-%%-8-8 88,856 767,097 616,740 224,589 53,934 165276 (1,664,502) (197,021) 54,969
Profit for the year REREN - - - - - - 622,911 - 622,911
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AFEEH {2 E Y%
Exchange differences on translation of FENEEBEANERZR
foreign operations - - - - - - - 189,906 189,906
Exchange differences related to the AR BRRAE RS
translation of the Company’s financial ERELNERES
statements into the presentation currency - - - - - - - (12,091) (11,091)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2ENFLE - - - - - - 622,911 178,815 801,726
Transfer of retained earnings el - - - - - 110,247 (110,247) - -
Transfer of asset revaluation reserve upon  E1HEMELER EREE
the sale of relevant properties Bl - - (4,079) - - - 4,079 - -
At 31 December 2020 WZE-ZE+-A=1+-8 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 275,523 (1,147,759) (18,206) 856,695
Attributable to owners of the parent
DAHBAER
Asset Exchange
Issued Share  revaluation  Contributed Capital Statutory ~ Accumulated fluctuation
capital premium* reserve’ surplus* reserve* reserve fund* losses* reserve* Total
BEARA  RAEE EREE"  EREH AFEE EEABE  RHER RBEEG fast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Note 33) (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(3¥33) (Ms@)  (Mskw)  (HEC)
At 1 January 2021 W-E--%-f-H 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 275,523 (1,147,759) (18,206) 856,695
Loss for the year XEEBE - - - - - - (94,354) - (94,354)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ RAEEH {2 FYH
Exchange differences on translation of ~ FTESNEEKELHNEL £
foreign operations - - - - - - - 67,149 67,149
Exchange differences related to the RAHBERAE L]
translation of the Company's financial MEEE’J[R%%E
statements into the presentation currency - - - - - - - (3,974) (3,974)
Total comprehensive income for the year A& E 2 El& f@%ﬁ - - - - - - (94,354) 63,175 (31,179)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHIEA - - - - - (1,338) 1,338 - -
At 31 December 2021 WZEZ-5+Zf=1+-8 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274,185  (1,240,775) 44,969 825,516
# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an # ERVXERSEFEARATEINENREMER
owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair EXEEBGHEE-
value.
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBREEREREAUBHARRPEARBARE
RMB736,660,000 (2020: RMB767,839,000) in the consolidated 736,660,0007T (=T =Z 4 : AR¥767,839,0007T) °

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERZBER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #E==Z=-—F+=-F=+—HIFE

Note:

(@)

(b)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation before the Company listed on
the Stock Exchange in 2010, and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

Capital reserve represents the excess capital paid over the registered
capital of PCKSP (Zhuhai) by Lessonstart Enterprises Limited.

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC
are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after
tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve
fund. When the balance of an entity’s reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
the registered capital. However, such balance of the statutory reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital after such usage.

B

()

(b)

(©)
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A RIEEEEEMKEHNEQ RN OEERAR
AFTEITAMER RO EENEZRE -

EARBEANEZEEERARINNELABRSE
BIRTHE () EMERNESHE -

BEHEARKME ([HE])RRE RAARHE
AMEM B AR BERBEFEEEFHEN (HHEB
FEEENEAEBER) NI ENEEATES - EQE
SHESRE - EEREMELRNS0%E  AJEEETTH
BRALELNE ZERAERAIANEHBEFES
BoSEMEMER-AM SEEREEAR LM
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

MERENER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ-ZT-—F+-FA=+—HILF5E

FLOWS

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREBT ARBFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHFMBRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B A5 A1 i A 277,225 876,661
Adjustments for: BTIEERE:
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEME ARz W 5 (11,728) -
Finance costs L= IR 8 144,253 475,384
Share of loss of a joint venture ER—REAEAREE 19 15,020 2,668
Bank interest income HRITH BUA 5 (2,576) (715)
Government grant income T 4 Bl A 5 (13,193) (14,092)
Gain on resumption of land use rights i REREA LA
to the local authorities & B UE R 5 (1,540,336) (1,864,709)
Gain on cancellation of a derivative BUBSTA s T A/
financial instrument - (3,724)
Write-down of inventories to MR TFEZE R 2 FE
net realisable value 6 11,443 -
Depreciation of property, W -BEREETE
plant and equipment 13 50,051 98,748
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 18 28,089 29,577
Impairment of property, plant and M- BEREHRE
equipment 596,765 -
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets EEFTREEERRE 292,780 -
Loss on disposal of property, BEWE WERZEBE-
plant and equipment, net FHE 9,425 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y - WE KR EMUR 78 -
Fair value loss on investment properties wEMEZ N EEE 16 17,000 20,000
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B ZEWERRORE, CRERE)
trade receivables, net FRE 22 7,183 (12,884)
Impairment of other receivables H Ath JE W FRIB R B 23 = 27,222
(118,521) (365,864)
Increase in inventories FEIEM (12,619) (198,255)
Increase in properties TR AP E LN
under development (190,733) (241,596)
(Increase)/decrease in completed SERFFE W (3gm) R
properties held for sale (19,781) 18,555
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 e WBR B R e W = B
bills receivables B, (1) 1,249 (316,961)
Increase in prepayments, other TERTFRIE -« H M E YR IE
receivables and other assets H & B g0 (979,766) (270,467)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged and BRI R RGBT
restricted bank balances ($m) L (227,007) 142,114
Increase in trade and bills payables BEORNERRENZE
Zn 675,124 234,669
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities, AREE HMERFRIE R
other payables and accruals JEFtER (L) 18 (10,919) 1,017,112
(Decrease)/increase in provision B ) /g m (24,091) 54,579

TR FFEWRS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERETREBR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #E==Z=-—F+=-F=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 ARBTR ARET T

Cash generated from operations KEEERS® (907,064) 73,886
Interest received 2 W F B 5 2,576 715
Interest paid 2RFE 18 (109) (654)
Corporate income tax paid ENEERER (31) (7)
Land appreciation tax paid AT T I E = (2,565)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHELBRESRETFHE (904,628) 71,365
CASH FLOWS FROM REZHFBRERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWMZE WELLZHEEE

plant and equipment (37,801) (28,613)
Purchases of items of right-of-use assets BESHAEEEEE (31,162) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWME WER&ZEHEEBEBAMRSE

property, plant and equipment IR 51,395 12,680
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEHEB AT 35 8,511 4,743
Decrease in an amount JE Uiz R B 05 SR IEDRL

due from a related party 84,522 -
Receipt of government grants W BRI 4 B 31 7,389 8,188
Receipt of compensation for land resumption W ER + 3 U % 2 78 B 7% 2,479,109 1,665,000
Net cash flows from investing REZHEBEERETFHE

activities 2,561,963 1,661,998
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ-ZT-—F+-FA=+—HILF5E

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Note RMB'000 RMB'000

=3 ARBTR ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM METDHRSRTRE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings IR ITERREMEE 2,115,354 947,026
Repayment of bank loans and BEERRITERREMER

other borrowings (3,940,562) (2,388,165)
Proceeds from issue of bonds BEITEHMSNIA 1,662 -
Repayment of bonds BEES (57,912) (28,912)
Interest paid 2RFE (144,144) (304,528)
Increase/(decrease) in an amount due to R EEREL M, Cld)

a director 318,343 (8,089)
Principal portion of lease payments MENRZ2AEEH (1,897) (2,470)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEZFEBHFFARESRETHE (1,709,156) (1,785,138)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRREZEYRDZ

CASH EQUIVALENTS (51,821) (51,775)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net JMEF| K& &) 7 g 2 % E 52,943 12,656
Cash and cash equivalents FYRERBAEEED

at beginning of year 19,466 58,585
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRREEEY

AT END OF YEAR 20,588 19,466
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEEBWHEBRIN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re MRITER 24 20,588 19,466
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 January 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes and the
provision of related manufacturing services

. property development and investment

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Bournam Profits
Limited (“Bournam”), which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

Place and date

RAREEER
KIAMAKARMEZERER LA ([KAF])
RZZZENE-ANBRBFRAEFEE(F22E
REVE(—NAR—F B3I AEN KR E RIEFT)
ERESHETAMALIRERRNBRAR AR
A 5 9% = B 2 #b 4k & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

ARBAREMBAR (AR AKE])TENRS

AT EREE:

s HEMHERRRERWEREHMBBRE
AR 75

. MEERKEKE
EERR ARANERRAAREFEERIAR

Bournam Profits Limited ([Bournam |) * 5% 2 A

MR B R B B M AR

ERHMEBLARZER
ARBEEZMBRBZFHBEOT

Company name

ARER

Lessonstart Enterprises
Limited
NMNEEEBERLQA

Lucknow Consultants Limited

of incorporation/
establishment
and place of
operations
AR B R
AR ERBE

British Virgin Islands
KEEXEE

British Virgin Islands
REEREE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
Iregistered
share capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

BRTZER EARE
S RAEE REBDHE TEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE ) &
% %
US$300 100 — Investment holding
300% T KREEK
Us$10 - 100 Investment holding
10%7T KREEK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AIREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BARNE AR ZER (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARBIEEMBAT ZFBEWT: (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value of
issued ordinary

Percentage of

and place of Iregistered equity attributable
Company name operations share capital to the Company  Principal activities
HM RIS R BRATEER EARE
NCIEE BHURE R R A EE REBD L TEXHR
Direct Indirect
HE ) &
% %
Crown Central Holdings Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Trading of steel
Limited HE 1,000/ 7T pipes
KPEBERAT HEES
Chu Kong Steel Pipe Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
Group Co., Ltd. B 100,000/ 7T and trading of
KIMESEEERAA steel pipes
REZERREEE
Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ HK$1,937,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP") Mainland China 1,937,500,000/% 7T sale of welded
EBWIMEARRAR B B A steel pipes
([HEBHRIHE]) HERHEE
BREENE
Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ HK$5,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Petrol-Fittings Co., Ltd. Mainland China 5,000,000/ 7T sale of petrol
BMZ A A E FEL B A fittings
BERDA HERHEALEHS
Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ HK$21,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
OCTG Co., Ltd. Mainland China 21,000,0007 7T sale of oil country
BNZHAGHRES R E R A tubular goods
ERAT BiE Ry
AHEEM

TR FFEWRS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AIREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BARNE AR ZER (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARBIEEMBAT ZFBEWT: (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value of
issued ordinary

Percentage of

and place of Iregistered equity attributable
Company name operations share capital to the Company  Principal activities
HM RIS R BRTEER EARE
NCIEE B R &£ S RAEE REBD L TEXHR
Direct Indirect
HE ) &
% %

Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ HK$10,000,000 - 100 Steel pipe casing
Petroleum Steel Pipe Mainland China 10,000,000/ 7T and lining services
Coating Co., Ltd. HEL B A WEHER

BMEZ TR0 A E R B2 B RS
BRAR

Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ HK$50,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Petroleum Steel Pipe Mainland China 50,000,000/ 7T sale of welded
Co., Ltd. R B A steel pipes

BME TR A m g HERHE
BT BHEEEE

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ RMB1,110,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR #1,110,000,0007T sale of welded
(“PCKSP (Lianyungang)”) R E R B A steel pipes

ERHIHE (EEB)ERAA HERHEE

(IBESWIME EEH)]) BREENE

Guangzhou Panyu Chu The PRC/ RMB20,600,000 - 100 Steel pipe casing
Kong Hualong Petroleum Mainland China AR #20,600,0007T and lining services
Steel Pipe Anti-Corrosion B A B o R B
Co., Ltd. ("Hualong ZERD

Anti-Corrosion”)
BMTESR IEREAREE
BEARLA ([EEME])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AIREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BARNE AR ZER (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARBIEEMBAT ZFBEWT: (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Nominal value of

establishment

issued ordinary

Percentage of

and place of Iregistered equity attributable
Company name operations share capital to the Company  Principal activities
HM RIS R BRATEER EARE
NCIEE BHURE R R A EE REBD L TEXHR
Direct Indirect
HE ) &
% %

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ HK$1,088,402,072 - 100 Manufacture and
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. Mainland China 1,088,402,072/& 7T sale of welded
(“PCKSP (Zhuhai)") B B A steel pipes

ERWIME (KEB)ARAT RERHE

(IBESWIME (KE)]) BREENE

Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy The PRC/ RMB470,000,000 - 100 Manufacture
Equipment Technology Mainland China AR #470,000,0007T and sale of steel
Co., Ltd. (“Kaidi") L L A pipe equipment

BEBYIHEINEERADA and metallurgy

(rels1) equipment
BERHEHER
Rip

Lianyungang Pearl River The PRC/ HK$303,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Petrol-Fittings Co., Ltd. Mainland China 303,000,000/ 7T sale of tubular

BEBDHRARICE N FEL B A piles
BERDA HERHEEN

Guangdong Pearl Steel The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property
Investment Management Mainland China A R #50,000,0007T development and
Co., Ltd. (“Pearl Steel BB A investment
Investment”) MERERIRE

BERAMREERBRAA
([H#MEE])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Company name

NRHH

Nanjing Rongyu Group Co., Ltd.

(“Nanjing Rongyu Group”)
MRAMEEER AR
([AARAREE])

Nanjing City Qixia Hill Roll
Steeling Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing City Qixia Hill")

mRmEE L EERAR

(MAxmEEL])

Chu Kong Steel Pipe
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd.
KIME (BR)BRAF

Guangzhou Zhu Gang Property
Management Co., Ltd. (“Zhu
Gang Property Management”)

BN EEEER LA

(AWM EER])

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of
operations

HM RIS R
B R &£

The PRC/
Mainland China
BB A

The PRC/
Mainland China
R B A

The PRC/
Mainland China
FE R B A

The PRC/
Mainland China

hE BN

1. REAREEESN (®)

ERMEARZER (8)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
Iregistered
share capital

BRITEER

AfMRAEE

RMB75,000,000
AR #75,000,0007C

RMB20,316,500
AR #20,316,5007C

HK$30,000,000
30,000,0007% 7T

RMB5,000,000
A K #5,000,0007T
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Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

A FER
REBESL
Direct Indirect
HiE %
% %
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

ARATEEMBARZABMT  (8)

Principal activities

TEEH

Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel products

BERHEE
BREEMMER

Manufacture and
sale of
screw-thread
steels

S N HH S B AU

Manufacture and
sale of welded
steel products

SENIHE
BRIEERMED

Property management

MEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER (8
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BARNE AR ZER (8)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARBIEEMBAT ZFBEWT: (&)
follows: (Continued)
Place and date
of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment issued ordinary Percentage of
and place of Iregistered equity attributable
Company name operations share capital to the Company  Principal activities
HM RIS R BRTEER EARE
NCIEE B R &£ S RAEE REBDHE TEXHR
Direct Indirect
BE ) &
% %
Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Port services
Co., Ltd. (“Zhugang Wharf”) Mainland China AR #10,000,0007T BORE
HKEKMS AR AR AT L A
(TZREMASEE )
Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ RMB1,000,000,000 - 100 Sale of welded steel
(Yunfu) Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR #1,000,000,0007C pipes
HIlE (BF)ERAH FEL B A HERREEZERE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

TR FFEWRS

2.1

ERENEERRIBZEFNEEIBRAEASE
BEEFENIERDZARAMBARRE:
E=ZRRIHLEMHBARFBEEEEIIRB

RITK

LR

ZEVBRRIRIEABRSAENEETSRM
MBERM B REERREBRBGRI 2 RERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 IREEXE (@)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 IREEXE (@)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Going concern basis

The Group recorded a consolidated loss of RMB94,354,000.
When excluding the gain on land resumption of
RMB1,540,336,000, the Group would recorded a loss of
RMB1,445,982,000. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded net current assets of RMB146,161,000 (2020:
net current liabilities of RMB950,203,000). In view of these
circumstances, the directors of the Company have considered
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern.

TR FFEWRS

RER%E (&)
WMAEBAEZEIEBR R ZEH#E AL IEER
(WZHBARZEE (BERME)REE  ()E
R FEIR R kS 2 BRTE (B I (i) RIS Nt ik 2 B
SHEE S =% MR SRR B Z 2FE (i)
REBEMEE 2 A FER()BERERNELE
EZRBREB-LAEREMEEKARER
ZAREEEESSEN BRI LEBTEN (I
BMA) EEHASEEELERMEESLEBE
i AR -

KREEEEERE EE ARE4,354,0007T « & T
BT £ i U Uk 25 A R #51,540,336,0007T BF - AR &
#5815 BB A R #1,445,982,000 - A = F
T F+ZA=1+—H AEEHEFSRDEETF
EARM146,161,0007T (ZE =T F : RE B E
JF8 A R%950,203,0007T) ~ERZEB R A
REIEFEERAKE ZREREDE & KK
REAABERE UFEAEERETHEAER
M ERISELE -

WIAARARMEZRERAT 121



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)
In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash flows to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the Group implemented
or is in the process of implementing the following measures:

(1) Active negotiation with banks to obtain
adequate bank borrowings to finance the
Group’s operations
Subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, the Group renewed the existing loans
of RMB98 million with related banks. The Group will
continue to actively negotiate with the banks for the
renewal of the Group’s borrowings when they fall due or
obtain additional sources of finance to meet the Group’s
working capital and financial requirements in the near
future. The directors of the Company have evaluated
all the relevant facts available to them and are of the
opinion that they have a good track record or relationship
with the banks which will enhance the Group’s ability to
renew the Group’s loans upon expiry.

(2) Improvement of the Group’s operating cash
flows
The Group is taking measures to tighten cost control
over various production costs and expenses with the aim
to attain profitable and positive cash flow operations.

The eventual outcome of the above measures are

inherently uncertain and cannot be estimated with
reasonable certainty.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast for the Group which covers a period of twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. Taking into account the
positive cash flows from the Group’s steel pipes business
and the continued sale of the Group’s existing real estate
projects, the directors considered that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised at amounts other than those
which are currently recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In addition, the Group may have to provide
for any further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated

financial statements.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16
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2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BT HEEHRINE (&)

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs are
described below:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when
an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The Phase 2
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the
next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require
an entity to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and
United States dollars based on the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) as at 31 December 2021. If
the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by
RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply the above-
mentioned practical expedient upon the modification
of these instruments provided that the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met.

(b) Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of
the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient
are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment to IFRS 16
on 1 January 2021. However, the Group has not received
COVID-19 related rent concessions and plans to apply the
practical expedient when it becomes applicable within the
allowed period of application.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 (2011)

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts? ®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?*

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds Before Intended Use*!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract*
Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and
IAS 41*
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMEN KRE R ZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS
9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37
or IFRIC-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS
3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CHEMEERER 2B HREE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (@)
STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an BB ISR E R F105: R ER @5t #8528
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and FEAA(ZE——F)IRH BRI B R E£L
in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of F10% R EE e ERF28R (2T ——F)E
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. FEEREERABERNRNEERRIETEE
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss Hj'%ﬁifi;éﬂﬁiﬁxﬁﬁ—rﬁ’\]?:—ﬁl‘\ T EERTTR
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or ETEREEHABENRNEGERRETHNE
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate Eﬁ%iﬁz&ﬁ%ﬁ%*%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ CEERHWAR T
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction BERXRSGEEANWRLEE st F R T EK—I1B
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain X¥BMEERSIME RHIELENWRRIEER
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the KREEMBZANER WENEFABKEERNZ
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated HERAHEERANERRR -ZFEITRE
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The REHAEERA -BERGHENZEED R T
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous —NE— ARERBR M Wm S E R 105% K B R
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS R ERFE28REEI A (ZE——F) ZAIH A
28 (2011) was removed by the IASB in January 2016 and a %IJE%( H H7 - i %7 5% 5l £ B A A8 Y SE AR B B
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the NAIREE AT EHEERETREZRNEEE -
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates W‘ﬂﬁ CHREERI AR AHRA - ZEEITAR
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available AT EHARENYHBREEEMNERTE-

for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Bl g st ERN B NE T m B LI w B A E
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities SERETHEE EARDBEIERDAE
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if WER-ZEFTART MR —EAFEHEEE
an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to BENRBANZZERETETCRENOR  BIZ
the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has EREAREREHAREEEREAGE IIRRZE
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the BRBEAREEEKG & %HQM EEHIER
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that TEBNEMNOAIEETEFEAE E’] D&
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood FAIARNEATHERAESEENBR ZFE
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the FIEZE=%—H—H EJZZ&F*?J?E‘E’UEE,HHFE?
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are AR W REENER B RFRATRA -2 FER]
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are EH T eHAEBENMBRRENEATE

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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BTSRRI RE
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMEN KRE R ZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMEN KRE R ZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively
only to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group'’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMEN KRE R ZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

TR FFEWRS

al (&)

RETEREITRETARE B BEERE
AAEMEITRFEENREEBAEBAOME &
TEANKARREESNERBARMNKA - EE
WEEBEBNRABREITZE NHIEERA (F)
MEZSTEMH)REBTANERMEENAE
R ADE (PIABEEETENRMANE BE
EREBEBEANTEAINLENEEREEK
) e —BETBRABGOYEERRE  BR
FREBAVAERNEF HURER BT EE
ER-ZEBIN_F__F—A—-BxH2K&H
HHEEHAEN TERAREEREERER
ZEBITNFERSHOHRBITERAE TN
BRI -AHRFEA VL ERBZFET LM
REPERERRSENERB BN ERNH
B MBABILKREN ZEFETEHTIEY
AEENMBEREENTAEATE -

WIRARARMEZRERAT 131



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 BHEMEN KRE R ZE BB KR EE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

. IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T EESTHERE

POLICIES

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of the joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable

inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties, goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

138 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FEBMEERE (M)
BEEEZREESREATKRESERT GER
HEBE EFGEEREER ft 2 RKEE
MEDEBMAFRETFABEEERE MBAFTR
ENRBBTHSREEEHEEREERER
gz -BEBRSEEEERRANERRE
BEEEREZFAXER P -

EEREMROGFEABBEICHRZRERS
BRI EFERAIERD 2R - MHRZSE
Bg ReghiTkOeE - EERNEEEE
A mEEz G HEESE TEBUTER
ZEE (BMERINREBERER BERMREEY
TAENEBEFEYEHNZEERBEMBME
EBENBATZEEAREE ZREE (HRE
A4 & ) o 5% %R B B 18 5 0 % 1 E A B
Rt AB@EE T EREGEEIIRZEERIN
EZBEAT HEBERDDREZEGREELZ
BHESFBEAR-

Annual Report 2021
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 T ESTHERE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives and residual values used for this purpose are as

follows:

Buildings

BF

Plant and machinery

i Kt 28

Office and other equipment
WMAERAMBAE

Motor vehicles

e

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction, which are stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories to
investment properties, any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEME (80
POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued) REWME (&)
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for BIEHEN I RBEEERHESH
sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held WIERBEERLEEBNREENEZEZER/L
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally EXSMIEEBRFEGERMEE  BesEAERE
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing EHE - WERERNREEXNHESEATNRIERR
use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must THREE (EEXHERSEAERLEEERZ
be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject — BB K Aﬁﬁ%ﬁ PR &ARA A e EM % & -
only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of PEALESENNBARZBEERARS
such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly E?ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂjﬁ CARAEETCLHERRD
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as FEEAEARREIEERE R -
a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless
of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its
former subsidiary after the sale.
Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than DEABELENERDEEREESEE (T
investment properties and financial assets) classified as BEREMERSRMEE) DEREGREBEARR ﬂ?
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying BEBREEKAMERZBREETE - DEAFE
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and HEMNME BEMREUNBREETNTHE

equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale SR Y o
are not depreciated or amortised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leasehold land 10 to 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)
Group as a lessee (Continued) KEFERBFRHEA ()
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development represent properties being
developed for sale and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the prepaid land lease
payments or cost of land together with any other direct costs
attributable to the development of the properties and other
related expenses capitalised during the development period.
Net realisable value is determined by the directors based on
the prevailing market prices on an individual property basis
less estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. Once the development of these
properties is completed, these properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Revenue is only recognised upon completion of the
development. Sales deposits/instalments received and
receivable from purchasers in respect of the pre-sale of
properties under development prior to the completion of the
development are included in current liabilities.

If a property under development is intended to be redeveloped
into an owner-managed property, it is transferred to
construction in progress at the carrying amount.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all development
expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to unsold properties. Net realisable value is
determined by the directors based on the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

If an item of completed property held for sale becomes owner-
managed, it is transferred to property, plant and equipment at
the carrying amount.

For a transfer from an item of completed property held for
sale to investment property that will be carried at fair value
as its use has changed as evidenced by the commencement
of an operating lease, any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount
shall be recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income
is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEME (80
POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) REREMERMEE (&)
Subsequent measurement (Continued) H#EE (&)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued) BERFEFAEDBEE ()
This category includes equity investments which the Group ZERPEAEEI AN HEEREDY B AR
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through AFEFAEMEARZZBRAIEE - BRI
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments i 2 B AR BAR R Y B R s 1R P BB M AR SR B
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or BERESEEISEHIER DHEAKRATEA
loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of BRsemEENRARE ZRETNEREXF
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, ERAEEMUA -

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets RIEBRAERMEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial SREE (K (WER) —HemEEN —HH K

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily —/HREsRMEEN —FD) E2ETIERE

derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated W IERER (AEAKE 256 M BARRKF S

statement of financial position) when: B

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have - WERZEBEEEMSReAENENELE
expired; or sk

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows - AFAEECHZEREWDRZEBEEEMSRSRE
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the BT SR B f%%EJ KT?F%FZ*‘E}xﬁE_ﬁ
received cash flows in full without material delay to a BERNBERATME BEENFABERS
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and MEMEF: E(a)ZlS’EE@%E?IEé(F
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the B 48 K B0 5 B B K [ 4 - &(b) AN SE T
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has ?ﬁagﬁ%%%lﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ*ﬁ % K [B] % -
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks EBEREEZEEENEHE-

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At each reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt investments are considered to have low
credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings
of the debt investments. In addition, the Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach (Continued)

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, a derivative financial instrument, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

TR FFEWRS

TEEERE (8)

B1EE (&)
WESEARERINEZRBBERLEREE
KB AKREEEESHBRREAMAIEAFEL
MBERNFAREE RS-

TEEE

BAXERR 2
ERABERNEERFADARARTFERER
RIEMERMEBE BERREE  HEMNFE (M
A o

ESRABERERERFUAFEFE ME
RREERENFKBRMNNRERERR %EX$°

AEENTREERRAESERNEARENRE
TEERTAE FARMENRREHERNS
BAEE AERITUAREMER-

R E
TRABNHEZFESTFUTHA:

BEBERF BN HBEE (BEMREE)

RERERR FEERREEERUERME
ERBHKATE BRIERBOFERTIRE
FUBER TR AT IR - R ILFERBERES
BERAMEEHBREPELENEBNERRPHER -

BIRMRAARMEERERAT 155



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings) (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on the weighted

average basis

Work in progress and Cost of direct materials, direct
finished goods labour and an appropriate

proportion of overheads

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEME (80

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued) 88 (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary FrEERAMENHEZENERABECREEE:

differences, except: HETHE SRR -

(@) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial (@) MEEMBEBEDNERXZPVPLERGE
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a FEEHAEREE MaXIHILIIEEHE
transaction that is not a business combination and, at B BERRSENT B m Fl sk ERH
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting A SR &

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(b) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated (b)y RERWBAAR—HEERRIZEESR
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, BHERTEREEZEMNE NEREEZR
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary BRI E AT ARG REREZERAR
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 1R A g E B A E R
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible FrfE AT HURVET I 1 22 2 e R ) AR B 1B 3K 2 B A ]

temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax ABARBEENEEIHER SRR IEEE -

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are B RIE A 18 & B A R 14 R °] A A R R R

recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit BN EREEZZ AIHARIAERIERER

will be available against which the deductible temporary RABRARGEBRNGEE HETIERRIN:

differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(@) when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible (@ MEBAMBREREEMNEERBEED
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition ERXRGHVNTHEREEXBERES Mz
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a RPUWIEBEI ERRGHAITES
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, Fha s ERBRFISEER: &
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

(b) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated (b) HERMBAAR —HALRARLKRER
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, AR EREEEmME RETYRKE
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent BEAEMREAN] RgRER - mMBEBEEE
that it is probable that the temporary differences will HIRERT A MABENZEEH R0
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will FERREERIBEE -

be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to deferred
income account and deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

160 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FrigH (4)
EEHBEENERERNSERSHRIELER
THREETBA LR RAERDOETN <A X
MOBEERIAEEWE AR L - RERHRTER
HEAERNBERSHRKERL 1E BANER
0 M R B R IA K P A SRR R TR TR B E -
A& EHHER -

BEERBEERBERBENREARSERMK
BEE FEAMORE (RBX)  UFEHEARE
MEEZRNAHEEEENHENREAE -

EEAKBE AR GERHIITHEMN A AR
EEHEANYTVHEAGERE AETREEERE
EHAEAERR-HBEEEYR - EBRERIRN
ERKYRABRERBEEHRAREXREERTE
BENFER RRFREAEEENNNKEE
MEESRKEREENEEABNTRREE
BRSPS HAER APELEHIAE ERELEN
HEER THEE-

BT R

BT AL A B IR E KW E BB R KT E
PrEM SRR IR E A FEMER - iR EF
HEAM AeRAGEEREMAIEMRENKE
XHPRAERRRA-HEREEERR AR
RNFEEFABRKRGER YEZBEEENERT
EFMBRITERRDTER T ABARR-

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS
15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the point
in time when the purchasers obtained the physical possession
or the legal title of the completed property and the Group
has a present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

Manufacturing services

Revenue from the provision of manufacturing services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the manufacturing
services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all existing
and retired employees under these plans. Contributions to
these plans by the Group are expensed as incurred. The
Group has no further obligations for benefits for their qualified
employees under these plans.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHEME (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
subsidiaries in Mainland China according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing and amount
of the payment of the dividend. Withholding taxes are only
provided for the profits of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
which the Group considers probable to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale in the ordinary
course of business and properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated
as an investment property or a property held for sale. The
Group considers its intention for holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties.
During the course of construction, the related properties
under construction are accounted for as properties under
development for sale included in current assets if the
properties are intended for sale shortly after its completion,
whereas the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in investment
properties if the properties are intended to be held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of
the properties, the properties held for sale in the ordinary
course of business are transferred to completed properties
for sale and are stated at cost, while the properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to
completed investment properties. Investment properties, both
under construction and completed, are subject to revaluation
at the end of each reporting period.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and
legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation
of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year
end date based on changes in circumstances.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves significant management’s judgements regarding the
future performance of a particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there
is convincing evidence that it is probable that some portions
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as the existence of taxable temporary differences, tax
planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax
losses can be utilised. The carrying amounts of the deferred
tax assets and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and to the extent
that there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable profits will be available within the utilisation periods
to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of tax losses, and
that the asset balance will be reduced and charged to profit or
loss.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

A write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down involves management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying amount
of inventories and the write-down/write-back of inventories in
the period in which such estimate has been changed. Further
details are given in note 21 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type,
and coverage by credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customers’ actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
note 22 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recognition and allocation of construction costs of
properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties
under development during the construction stage and will
be transferred to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will be recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon the
recognition of the sale of the properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs and other costs relating
to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded as the
cost of such phase. Costs that are common to different
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any increase
or decrease in the development costs and other costs would
affect the profit or loss in future years.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in Mainland
China. The provision for land appreciation tax is based on
management’s best estimates according to its understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual land appreciation tax liabilities
are subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon
the completion of the property development projects. The
Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax calculations
and payments with the tax authorities for certain property
development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and any differences will impact the
land appreciation tax expenses and the related provision in
the period in which the differences are realised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
two reportable and operating segments, as follows:

(a) the steel pipes segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of welded steel pipes and the provision of related
manufacturing services; and

(b) the property development and investment segment
engages in development of properties for sale and
property investment for its rental income potential.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

There was no intersegment sales during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, EEPEHER (@)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2021

BE-FE--Ft+-A=+t—-HLHFE

Property
development
Steel pipes and investment Total
HE YERBERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®BTR AR¥T R
Segment revenue: (note 5) DEBWA - (BHEES)
Sales to external customers RSNEDE P HE 1,802,568 10,802 1,813,370
Segment results DEEE 400,289 (70,843) 329,446
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other unallocated expenses NEREMAD AT (9,486)
Unallocated finance costs RO BLAE KA (42,739)
Profit before tax B B AL A 277,225
Segment assets DEIEE 3,061,158 6,117,547 9,178,705
Reconciliation: #hk -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 1K 85 5 2P e FE M 3R 1B (1,607,400)
Corporate and other unallocated assets REAINEMADEEE 351,817
Total assets BEE 7,923,122
Segment liabilities SHEE 4,617,796 3,897,520 8,515,316
Reconciliation: Eo)
Elimination of intersegment payables 85 9 BF ] FE 1 5/ 08 (1,607,400)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities RAIREMADEEE 189,690
Total liabilities =N 7,097,606
Other segment information Hivn HER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-—F%
+tZA=+—-HLEFE
Amounts included in the measure of FADERE S E
segment results or segment assets: BEFENEH:
Gain on resumption of land use rights wHERKFELHERAEL
by the local authorities W= 1,540,336 - 1,540,336
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNBAR K 11,728 = 11,728
Compensation 8 (3,072) (6,674) (9,746)
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEE BB (292,780) - (292,780)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEW¥E  -BERREZ
B8 (10,635) - (10,635)
Provision of claim arising from litigation FREEZRERE (29,290) - (29,290)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value & SR = 7] £33 (& (11,443) - (11,443)
Impairment of trade receivables B o RWERENRE (7,183) - (7,183)
Finance costs B AR (137,368) (6,885) (144,253)
Depreciation and amortisation rEREHE (78,118) (22) (78,140)
Share of loss of a joint venture BE—RaErE2BE (15,020) - (15,020)
Capital expenditure* VNG 83,148 - 83,148
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, EEPEHER (@)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020

BE-ZF-2F+-A=+t—-HLHFE

Property
development

Steel pipes  and investment Total
ME MEREREE BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Segment revenue: (note 5) DEWA - (FFEES)
Sales to external customers RSN E P HE 1,125,851 15,956 1,141,807
Segment results DEEE 987,220 (67,910) 919,310
Reconciliation: Eo)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses DA REMKD AL (14,056)
Unallocated finance costs KB RbE KA (28,593)
Profit before tax PR B AL A 876,661
Segment assets PHEE 4,831,520 5,701,932 10,533,452
Reconciliation: Hik
Elimination of intersegment receivables 85 9 B ] FE M k1B (2,553,323)
Corporate and other unallocated assets REANEMADEEE 561,399
Total assets BEE 8,541,528
Segment liabilities FHEE 6,479,771 3,415,310 9,895,081
Reconciliation: #hk -
Elimination of intersegment payables 15 88 5 SR FE A 5108 (2,553,323)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities REREMADEEE 343,075
Total liabilities wafE 7,684,833
Other segment information HthaBER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-2F
+TZA=+—-HLEFE
Amounts included in the measure of FADHEEL S
segment results or segment assets: BEEMEH
Gain on resumption of land use rights A E R L ERE Y
by the local authorities W= 1,864,709 - 1,864,709
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables B o KRR RERD 12,884 - 12,884
Compensation B8 (204,377) - (204,377)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE -BERREZ
E#E (11,962) - (11,962)
Provision of claim arising from litigation FAREELRERE (52,533) (2,046) (54,579)
Impairment of other receivables H b JE W FE R B (27,222) - (27,222)
Finance costs BE BCA (465,322) (10,062) (475,384)
Depreciation and amortisation rEREHE (128,126) (199) (128,325)
Share of loss of a joint venture BE—ReaEtE2BE (2,668) - (2,668)
Capital expenditure* BARFZ* 61,328 20 61,348

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets.

TR FFEWRS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about steel pipe products and services
The revenue from the major products and services is analysed
as follows:

4. EEDZWER (#)

HEERRRBES

TEEMAREOWRASHTIET

2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFIT
Manufacture and sale of steel pipes: B REEWNE
LSAW steel pipes HEEBEE 1,351,040 655,108
SSAW steel pipes BIEIRE 129,359 121,354
Steel pipe manufacturing services: i B B s AR 7%
LSAW steel pipes B MEE 158,640 152,322
SSAW steel pipes BHEIRE 90,617 131,981
Others* Hoph * 72,912 65,086
1,802,568 1,125,851
Sale of properties HEW 10,802 15,956
1,813,370 1,141,807
* Others mainly include the manufacture and sale of steel fittings, * HMTZoRYERFEENEE M BN R

screw-thread steels and scrap materials, and the trading of
equipment and steel plates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBHHER (#)
(Continued)
Geographical information i EE R
(@) The revenue information based on the locations of the (a) WABHBZREPHAEMRBRESWT :

customers is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Sales to external customers: MmN EPIEE
Mainland China A 965,305 1,014,108
Africa FEM 490,831 105,246
Europe HOA 46,967 -
Middle East PR 78,924 3,249
Asia and other Asian countries oM R E T M B =R 159,515 19,204
South America mEM 71,828 -
1,813,370 1,141,807
(b) Over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets and capital (b) AEBEHIFRBEERE AT E90% (L
expenditure are located in Mainland China. PR A b
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue of approximately RMB490,831,000 (2020: HESPHLM —BE—EPHNEEEELERALN
RMB105,246,000) was derived from sales by the steel pipe AR ®490,831,000c (T _FF: ARK
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of 105,246,00070) - BiER —HEZXZE P XA
entities which are known to be under common control with TN ERBETHIES

that customer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and
services rendered, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and other
sales taxes, after allowances for returns and discounts during

the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

WA - Hfl A R Wz

WA 464 POEL 5 1 L FAR 4 FRA 0  SRAB -
SRR ([HMER D) RAERHER B2 EA
R R AT -

AREBHUWA - EMBARKEDFTEAT

is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBF T
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWA
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes 1% K & A &G ME K&
and the provision of related manufacturing TR AR B R E AR 75
services 1,802,568 1,125,851
Sale of properties HE Y 10,802 15,956
1,813,370 1,141,807
Other income and gains Hib g A & W&
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 2,576 715
Subsidy income from the PRC government* R B AT A A A U A 13,193 14,092
Gain on resumption of land use rights by B 4 o 5 AR M B 5 2 R ER &Y
the local authorities** LR 2+ 1,540,336 1,864,709
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables Z 5 e W BR BURE B D = 12,884
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BE—BFRrlE 11,728 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment & & %1% /5 & & & K &= 1,210 -
Rental income HERA 2,690 -
Others Hth 9,045 18,872
1,580,778 1,911,272
* The subsidy income represents subsidies granted by the local * HHBADHFHBERR FERKIME - EE

*%

finance bureaus to PCKSP, Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy Equipment
Technology Co. Ltd* GEE# S FELRHARAF), Nanjing
Rongyu Group Co.Ltd* (F AW EEHGR A7) and PCKSP
(Zhuhai) as awards for their products. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to such subsidies.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a piece of land held
by PCKSP located at Qinghe East Road, Shiji Town in Panyu
District of Guangzhou, the PRC, was resumed by the local
authority with a compensation amount of RMB4,144 million,
of which a compensation amount received or receivable of
RMB2,072 million and a net gain of RMB1,865 million was
recognised. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
remaining compensation amount received or receivable of
RMB2,072 million and a net gain of RMB1,540 million was
recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information
Year ended 31 December 2021

WA~ AR WS (E)

REEFENZHBA
(i) BEURAEH
BE-ZF-_—Ft+-RA=+—-HLEE

Property
development

Steel pipes and investment Total
HE YERBHERE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥ TR AR¥TR
Sale of goods/properties HEWR/ ME 1,553,311 10,802 1,564,113
Rendering of services RERS 249,257 - 249,257
Total revenue from contracts REEFPAHZBIA
with customers 1,802,568 10,802 1,813,370
Geographical markets i B35
Mainland China A 954,503 10,802 965,305
Africa FEM 490,831 - 490,831
Europe BN 46,967 - 46,967
Middle East FR 78,924 = 78,924
Asia and Other Asian countries HpmMER 159,515 = 159,515
South America mEM 71,828 - 71,828
Total revenue from contracts with REREAHZHBKA
customers 1,802,568 10,802 1,813,370
Timing of revenue recognition N +453
Goods/properties transferred AR/ MERE—BHYRER
at a point in time 1,553,311 10,802 1,564,113
Services transferred over time A2 T 249,257 - 249,257
Total revenue from contracts with REEPAH 2 BIA
customers 1,802,568 10,802 1,813,370
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5, WA HW AR WKz (&)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEHZWA (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) DERAEH (&)

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZF+-A=1+—HLEFE

Property
development
Steel pipes  and investment Total
HE MERFREE @Et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTF T ARBT T ARBTF T
Sale of goods/properties HEEM/ ME 841,548 15,956 857,504
Rendering of services U R 284,303 - 284,303
Total revenue from contracts REBREFAEHZHBKA
with customers 1,125,851 15,956 1,141,807
Geographical markets B m 5
Mainland China HE A 998,152 15,956 1,014,108
Africa FEM 105,246 - 105,246
Middle East R 3,249 - 3,249
Other Asian countries Hib MBI xR 19,204 - 19,204
Total revenue from contracts with REREAEHZHBKA
customers 1,125,851 15,956 1,141,807
Timing of revenue recognition N 453
Goods/properties transferred B/ MEARE—ERER
at a point in time 841,548 15,956 857,504
Services transferred over time BE SR B2 7% IR 75 284,303 - 284,303
Total revenue from contracts with REEFPAH 2 BIA
customers 1,125,851 15,956 1,141,807
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in the current periods:

WA~ AR WS (E)

REEFEHZBA (8)

(i) BEBRAEH (&)
TRITHRAREHRCHERBA PR AR
BEMVEVBELRIRBENHEEEK
BHEEERZERE:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFTT
Revenue recognised that was included FARBEHANENEREZ
in contract liabilities at the beginning of TBRERUWA :
the reporting period:
Sale of steel pipes and i E S R R E R
manufacturing services 126,837 87,496
Sale of properties YIS 58,162 15,745
184,999 103,241

(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of steel pipes

For sale of steel pipes, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location (delivery). Transportation and handling
activities that occur before customer obtain control are
considered as fulfilment activities. Following the delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
Payment is generally due within one year from the
invoice date, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required.

TR FFEWRS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Performance obligations (Continued)

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the physical
possession or when the legal title of the completed
property is obtained by the purchasers.

Manufacturing services

The Group provides manufacturing services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue
is recognised for these manufacturing services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using input
method. Payment is generally due within 50 days from
the date of delivery or customer acceptance of the
product processed.

The Group generally offers one-year warranties for
its product. The Group recognised retention money
as contract assets as the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration was conditional on satisfactory completion
of the warranty period. The retention money will be
recognised as trade receivables at the end of warranty
period.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a
separate performance obligation in a single contract as
the warranty service is assurance type, and the Group’s
obligation to repair or replace faulty products under the
warranty terms is recognised as a provision, if any.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Since most of the sales contracts of the Group are
for periods of one year or less. The transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

5.
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WA~ AR WS (E)

REEFENZBA (8)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. HtEH
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFTT
Compensation* B (g~ 9,746 204,377
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets REFREAECERE 18 292,780 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BREWE WEREZEEE 2
equipment 18 10,635 11,962
Provision of claim arising from litigation FAEENRERE 29,290 54,579
Write-down of inventories to net realisable  #UR 17 & %= 7] # I8 )5 (&
value 11,443 -
Impairment of trade receivables E S ERGRIERE 22 7,183 -
Impairment of other receivables H At & KT E 23 - 27,222
Others HAit 14,937 2,562
376,014 300,702
* Compensation in 2020 represented a compensation fee paid * RZE_EFNREEREERRIMELEMH
or payable to Yuecai Trust pursuant to the PCKSP Disposal FHFECNREN T EMEENEEE-

Supplemental Agreements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BR®BUADGR R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REBEABRB AN R MR T TBEEES
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR¥®T T ARETT

Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 1,608,617 921,216
Cost of properties sold EEMENA 9,237 13,904
Auditor’s remuneration %2R & 1,064 2,227
Depreciation of property, ME BELREETE
plant and equipment 13 50,051 98,748
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 18 28,089 29,577
Employee benefit expenses EEBRAFXZ
(including directors’ remuneration): (BEESTHM) :
Fees, wages and salaries we TERFS 140,789 114,704
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORAE FFT B3R 9,375 7,889
Impairment/(Reversal of impairment) of B S REBEREZORE (RE
trade receivables, net BE))F5E 22 7,183 (12,884)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 3% - &= M & & R E 596,765 -
Impairment of other receivables H i W SR IR E 23 - 27,222
Fair value loss on investment BEMEZ AFEESRE
properties 16 17,000 20,000
Research and development costs o Bk AN 64,526 44,050
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMRA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXKRIFTOT
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B R AR¥T R ARETT

Interest on bank and other borrowings MITREMEERE (BE

(including bonds and notes, BHERZEE HEAGERIN

excluding lease liabilities) 205,320 543,808
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 109 654
Interest on discounted bills [ S SRS 3,427 1,388

Total interest expense on financial liabilities 3 JEiZ A FET AEBZH 24/t

not at fair value through profit or loss BEMYRF ST 45E 208,856 545,850
Less: Interest capitalised A BEAREFE (a) (64,603) (70,466)
144,253 475,384
(a) Interest capitalised during the years ended 31 December 2021 () BE-ZZ-_—FR-ZF-_TF+-RA=+—8H1L
and 2020 arose on the specific borrowings for properties under FEERCMNEDHRERTDENFTEBRME
development. Ao
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BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9. EEHM
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed FRN - EFFW o FBRELTRE-FERA
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),(b),(c) and 1&H126383(1)(a)* (b)) (c) k(&R (FHEZE
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of ERmER) RO B2 BB

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Fees we 579 581
Other emoluments: Hil e -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREWRER 2,248 3,523
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAE R FH SRR 44 37
2,292 3,560
2,871 4,141

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@ BLFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERN BENBEIFERTES2ESHT:

during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F BT
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETT

Mr. Chen Ping PR T 58 A& 198 198

Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah BRR% B2 S A& 198 185

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren HEgEkE 183 198
579 581

There were no other emoluments payable to the RERN BEENTEIIFRITEENEM

independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZE_ZTF |) o

(2020: Nil).
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31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEHM (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) MITEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions remuneration
e ZRR EMAREFRFE
e BYEA HRK i B 48 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AR®T R AR®T T AR®T T
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE=-ZT=—4%
tZA=+—-BLEE
Executive directors: MITES
Mr. Chen Chang BRE LA - 1,342 - 1,342
Mr. Chen Guo Xiong PR B9 4 5% A& = 241 250
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian BRIkFE L+ - 665 35 700
- 2,248 44 2,292
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits in scheme Total
Fees kind contributions remuneration
He 2k  REKENEE
we EMiER K s st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z=-FfF
tTZA=+—-BLEE
Executive directors: WiTES:
Mr. Chen Chang RExE - 1,614 - 1,614
Mr. Chen Guo Xiong* BoR B 2 5 A - 240 - 240
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian BRIk EFELZ+ - 915 19 934
Ms. Chen Zhao Hua* BRI EE A £+ - 754 18 772
- 3,523 37 3,560

* Ms. Chen Zhao Hua resigned on 1 October 2020, and

* MEELLR _ZE_TF+A—AEE M

Mr. Chen Guo Xiong was appointed on the same day. PREIME S ERB ABEERE-
There was no arrangement under which a director REALEFMNEEREXRERETM
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the FNm -

year.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.

PR TEEFOMS T ESREERNER
ARRRALEERHEARE - LB
FHTEENMEIESLRFERAR
AEEMREHRAORTE -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. A ERESFHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year AEERFANTEERHEE OB T :
are analysed as follows:

Number of employees

EE®E
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
Directors 2% 3
Non-director highest paid employees FEFERTESE 2 2
5 5
Details of the remuneration of the above directors are set FMEEZ FIEEEERIN A £SO o £l 3E
out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the above EERaTEERTFANFMFBOT
non-director highest paid employees during the year are as
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He EMREYRETR 1,037 1,073
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE T FT 8 3 15 15
1,052 1,088
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest THFMERENEEE RN TR RITRAER
paid employees whose remuneration which fell within the SHEEABMT :

following band is as follows:

Number of employees

EE%H
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ECTHF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 2 2
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group REA AEBPRENZEESI LR TE
to the directors or any of the five highest paid employees B AW — BT EMMEEARSI MAARE R
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as A £ B ) 22 B ok BE B 4 (2 -

compensation for loss of office.
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11.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Corporate income tax (“CIT")
The Company, which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
is not subject to CIT.

Lessonstart Enterprises Limited (“Lessonstart”) and Lucknow
Consultants Limited (“Lucknow”), which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, are not subject to CIT.

Crown Central Holdings Limited (“Crown Central”), Chu
Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. (“CKSPG”) and View Sharp
International Limited (“View Sharp”), which were incorporated
in Hong Kong, were subject to profits tax at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong during the year.

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP"), as a
High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE") qualified
on 16 December 2008 and with the qualification renewed
in 2011, 2014 and 2017, was entitled to a reduced tax rate
of 15% from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. For
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, PCKSP was
subject to CIT at a rate of 25%. Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP (Zhuhai)”), as a HNTE qualified
on 30 September 2015 and with the qualification renewed in
2018, is entitled to a reduced tax rate of 15% from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023. Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP (Lianyungang)”), as a HNTE
qualified on 5 December 2019, is entitled to a reduced tax
rate of 15% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. Fr88 (@)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf Co. Ltd. (“Zhugang Wharf”) and
Zhuhai Zhonghai Xin Building Materials Industry and Trade
Co., Ltd. (“Zhonghai Xin") meet the requirements of tax
privileges for small enterprises and were entitled to a reduced
tax rate of 10%.

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective
regulations, except for certain preferential tax treatments
available to PCKSP (zZhuhai), PCKSP (Lianyungang), Zhugang
Wharf and Zhonghai Xin, the companies of the Group which
operate in Mainland China were subject to CIT at a rate of
25% on their respective taxable income for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the prevailing tax rates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994 and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and
buildings in Mainland China (being the proceeds from the
sale of properties less deductible expenditures including
borrowing costs and property development expenditures) is
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties if their
appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

The Group estimated and made provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the
property development projects and the LAT determined by the
tax authorities might be different from the basis on which the
provision for LAT is calculated.

TR FFEWRS

EEREHR ([RXREHR]) (&)

BRI ER N AR AR ([RMIFE ) K Ik
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

11. Fr88 (@)

Long-term tax payable

Certain subsidiaries of the Company relocate their factories
and offices during the year ended 31 December 2020. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the tax authority in the
PRC agreed their CIT and LAT payables can be paid within
5 years or upon completion of the relocations, whichever is
earlier. In the opinion of the directors, the relocations will be
completed after 1 year from the reporting date. Therefore,
the relevant tax payables amounted to approximately
RMB767,930,000 as at 31 December 2021 are classified as
non-current liabilities.

The major components of the income tax expense/(credit) for
the year are as follows:

RHEEMSHIE

AR ETHBARERBE S _EF+=
A=+—ALEFEARBEIBENAE - RE
EZE - FF+ A=+ —BHLEFEAR HEM
BHRERZHENOCEMGH kT HIg@ERA
EFRAFRNEABRBRRE (UREEAE)INN &
ERA HBESARSAYETF —FEEK-H
R —F+-A=+—RH BEEEMNMK
B4 A ANRE767,930,000t T N E A RS E

& o

FRMEHER,/ (BR)WETEAXBHIMT :

2021 2020
—EB=—F —_ET_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBF T

Current — Mainland China BVHA — A B A i
PRC CIT Charge for the year FAFEBEBEMSH S H 375,877 77,182
PRC CIT overprovision in prior years BEFERBRADERMSHERERE - (25,160)
PRC LAT o i S E - 2,088
Deferred (note 20) IRFE (PF37E20) (4,298) 199,640
Total tax expense for the year FAMIBERRRE 371,579 253,750
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued)
Long-term tax payable (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

11. Fr88 (@)
REPESHE (&)
BERTERBAEFOBEER RARAR

tax at the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the HRBLHAMBARMENBERAEERERGTE)
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled BEASERERTEFENTIEE Ha R &

to the tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rates, and a

AREEERBREHROT

reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates,

are as follows:

2021 2020
—s-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBF T
Profit before tax B 75 BT g 7 277,225 876,661
Tax at the statutory tax rates BETEREGTENIE 77,622 264,107
Tax effect of: kv
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority B ML RE B M 2 BUE B R (23) (62)
Expenses not deductible for tax A X 164,658 28,533
Income not subject to tax AR A (3,352) -
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT AR EARIIE 2 A
previous periods - (25,160)
Loss attributable to a joint venture B —H&ERAEE 3,755 667
Effect of utilisation of tax loss not ERFEERERZEBA
recognised in prior years HIEEE T2 (26) (61,394)
Temporary difference TR MER (20) (114)
Provision for LAT T IR E TR - 2,088
Tax effect of LAT THIRER BB 2 = (522)
Tax loss not recognised in the current year REERERBIAEE 128,965 45,607
Tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rate BEAREERBERTEZHEER 371,579 253,750
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H

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

12.

ERRBEEAEREER (BE) BF

COMPANY
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is BREAN(FE) /B DREAABEE A
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of BEFEE (BE)  aFERFANBEETEER
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary INHEF 159 #1,011,142,0000 (T - T 4 :
shares of 1,011,142,000 (2020: 1,011,142,000) in issue during 1,011,142,0008% ) 5t & -
the year.
The Group had no potentially ordinary shares in issue during AEBRTEREE T -_—FR_T-_TF+=
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. A=+—BHLtFEHTEELBR
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M¥E - -BERRE
Office
Plant and and other Motor Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HAER
BT HEEREE Hi R AE ERIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TR ARETT AR%Tn ARETT AR%TR
31 December 2021 —E--F+ZA=+-H
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R=Z=FFE+ZA=1+—-HR
—T-_-%-A-H°
Cost: A 660,837 2,165,564 25,559 41,170 712,905 3,606,035
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ 2it 7 E Rl & (141,133) (885,148) (22,304) (27,413) - (1,075,998)
Net carrying amount FEFE 519,704 1,280,416 3,255 13,757 712,905 2,530,037
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated R-E--%-f—-8"
depreciation and impairment MREHFTERAE 519,704 1,280,416 3,255 13,757 712,905 2,530,037
Additions RE - 21,413 144 131 30,298 51,986
Disposals He = (33,470) (592) (3,420) (23,338) (60,820)
Depreciation provided during the year ERNFERR (21,405) (24,896) (136) (3,614) - (50,051)
Transfers from construction in progress HERgtEIR - 65,173 = = (65,173) =
Impairment e - (110,561) (40) (29) (486,135) (596,765)
Write-off ik - - = = (78) (78)
At 31 December 2021, net of R-B-_—-F+-A=+—-A"
accumulated depreciation and impairment 1% Z:H 7 E R (E 498,299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
At 31 December 2021: W_ZE--F+-f=+-8:
Cost A 660,837 2,004,646 20,872 217,585 168,479 2,882,419
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ Z:HTE RJi(E (162,538) (806,571) (18,241) (20,760) - (1,008,110
Net carrying amount REFE 498299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERSZRE (@®)
(Continued)

Office
Plant and and other Motor ~ Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF BERESR EthR RE EEIR &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR

31 December 2020 “E-EE+ZA=t+-H

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=-E—AF+-A=+—H}

“Z-%F%-f-H
Cost: KA 713,487 2,638,755 24,271 40,882 352,563 3,769,958
Accumulated depreciation and impairment £z € K& (136,212) (982,215) (21,376) (25,916) - (1,165,719)
Net carrying amount FmFE 577,275 1,656,540 2,895 14,966 352,563 2,604,239

At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated RZZZZTF-A—-8"

depreciation and impairment M 2 ERAE 577,275 1,656,540 2,895 14,966 352,563 2,604,239
Additions RE - 207 141 2,342 58,658 61,348
Disposals HE (22,193) (1,974) - - - (24,167)
Depreciation provided during the year FARERRE (29,858) (64,011) (1,400) (3,479) - (98,748)
Transfers from construction in progress BRaTEIR 1,816 45,086 1,644 - (48,546) -
Transfer to construction in progress BRETETRE - (350,230) - - 350,230 -
Assets classified as held for sale PRARELENEE (7,336) (5,202) (25) (65) - (12,628)
Exchange realignment EHEE - - - (7) - ()
At 31 December 2020, net of R-E-FF+-A=+-8"

accumulated depreciation and impairment 1% 25t E R E 519,704 1,280,416 3,255 13,757 712,905 2,530,037
At 31 December 2020: RZZZZEFZf=1—R:

Cost N 660,837 2,165,564 25,559 41,170 712,905 3,606,035
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2t 7 E R E (141,133) (885,148) (22,304) (27,413) - (1,075,998)
Net carrying amount REFE 519,704 1,280,416 3,255 13,757 712,905 2,530,037
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERSZRE (@®)

(Continued)

Impairment tests for property, plant and equipment

When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each CGU. The CGU is an individual plant or operating entity.
The carrying values of these individual plants or entities were
compared to the recoverable amounts of the CGUs, which
were based predominantly on value in use. Value-in-use
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using the same cash flow projections of the fifth year. Other
key assumptions applied in the impairment tests include the
expected product price, demand for the products, product
cost, finance costs and other related expenses, with the
consideration of the possible significant decrease in finance
costs following the measures adopted by management.
Management determined that these key assumptions were
based on past performance and their expectations on market
development. Further, the Group adopts a pre-tax rate of 17%
(2020:17%) that reflects specific risks related to CGUs as the
discount rate. The assumptions above are used in analysing
the recoverable amounts of CGUs within the operating
segments.

As a result of the impairment assessment, no impairment
loss had been recognised against the property, plant
and equipment in the steel pipes segment for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). However, due to
obsolescence, an impairment loss of RMB596,765,000 (2020:
Nil) was recognised in respect of certain property, plant and
equipment in the steel pipes segment.

Included in the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment was capitalised interest of RMB258,623,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB258,623,000).

Details of the Group’s property, plant and machinery pledged
to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 26.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of
the Group located in Zhuhai and Lianyungang with a total
net carrying amount of approximately RMB13,079,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB160,893,000) have not yet
been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. As at the end of
the reporting period, the directors were still in the process of
obtaining these certificates.
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 14 BERPYE
2021 2020
—E-— —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BZEmEE 2,064,560 1,822,964
Additions wE 190,733 241,596
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—RAZEEE 2,255,293 2,064,560

15.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s properties
under development with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,086,130,000 (2020: RMB1,264,749,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 26).

All properties under development are situated in Mainland
China and were held under long term leases as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

In the opinion of the directors, all properties under
development are expected to be realised in the business
cycle of four years. Since all of the above properties under
development are to be sold within the normal operating cycle
of the Group, they are classified as current assets.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
in Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount
of RMB93,778,000 (2020: RMB102,638,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 26).

TR FFEWRS

15.

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—RH AEEETEE
2 E A AR #1,086,130,0000C (—Z T —F 4F:
AR M1,264,749,00070) 2 EHR T M EE AER
HUEERTEREB 2 ETRITREMES (B
£¥26) ©

R-B-_—FR-_F_FF+_A=1+—B
BERRBPYEGURBEANL WREFRAELD
KA

EERS MERRTYERBMNOFANER
BRHHPEHR AR LAMBERPYESHRESE

EHEFLEBANNE ARSI FARDE
EEo
EREGEMR

REBOERTEMEILRPEANM - FFHE
R EMEDER AR ZIRFEREEZS -

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—RH AEEETEE
“EAARYKIZ 778,000 (ZE T F: AR
#102,638,0007T) < &K FEMED AEEM
LRSS EFAEE2E TRITREMEE (M
26) °

BIRARARMEZRERLT 195



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Commercial properties in Mainland China, PRC R EI R 2 8 A E

16. REW
2021 2020
—E-— —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 387,000 407,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments NEERAEZFEE (17,000) (20,000)
Carrying amount as at 31 December Rt+—A=+—RZEEE 370,000 387,000

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China, which are held under medium
term leases. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties are commercial assets, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of the properties.

Based on the valuation by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, as at 31 December
2021, the fair value of investment properties of the Group,
which were mainly shops of GDC Phase | shops, was
RMB370,000,000 (2020: RMB387,000,000). The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decided,
upon approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s property
manager and the chief financial officer have discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
twice a year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REW % (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRERAEBKREMEZ A FEFEER:

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

R-B-—F+-HA=+—-HBERAUTHAEFEZAFE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBT S EARTA BEART
PR E % BEEnAE BEGAE
(B—-%) (B=#&) (B=8) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T ARBTT ARBTR

Recurring fair value N
measurement for:
Commercial property ERYE - = 370,000 370,000

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

RoZ-TET- A=+ AEAUTHABNR2ZATE

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ISE: Ak XA BEANT

PR E1E BREAE BB AE
(F—#) (B=#%) (B=#) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®TT ARETT ARETT

Recurring fair value BEHEATENE:

measurement for:
Commercial property Bk - - 387,000 387,000
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN E—REAE-_R2HATEQNTFEFEZ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers EE TEEFEF-HREANEL (ZEFF:
into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). ') o
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REW % (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEER (H)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within NREEERE=BARAZzATEF=ELHEK:

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETT

Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BZEHE 387,000 407,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments NTPEHARZFEE (17,000) (20,000)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RAZEEE 370,000 387,000
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the HIEEMEHEMEMERANGERNTEEZZSH
key input to the valuation of investment properties: ANERBLZHRTIAT
Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Range or weighted average
1 {8 B9 EXFAUBERAE EESNEFEH
2021 2020
GDV GDV
Phase | Phase |
Shops Shops
—E-—f TR -T
GDV GDV
E—H E—H
JEE JE 4
Commercial Direct comparison method Market unit sale rate 19,663-23,485 23,207-24,004
properties (RMB/sg.m.)
[l k7S BEELEE MZENEE
(ARW /GFHK)
The valuations of investment properties were arrived at REMENGHAEDRAEERLEZT 2R EHH
using the direct comparison method with reference to the ELhRMEEEEMES BEEeRAEEmE
comparable sale prices in the relevant locality, adjusted BEzRHERBEainE (BB REERS
for a premium or discount specific to the quality of the LEAESIEFHAE - REEZMEIR ST E
Group’s properties compared to recent sales of comparable BEYREZATFEAEEHE

transactions. A higher discount for lower quality properties will
result in a lower fair value measurement.
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17. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 17. RPEARERZS
2021 2020
—E-— —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Prepayments for property, plant and equipment ME BERZEZENKIEA 58,508 72,295

Deposits paid BEffike 2,986 3,384
61,494 75,679

18. LEASES 18.#HE

The Group as a lessee AEBEREARA

The Group has lease contracts for office premises used AEEBEBEMARQGHMNAES L - T

in its operations. Leases of a factory and office premises RIGMHERTAAIFNHEER - —KM 5

generally have a lease term of 3 years. Generally, the Group AEBTSAAEEIHEERDHBEEEE-

is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets o AE BB TN EBEEHRIBUARE EWEME

outside the Group. In addition, lump sum payments were HRS0FMMEE i HEZE T HHEEHRE

made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with TEBEHNES-

lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases.
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18. LEASES (Continued) 18. 1 E (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA (F)
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) BAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets FR-AEBEERAEEENREEKERE
and the movements during the year are as follows: BT
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
HELH BT et
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARBFT ARBTT ARETFT
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZTF—HF—H 1,106,767 7,784 1,114,551
Land resumption b U (48,533) - (48,533)
Assets classified as held for sale 7S BAFIEHENEE - (2,966) (2,966)
Depreciation charge mERX (26,879) (2,698) (29,577)
Exchange realignment gk (2,252) 53 (2,199)
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF
and 1 January 2021 +-A=1+—HX
—E-—%—-H—H 1,029,103 2,173 1,031,276
Additions NE 31,162 - 31,162
Disposals & (@) (372,527) — (372,527)
Depreciation charge mERX (26,238) (1,851) (28,089)
Exchange realignment R (618) (32) (650)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=H
=+—H 660,882 290 661,172

()

The leasehold land disposed during the year ended 31
December 2021 was initially purchased by the Group
for establishing a steel plate processing production line
in Lianyungang, the PRC. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the local government implemented a
series of environmental policies which did not support
the steel plate processing production. Due to change
of government policy, the Group cannot implement the
production plan. The leasehold land was subject to land
idle charge as it is vacant and no construction has been
commenced on the leasehold land. The directors considers
that the disposal of the leasehold land could provide
the Group with cash flow to repay the bank and other
borrowings and avoid the land idle charge. As a result,
the leasehold land was disposed at loss of approximately
RMB292,780,000 (Note 6) during the year.

(@)
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18. LEASES (Continued) 18.# & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA (F)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under FAN-HESEMNREE (GFAFTBRITR
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the HiEERET) MEFHWT:

movements during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBT T

Carrying amount at 1 January KN—RA—BZEmE 2,365 7,931
Accretion of interest recognised during the year RN #ER & ETFI 2 109 654
Liabilities directly associated with HEAHEARBELEN

the assets classified as held for sale BEEEMHEENERE - (3,153)
Exchange realignment PE 3 3 & (143) 57
Payments E:S (2,006) (3,124)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+-BA=+—BzEEE 325 2,365
Analysed into: BT A:

Current portion BB &R 7> 325 2,011

Non-current portion FEBNEAER &> - 354
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HE B E 9 T 5 B ok M 424
note 42 to the financial statements. -
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18. LEASES (Continued) 18. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA (F)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or 10ss in (c) MHERERBRZHBEWT
relation to leases are as follows:
2021 2020
—E=—F —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 109 654
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRAEEEFERS 28,089 29,577
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBmER 2 1B 28,198 30,231

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. A—HBEERARIZRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Share of net assets DMEBEFE - 10,510
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

19. RA—BEEARIZERE (&)

REBEEGE

Percentage of

RAEIZFIBIEET

Particulars Place of BAL
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held  and business interest power sharing activities
g T R
£ R 43 5 15 EEBE BEER RERE FEf5 &R TEXK
Al-Qahtani PCK Registered Kingdom of 50 50 50 Manufacture and sale of
Pipe Company capital of SR50 Saudi Arabia welded steel pipes
million each
Al-Qahtani PCK A ERE bdss 50 50 50 REREE
Pipe Company 50,000,000 FA AT RERE
D BT
The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by LR —EEE AR ERA AR EERE -

the Company.

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company, which is considered a material

joint venture of the Group, acts as the Group’s producer and

distributor of steel pipes in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and

is accounted for using the equity method.

TR FFEWRS
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19. R—BEERRAIZRE (®)
T % 5l /R Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company 2 81 #
ERBE EPERSFHBERARNEZEFEL AR
7 ER B 75 ¥ 2= BT 51 BR T {8 ¥ B

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the financial statements:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Other receivables H {h fE R IE 49,209 15,264
Trade receivables H 5 W IR 132,983 92,329
Inventories TE 64,926 109,524
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHEH 2,036 24,088
Total current assets REBEERLE 249,154 241,205
Right-of-use assets EREEE 23,846 27,992
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 560,047 588,736
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 583,893 616,728
Amount due to PCKSP e E BRI E 58 - 11,316
Other payables H fth e~ FRE 17,679 30,229
Trade payables 2 SRR 3,878 3,507
Short-term bank loans — unsecured KRR 1T B I — K I 403,202 227,318
Current portion of long term loans EHERREBY 51,663 157,458
Tax payable FET 1R 82 84
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,637 2,557
Total current liabilities BB REAREE 478,141 432,469
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding ErRBeHmaE TEEES
trade and other payables and provisions JE A B 3R R L A E S SR IB R BB 280,882 317,339
Total non-current liabilities EnBaERRE 280,882 317,339
Net assets BEEFE 74,024 108,125
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 19. R—BEERRAIZRE (®)
2021 2020
:g: - qi — ? — E'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBEFT
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HAEEREERAIZ
in the joint venture: T ¥ 8K

The loss from contribution of non-monetary assets ;T A JE & # & & 7 518 (85,007) (87,105)
Net (liabilities)/assets after reconciliation Wik (AK)  BEFE (10,983) 21,020
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE 2 AL 50% 50%

Group’s share of net (liabilities)/assets AEBELREERAR (BE)
of the joint venture BEFE (5,492) 10,510
Carrying amount of the investment HEREME = 10,510
REVENUE ON 174,837 268,560
Cost of sales $H 1 B AR (193,519) (243,376)
Gross (loss)/profit g8) /7 (18,682) 25,184
Other income and gains H A U A K Mz 16,806 27
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (1,155) (2,124)
Administrative expenses THE A (7,176) (6,810)
Finance costs & AR (21,931) (25,808)
Loss before tax W 154 A s 18 (32,138) (9,531)
Income tax expense FrisBiAx = -
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FABBEREAKBELESE (32,138) (9,531)
Share of loss (50%) & 518 (50%) (16,069) (4,765)
Realised profit from Down-stream transactions TR 5 E 8% 1,049 2,097
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—RaanaEA (15,020) (2,668)
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20. DEFERRED TAX 20. EEK A
Deferred tax assets EEMREEE
Losses available
for offsetting against
future taxable profits
] it K 88
RRERTGEH 2B
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
At 1 January R—HA—H = 210,943
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FARGREERRINBROETERIE
statement of profit or loss during the year - (210,943)

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of RMB536,731,000 (2020: RMB437,394,000),
which are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB1,361,983,000 (2020: RMB1,239,518,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
No deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of the tax
losses of the Group as at 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, tax losses of PCKSP
of RMB210,943,000 were fully utilised to offset against
taxable profits generated from the net gains from the land
resumption of PCKSP.
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20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

20. EEFIE (#)

Deferred tax liabilities BEEBEEE
Changes in/
realisation of
fair value of
investment  Appreciation
property/ of property,
property plant and
under equipment  Withholding
development and land tax Total
BENE/
RRTNEZ  WE - BRER
NTERE/ RERLTH
-3 #B{E BB @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T R ARMT R ARBT R
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-HF—H 347,199 4,412 2,265 353,876
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FARGABEER
statement of profit or loss during the year s ARJEIEF 1B (4,250) (48) - (4,298)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZ-—F+=-A=+—H 342,949 4,364 2,265 349,578
Changes in/
realisation of
fair value of
investment Appreciation
property/ of property,
property plant and
under equipment Withholding
development and land tax Total
BEME/
RRYMEZ  DE BER
ATEZY,/ FER T
23 #{E B @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETR ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZF5—-HF—H 354,380 11,378 2,265 368,023
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FARGEaBRERTAN
statement of profit or loss during the year ~ EEHE (5,820) (5,483) - (11,303)
Deferred tax credited to the asset FHNGAEEERREDN
revaluation reserve during the year BRI (1,361) - - (1,361)
Transferred to liabilities directly associated ~EEZEHBAFELELN
with the assets classified as held for sale ~ BEEEABNERE - (1,483) - (1,483)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZF+=-A=+—H 347,199 4,412 2,265 353,876
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20.

21.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% (or
a lower rate if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors) withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Since 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised by the
Group for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of those subsidiaries that are subject to
withholding taxes as management considered that it is not
probable that those subsidiaries will distribute any earnings in
the foreseeable future.

20.

EERTE (F)

R A% P B AT BOE - i 5 A B K B K SZ A9 1
BRERBIMMREET RS  EHH10% (X
i R B A ESNE R E E B RDEER R
BAOREREREF)BBIAR -LRER _FZN
F-A-BAER AERAR_ZTZELF+_-A
=t —RERBROAEN Al AEBEZATD
REXL 2 ZEWBARRL -—EEN\F—H—H
REEZAN DR R SEAIBINN -

BE-E—
ZEM B AR 2 AR E L AT 2 BN TE
RELERE AATEERBZSMWBRARTAK
AJRETEA] RS SR D IR AT (] B FI o

z

—FE AKEMERLAMNENHRZ

pail3

INVENTORIES 21. 78
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®EFT
Raw materials JR# R 104,953 127,688
Work in progress paa Yo 76,120 88,253
Finished goods BIRK SR 249,473 201,986
430,546 417,927

Less: Provision against slow-moving and WO RRETTERE

obsolete inventories (13,661) (2,218)
416,885 415,709
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2. EFEWRAREREE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETT

Trade receivables B rWERR 508,402 506,570
Impairment A (13,516) (6,333)
Trade receivables, net HH5EWEFFRE 494,886 500,237
Bills receivable e 8,220 11,301

503,106 511,538

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 days
to 90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,

AEBEAEFNESBGATEREE HEHE
F-—REZENEFRRI-EEH R AH30H
EOH -BREFERREERB -AEEHE
AR BRI B4R ELOR MR B B MR RR - T SRS 1 B R B
HERK BHESRHSNRERABREHERN-
EREABERARAEEZE S RBEREXED
BMEFPAR BABEAGFEEETRAR -AKHE
FEHE SRR AR 77 | &S AT AR
HEMBRTHERNRE - BHRPBRFHB TR -

there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

22.

EZRUERRRERRE (&)
RBEHR ZERZRHAEERCHRERE
BHEZRREREROTET

2021 2020
—E-—F TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET AR®EF T
Within 60 days 60H A 248,838 343,253
61 to 90 days 61H £90H 10,810 11,429
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 24,499 19,290
181 to 365 days 181 H £365H 105,091 28,418
1 to 2 years 1224 25,019 10,642
2 to 3 years 2E3F 6,170 14,333
Over 3 years HBiB3F 74,459 72,872
494,886 500,237
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade ZoRBERREBEREZSHOT
receivables are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
At 1 January n—A—H 6,333 19,434
Impairment losses recognised B ERREEE 7,183 -
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale #E@EEDHEABIEHENEE - (217)
Reversal of impairment Ve RIEECAE] = (12,884)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 13,516 6,333
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting REHRE B BRABEEEEETRED T A
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit EHEERBE-BEXHENRAEBEUEEE

losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 2. BESRUERRERREE (8
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure UTENNEEASEXAREEEFENE SR
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: WEREERBER :
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=—F+=H=+—8H
Past due
a8
Less than
lyear 1to2years 2to3years Over 3years Total
PR-—F —ZmME ME=F HEB=F @t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBBRXR 0.5% 4.3% 6.8% 11.7%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) B (E (ARS T 7T) 391,343 26,143 6,623 84,293 508,402
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE (ARETT) 2,105 1,124 453 9,834 13,516
As at 31 December 2020 R=ZB=-ZBF+=-H=+—8H
Past due
Less than
lyear 1to2years 2to3years Over3years Total
PR—F —EME MEZF BB=F FoE
Expected credit loss rate RHEEBRX 0.3% 1.1% 1.9% 6.3%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) #8REE (ARETT) 403,425 7,095 18,301 77,749% 506,570
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) HEHEEERE (ARETT) 1,035 75 346 4,877 6,333
* Included in the balance was a trade receivable of RMB54,240,000 * FREER B IS R E S A A R 154,240,000 89 B
due from a debtor with whom the Group was in commercial SEWEF ZEBALERXEERELEMRS
dispute over certain other transactions, and thus the settlement FEMmEA ARERTHE - KRAREFER
was delayed. The directors of the Company performed a B EREEMBERAUARBEBEANGEAERENTT
specific assessment by considering the aforementioned fact and FWAE BAZBEIRRERR T —F
circumstance and the credit rating of the debtor and concluded TZ A=+ —BHRRBAEIF (ST F :
that the credit risk on this trade receivable was insignificant though AIF) SHAERAZEIERRERNEERR
its aging was over 3 years as at 31 December 2021 (2020: over BTAER-AW ZEHRURF AR REREE
3 years). Therefore, no expected credit loss was provided for this E18 -

trade receivable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. BEZRWRREEBRRE (&)

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H AEEEEET
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the PEARITESNERER ([RIEEREER])
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to FTEHETHER NEERENTZSHERMNED
settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying BA £ ARMA48,643,000E 5 ER B - R
amount in aggregate of RMB48,643,000. The Derecognised MEMR RUIERREBENIBAER=2 1T
Bills had a maturity of three to twelve months at the end of A-BREBEPEMNTBEEREZ WRPEMRITE
the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable 2 BRI BRABBEOF[AEABEYREERED
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills BRE([HEL2H]) - EFRE- $%l5$ﬁﬁ
have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks B IEREEBBA BRI D AR KER-
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the t'ﬁE%%JJ:EEE@%JJ:EEE{J\?ETFE’U’i\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks and HEESERNER AEBFELQHK FERERE
rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has BRTEENRAEIERR I KERL S LKL IFER
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised ZEBRNATRREREFREREBE -EER R

Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum REBEFBEZHEK IBREEN D TELTEK

exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are
not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has HE-T-_—F+-_A=+—"HBLEFE £&E
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of REZEREBERERZ ARBEREMER EAX
the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised FERRFHME SBRFELEFEREME
from the Continuing Involvement, both during the year and e BFHETES

cumulatively. The endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. A RE -HtEKRREREMEE

OTHER ASSETS

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETT

Prepayments TEfT IR 457,972 338,613
Deposits and other receivables e R H MW FRIE 781,555 759,801
Tax recoverable G QEE R 49,512 68,602
1,289,039 1,167,016
Impairment allowance Ve RIEEE 1] (163,686) (163,686)
1,125,353 1,003,330

The movements in the provision for impairment of deposits
and other receivables are as follows:

BehEMEBURIEREREESWT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

At 1 January n—A—H 163,686 136,468
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRI EEE (H3E6) - 27,222
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale EBEEDEABELENEE = (4)
At 31 December Wt+tZA=+—H 163,686 163,686

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent the deposits
with suppliers. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default.
Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss
rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. Except for certain receivables for which the
Group has made 100% provision because the counterparty
was default in payment (“default receivables”), the balances
were settled within the credit term with no historical default.
The financial assets included in the above balance were
categorised in stage 1 as at 31 December 2021. Except for
the default receivables, the Group estimated that the expected
credit loss rate for the other receivables is minimal.

TR FFEWRS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

24 BERBTEEYUUARCERRZR

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK 88 1T 4 R
BALANCES
2021 2020
—E-—F B
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5 AR¥ T ARBTT
Cash and bank balances e MIRITER 20,588 19,466
Pledged and restricted bank balances B IR & 2 PR I 2R 1T 45 5 249,719 22,712
270,307 42,178
Less: Do
Pledged and restricted bank EEAR LR GIRT
balances — current wh— BN
— Restricted cash —ZRHRE (@) (12,928) (20,065)
— Pledged for bank acceptance notes —BIRITAN BIREHE N (236,788) (2,642)
— Pledged for letters of guarantee — SR E R (3) (3)
— Pledged for long-term bank loans - RHBITEREEMR 26(c) - (2)
(249,719) (22,712)
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEEY (b) 20,588 19,466
Notes: B sE

(a) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place at
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sales proceeds

of properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the
related properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases
of construction materials and payments of construction fees

for the relevant property projects. As at 31 December 2021,
such guarantee deposits amounted to RMB12,928,000 (2020:

RMB20,065,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents denominated in US$ amounted to RMB1,090,000
(2020: RMB6,050,000) and denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB18,226,000 (2020: RMB13,136,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

24 BERBTEEYUUARCERRZR

IR 1T & &R (40

FisE: (4&)

(b)

RZZE_—F+_A=+—8B AEBEUET:
EMHESRAESESEY A ARY1,090,0005T (=
T T & ARH6,050,0007T) K IAAREEE
MR RBELEEY A AREK18,226,000T (=
T T F: ARML3,136,000T) c ARBET T B
A H M E (BRI P BA M INE E
BHIRGEE EERNEEERT AEEAER
ERBETIIEEENRITEARE LR AEEM

RITMEIBRITF RN R RELEN) T B F R
ME-RITERKEERFRADFENEESE
B H30 M4 R FE SRR ERTT o

25. ESRNRARENRE

REREPR REZZHHAAENEIERNTER
MENZRBERESTAOT

follows:

2021 2020
=B —fF —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT

Trade payables ESEMFERX
Within 90 days 90H N 729,282 423,131
91 to 180 days 91H %=180H 45,093 33,100
181 to 365 days 181H =365H 34,126 19,192
1 to 2 years 1F 224 56,669 56,746
2 to 3 years 2F B3F 75,642 29,517
Over 3 years 3FM E 62,153 47,882
1,002,965 609,568
Bills payable EREE 286,670 4,943
1,289,635 614,511

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within a year. All the bills payable have maturity dates
within 365 days.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. sFERITRHEMEE
BORROWINGS

2021 2020
—E--F e ke 33
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BERAE%) HEA ARTR ZHEFE®) HEMA  AR®TrR

Current mE
Lease liabilities HERE 7.97 2022 325 9.51 2021 2,011
—E-C& —T--%
Bank loans RITER
- secured -BHER 4.79-5.70 2022 403,220 4.79-6.09 2021 402,900
—E-CE —E-F
- unsecured — B 5.44 2022 59,000 5.44 2021 59,000
—E-C& —T--%&
Other borrowings Hinfg g
- secured Eiti N/A N/A N/A  5.60-16.88 2021 238,272
TEA TER TERA —EC--F
- unsecured ~EH A 11.2-15 2022 270,349  6.60-24.00 2021 398,270
—E-CF —E-F
Government loans BRER
- secured -HHEA N/A N/A - 4.90 2021 88,000
A TER —E--F
Current portion of long term loans REERRYHH
- secured -BHEA 5.39-5.88 2022 148,500  4.90-16.88 2021 989,883
—E-CF &
Subtotal Nt 881,394 2,178,336
Non-current ERE
Lease liabilities HEEE NIA NIA - 9.51 2022 354
TEA TEA -2
Bank loans RITER
- secured -HHEM 49588  2024-2028 839,905  4.90-15.39 20222028 1,240,755
—E_ME- —EoF-
“E-N\% —E-NE
Government loans BFER
- secured - BER N/A N/A - 4.90 132,000
TEA TER
Subtotal it 839,905 1,373,109
1,721,299 3,551,445
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. sFERITREMEE (80)

BORROWINGS (Continued)

2021 2020
—EBE=—F —E_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBEFT
Analysed into: BUATOMA:

Bank loans repayable: ARUTHREEMRITER
Within one year —FA 610,720 613,300
In the second year £ _F 177,000 199,850
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FEFERF (REEEMSF) 524,905 918,905
Beyond five years iR F 138,000 122,000
1,450,625 1,854,055

Government loans repayable*: ZAPS LA BRPR (B8 B BT B3R+
Within one year —F - 88,000
In the second year EF - 88,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEERF (REEEMSE) = 44,000
- 220,000

Other borrowings repayable: ARUTEHREEHNHMEE:
Within one year** — 270,349 1,475,025
270,349 1,475,025

Lease liabilities repayable: ARATHREENHEHERE:
Within one year —F A 325 2,011
In the second year F-F - 354
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEFRF (REEEMSE) - -
Beyond five years AT F - -
325 2,365
1,721,299 3,551,445

TR FFEWRS
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B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. sTERTREMEE (&)

BORROWINGS (Continued)
Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured

by:

(a) the pledge of certain plant and machinery of the
Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB567,860,000 (2020: RMB1,197,950,000) as at the
end of the reporting period;

(b) the pledge of certain leasehold land of the Group with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB501,928,000
(2020: RMB816,224,000) as at the end of the reporting
period;

(c) the pledge of certain of the Group’s deposits amounting
to RMB nil (2020: RMB2,000) as at the end of the
reporting period;

(d) the pledge of certain of the Group’s properties under
development amounting to RMB1,086,130,000 (2020:
RMB1,264,749,000) as at the end of the reporting period;

(e) the pledge of certain of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale amounting RMB93,778,000 (2020:
RMB102,638,000) as at the end of the reporting period;

(f) the pledge of certain of the Group’s trade receivables
amounting to RMB nil (2020: RMB2,551,000) as at the
end of the reporting period; and

(g) the pledge of certain of the Group’s prepayments, other
receivables and other assets amounting to RMB nil
(2020: RMB115,655,000) as at the end of the reporting
period.

Except for the other borrowings of RMB nil and RMB1,975,000
(2020: RMB101,788,000 and RMB4,413,000) as at
31 December 2021, which are denominated in US$ and HK$,
respectively, the borrowings of the Group are denominated in
RMB.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)
The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities:

27.

26. AFERRTREMEER (@)

AEBEA T ARERRITEER:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Floating rate FENF R

— expiring within one year ——FRNEH 213,280 14,600
— expiring beyond one year ——FEIH 690,595 705,200
Total undrawn banking facilities*** RIREURTT Bl & AR FR 903,875 719,800

*%

Certain of the government loans are secured by the pledge
of certain property, plant and equipment with a net carrying
amount of approximately nil (2020: RMB659,609,000), and the
pledge of certain leasehold land with a net carrying amount of
approximately nil (2020: RMB368,271,000).

Among which, the Group had an aggregate loan of
RMB954,138,000 borrowed from Yuecai Trust and its related
companies as at 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the relevant contract, certain of the Group’s undrawn
banking facilities of RMB650,000,000 (2020: RMB299,200,000)
can only be used for property development projects and are
repayable based on the pre-sale progress of such properties.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

* AETERNERUETEEFENT (ZZ =24
A R #659,609,0007T ) 84 % - B B K& 58 5 1E &
B RETEDFENZT(ZZE_ZF: ARE
368,271,0007T ) I HH & + I {EHE

o HPARER-ZF-_TF+A=Z1T—HEAR
BYEAERAEBBARBANERBBEARYE
954,138,0007T ©

o IRIRERE L AEESHE A A R650,000,000
T (ZZT=Z4F : AR#¥299,200,0007T) 2 % T %
RORTEEEVARDESREL W REH
MEZBEEFEER-

27. BHEE
AHBABHBNT

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—F--% -—z-=zH
t=A +=A
=t+-—8 =+—~8
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Short-term advances received from customers CWEFHEHE N

Sale of steel pipes and manufacturing services THEHE R ERT 310,636 225,550
Sale of properties HEME 1,040,922 1,061,436
Total contract liabilities SHEERR 1,351,558 1,286,986

TR FFEWRS
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B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. EREE ®)
Contract liabilities include sales proceeds received from SHEGEERAAEEREHERMEMBE S
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of steel pipes WHHEEMSERE - R_Z-_—FR-2F_F
and properties. The increase in contract liabilities in 2021 and FHAENABEEIN T2 ERAEEBEMNHE
2020 was mainly due to the increase in the Group’s pre-sale R ZEIEIPrE -

of steel pipes and properties.

Changes in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FRNEHNBEZEESNT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

At beginning of the year REH 1,286,986 1,159,070
Revenue recognised that was included in the AENERNAEEZERRKA

contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (184,999) (103,241)
Increases due to cash received, excluding BB SBHAMIEM (TEIEFA

amounts recognised as revenue during the year EBEHERAVAZ L) 249,571 231,157

At end of the year RER 1,351,558 1,286,986

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. Htt ENREREFER

2021 2020

—=2-—fF —TEF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®T T ARBT T

Deposits received Bz e 59,917 23,319
Other payables H b JE A FRA (@) 410,763 380,022
Payroll payables J& 155 7 A 19,821 24,567
Accruals and other liabilities EsrERAREMER 201,567 326,069
Other tax payables H b e TBIE 958 28,689
693,026 782,666
(a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (a) EMEGKEATHERFHERAMNE=[EA -

term of two to three months.
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

29. PROVISION 29. &

Legal

proceedings

SRR

RMB’000

AR®EF T

At 1 January 2021 RZZE-—F—HF—H 54,579

Provision for the year REEEAE 29,290
Utilised during the year FAE A (53,381)

At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—F+=ZA=+—H 30,488
Certain subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in lawsuits AEERETHBARAE = FIRHMFRZHS
brought by third parties alleging that the subsidiaries REZEBRZSENBARERETETAETE
breached and repudiated certain purchase and construction ERNBEAN -ZPRREFRVEMEB T AIRE

contracts. The claims were subject to the legal arbitration and RERZZ=—FER-

were settled in 2021.
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B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

30. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES

Principal
at original
currency
‘'million
FE¥AS
BE

Current ik
2017 Bonds A “ET-LFEHA US$1.65
1.65% 7
2017 Bonds B “ET-LFESB N/A
TEA
2017 Bonds C —T-tFEAC N/A
TEA
2019 Bonds A ZE-NFEHA HK$3
3BT
2020 Bonds A ZZZTEEHA HK$2
2B
2020 Bonds B “Z-ZFESB N/A
TEA
2020 Bonds C “ZZTEFEAC N/A
TEA
2020 Notes “T-ZFER HK$90
90T
2021 Bonds A “E--FREEA HK$2
2B

Non-current E ok )]
2020 Notes —TTERR N/A
TEA

30. ER
2021
—EB_-F
Contractual
interest
rate (%)
per annum Maturity RMB’000
BRER=
(%) HHME AR®TR
7.0 2022 10,265
—EC-CF
N/A N/A -
TEA TER
N/A N/A -
TEA TER
6.0 2022 2,453
—E-CF
6.0 2022 1,635
—EC-CF
N/A N/A -
TEA TEA
N/A N/A -
TEA TER
12.0 2022 72,942
—EC-CF
6.0 2022 1,635
—E-CF
88,930
N/A N/A -
TEA TEA
88,930
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Principal
at original
currency
‘million
RE®ERE
BE

US$1.8
1.8%7T
HK$10
10T
HK$10
10T
HK$3
3BT

HK$2
28T
HK$2
28T
HK$1
V&

HK$140
1407 7T

B
2020
—Z-%F
Contractua
interest
rate (%)
per annum Maturity
BRERE
(%) 38R
7.0 2021
—E-—F
7.0 2021
—E--F
6.0 2021
—EZ-F
5.0 2021
—EZ-F
55 2021
—E-—F
6.0 2021
—EZ-F
6.0 2021
—E--F
12.0 2022
—E-F

RMB'000

ARETT

11,545

7,889

7,736

2,525

1,683

1,683

842

33,903

114,608

114,608

148,511
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

30. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued) 0. TEEEBHFEREE (#)

US$3,000,000 7% bonds due in 2021 (2017 Bonds A)

On 28 April 2017, the Group issued bonds with a principal
amount of US$3,000,000 to an individual investor (the
“2017 Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 28 April 2020 but the expiry date could be extended to
30 June 2022. The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon
interest rate of 7% per annum for three years payable semi-
annually, commencing on 28 October 2017. The bonds are
unsecured. As at 31 December 2021, The Company had
partially redeemed the 2017 Bonds A with a principal amount
of US$1,350,000.

HK$10,000,000 7% bonds due in 2021 (2017 Bonds
B)

On 24 August 2017, the Group issued bonds with a principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 to an individual investor (the
“2017 Bonds B”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 24 August 2021. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 7% per annum for four years payable
semiannually, commencing on 24 February 2018. The bonds
are unsecured. As at 31 December 2021, the Company had
fully redeemed the 2017 Bonds B.

TR FFEWRS

3,000,000 TR -ZE-_—FEHz2FEFN=E
T%EH (ZE—LFEHA)

—+tFNA=Z+N\B AEBER—BEA
& & 31T /N4 %8 /53,000,000 T2 E% ([ =
T—tFEFA)  BEFER_ZT-_TFNA
—tNA\BRERSEMNEBIBATTEE T _—
FRA=ZTH - BEFRETFREELT%TE
BTt +A-+\BRAHP=FHEAST
EFELH-EHEABEER-R_T=-—F+=A
=t+—H ARADHBABEE = —CFEHA"
N4 F A1,350,0003€ 7T ©

10,000,000 TR —FE=-—FEHHB 2 FR X
T%EHR(ZZE—tFEHB)
RZEBE—+tFNAZ+WMB A£EBR—FREA
A& HZITAE%E/510,000,0008 T2 EH ([ =
T—tFESHFB]) - BEEFEER-_ZT=—F)\A
_‘T'IZEIEHIJ;F%U N EHRETFEFREEERTET
B BZE - \FZAZTHNHEAHUFERA
iifiﬁ BEEABER R_T-_—F+=
A=+—H ARAEEHER T —tFEH
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30. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued) 0. TEEEBHFEREE (#)

HK$10,000,000 6% bonds due in 2021 (2017 Bonds
C)

On 26 September 2017, the Group issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2017 Bonds C”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 26 September 2020 but the expiry date has been extended
to 28 September 2021. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum for three years payable
semi-annually, commencing on 26 March 2018. The bonds are
unsecured. As at 31 December 2021, the Company had fully
redeemed the 2017 Bonds C.

HK$3,000,000 6% bonds due in 2022 (2019 Bonds A)

On 30 August 2019, the Group issued bonds with a principal
amount of HK$3,000,000 to an individual investor (the “2019
Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full by 8 January
2022. The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon interest rate
of 5% per annum, payable monthly. From 6 January 2021,
the interest rate of the 2019 Bonds A increased from 5% per
annum to 6% per annum. The bonds are unsecured.

HK$2,000,000 6% Bonds due in 2022 (2020 Bonds A)

On 6 July 2020, the Group issued bonds with a principal
amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor (the “2020
Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full by 7 January
2021 but the expiry date could be extended to 9 January
2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon interest rate
of 5.5% per annum, payable monthly. From 7 January 2021,
the interest rate of the 2020 Bonds A increased from 5.5% per
annum to 6% per annum. The bonds are unsecured.
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—tFARAZ+RB AEBER—BEA
W& H 31T/ 4 /510,000,000 T2 E% ([ =
T—tHFFEEFCl) - BEFER_ZT_ZTFNA
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

30. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued) 0. TEEEBHFEREE (#)

HK$2,000,000 6% Bonds due in 2021 (2020 Bonds B)

On 28 September 2020, the Group issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2020 Bonds B”). The bonds should be repayable in
full by 30 April 2021. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum for half year payable
semiannually. The bonds are unsecured. As at 31 December
2021, the Company had fully redeemed the 2020 Bonds B.

HK$1,000,000 6% Bonds due in 2021 (2020 Bonds C)

On 14 December 2020, the Group issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$1,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2020 Bonds C”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 15 December 2021. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum for half year payable
semi-annually. The bonds are unsecured. As at 31 December
2021, the Company had fully redeemed the 2020 Bonds C.

HK$140,000,000 12% notes due in 2022 (2020 Notes)

On 27 April 2020, the Group issued 12% notes due on 27 April
2022 but the expiry date could be extended to 30 September
2022 with a principal amount of HK$140,000,000 to an
investment fund (the “2020 Notes”). Pursuant to the purchase
agreement, specific performance obligations are imposed on
the controlling shareholder of the Group. Any breach of the
specific performance obligations may constitute a breach
under the note purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the investment fund is entitled to redeem the 2020 Notes
immediately in accordance with the terms and conditions. As
at 31 December 2021, the Company had partially redeemed
the 2020 Notes with a principal amount of HK$50,000,000.

HK$2,000,000 6% Bonds due in 2022 (2021 Bonds A)

On 28 September 2021, the Group issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2021 Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 27 September 2022. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum for payable monthly.
The bonds are unsecured.

TR FFEWRS

2,000,000 TR —ZE=-—F3HP2FRME
6NEHF (ZE_FFEHB)
RZZE-_ZTFAA-+NB AE£EBHR—REA
BB E BT RS 552,000,000 T2 EH ([=
T_TFEHB]) - BEFEAR-_T-_—FMA
“+HAEREN - BHFRETEFEER6% T
8 AHEFHASEFIN -BHAEEA R
CE - FF+ A=+ B ARAEERHEL
—E_TFEHBe
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RZEZEF+_A+HWA - AEER—BEA
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TR —FF+ZAR=+—H ARAIEEFHEE
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31.

32.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 31. BT RL
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETFIT
At 1 January n—HA—H 336,011 341,915
Grants received during the year FAEERHEL 7,389 8,188
Recognised as income during the year (note 5) FRERBBA (HHEE5) (13,193) (14,092)
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 330,207 336,011

Government grants have been received as encouragement
for technological innovation and improvements, the
construction of production plants and rewards for investment
encouragement. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attached to these grants. Related assets
associated with the above grants have not yet been

completed.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Amounts represent assets and liabilities related to the
Group’s 100% equity interests in Ningbo Sanhe Steel Pipe
Co., Ltd. ("ER=6HEAR LA
According to the agreement entered into between the Group

or “Ningbo Sanhe”).
and Ningbo Langteng Building materials Co., LTD. (“ 25 R &
EM AR AR or “Langteng”) in 2019, the Group has agreed
to transfer the 100% equity interest of Ningbo Sanhe for a
consideration of RMB24.3 million. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group’s equity interest in Ningbo Sanhe was the subject
of dispute and was not available for immediate sale in its
present condition. As at 31 December 2020, the dispute was
resolved but the equity transfers have not been completed.
Accordingly, the equity interests in Ningbo Sanhe were
reclassified to assets classified as held for sale and liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale as at
31 December 2020.

The transfers of the equity interests in Ningbo Sanhe were
completed on 15 January 2021.

32.
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31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

33.

34.

35.

ISSUED CAPITAL 3B.BRITRA
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBFIT
Authorised: JERE
10,000,000,000 (2020: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000/% ( —ZF — =4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 10,000,000,0000% ) & i%
M {E0.10/%8 T 2 Bk 878,335 878,335
Issued and fully paid: BEEITEERE:
1,011,142,000 (2020: 1,011,142,000) 1,011,142,0000% (= ZF —F 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,011,142,0008% ) & i%
H{H0.107% T 2 B AR 88,856 88,856
RESERVES 34. &

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial

statements.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

PR RE 2

AEBRAFERNEFENRECERED S
BARNBBEN-

3B. HE—EKHBEAT

15 January
2021
—_E-—F
—A+EH
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Net assets disposed of: BHREEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 12,628
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,966
Inventories BE 1,648
Trade receivables B S EWERR 1,087
Cash and bank balances Mo MIRITEH 257
Prepayments and other receivables TR BB I H b fE W IR 717
Trade payables 2 SRR (539)
Other payables H b FE I 5KI8 (1,913)
Lease liabilities HEaE (3,153)
Deferred tax liabilities EETIE B & (1,483)
12,215
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— R E A A A 11,728
23,943
Satisfied by: EENPIEE
Cash Be 23,943

TR FFEWRS
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35. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

35. HE—RBMKWB QA (&)
ERLE—RNBAR B RESSEWER

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: ADHTWT
RMB
AR%
Cash consideration ReRE 23,943
Consideration received in previous years BEFEDRRE (13,897)
Consideration received during the year prior to REE AR FAKIZRE
disposal date (1,200)
Consideration to be received subsequent RAFEFEEBWE 2 RE
to the current year (78)
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHERS RIRITHEH (257)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of EREEE—HBRARZHEE R
the disposal of a subsidiary REZEWFERA 8,511

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had entered into non-cash transaction agreement with a
third party for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounting to RMB116,280,000, the proceeds of which
was retained by the debtor as deposits to secure certain
of the Group’s other borrowings.
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. FERERERME (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) METBELEZEEEH
activities
Bank and
other
borrowings
(other than Fixed rate
Lease lease bonds Due to
liabilities liabilities) and notes a director
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-B-_-F% BITREM
TZR=+-BL%FE BE (HE EEEH
HESE BERM) RE EAESRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR AR¥TTR AR¥T R
At 1 January 2021 T —-5-A—-H 2,365 3,549,080 148,511 130,768
Changes from financing cash flows mﬂ BReMEE (1,897) (1,825,208) (56,250) 318,343
Interest expense FERY 109 = = =
Interest paid classified as operating SBELERERELENHE
cash flows (109) - - -
Foreign exchange movement HNEZE) (143) (2,898) (3,331) -
At 31 December 2021 w= —F+-A=+—H 325 1,720,974 88,930 449,111
Bank and
other
borrowings
(other than Fixed rate
Lease lease bonds Due to
liabilities liabilities) and notes a director
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-2-%% BT REA
TZA=+-BLEE BE(HE EEES
HEBE BERI) kEE ENEERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®ETT AR®ETT ARBTT
At 1 January 2020 —E-Z5-A-H 7,931 4,862,933 178,035 138,857
Changes from financing cash flows mﬂéiﬁéﬁ g% (2,470) (1,441,139) (28,912) (8,089)
Interest expense FERX 654 - - -
Interest paid classified as operating NEREEREREZENFE
cash flows (654) - - -
Transferred to liabilities directly associated ~ E&HZEHIEAFIEHED
with the assets classified as held for sale BEBRIEBNAR (3,153) - - -
Other non-cash movement HinFRe &8s - 116,280 - -
Foreign exchange movement INEE 57 11,006 (612) -
At 31 December 2020 S Y = b= 2,365 3,549,080 148,511 130,768

TR FFEWRS
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. MEBRERERME (&)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

c) HERESRHAR
AARERERZHEERSRLABUT:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2021 2020

8z HE
—E-— TE-THF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
LHEE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Within operating activities LB EE (109) (654)
Within investing activities HEEH - -
Within financing activities BEES (1,897) (2,470)
(2,006) (3,124)
37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 37. MBHER

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher
of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised
less the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls,
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse
the holders for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the debtor. The
amount initially recognised represents the fair value at initial
recognition of the financial guarantees.

(a) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

MBREREQTIREIEEBEBE R IR
SERHCHERZRTRATE LB ELTE
EHEEERREEBGLREERAEANE
EEEBENEFFRERAEEBET B EBAK
BHNEA SRR EZRTE - VREZRSHEIE
R R HREREFO A FE-

(@) RIMEMK MBERTERBEEZHEER
m

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities FLIRIBFEIE AR EE Y X

provided for certain purchasers of ATEFREMER

the Group’s properties

73,652 99,462
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued) 37. B ER (8
(@) (continued) (@ (&)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees
in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, in the event of default
on mortgage payments by these purchasers before the
expiry of the guarantees, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any auction
proceeds as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related
properties were pledged to the banks as collateral for
the mortgage loans, and in the event of default on
mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks
are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise
the pledged properties through open auction. The
Group is responsible for repaying the banks when the
proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot cover
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the date of
grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the issuance of real estate ownership certificates to the
purchasers, which will generally be available within one
to two years after the purchasers take possession of the
relevant properties.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant
and the directors of the Company consider that in the
event of default on payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principals together with
the accrued interest and penalties, and therefore, no
provision has been made in the financial statements for
the guarantees.

TR FFEWRS
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued) 37. WBER (5
(b) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees (o) RIBEBR BBEREFPABBEBIAETE
given to banks in connection with facilities granted to a ERBIZRERBITREMBEROAT

joint venture not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Guarantees given to banks in connection METTAZBE

with facilities granted to: MERITIR M ER

A joint venture —fEEEAa 514,062 512,477
As at 31 December 2021, the banking facilities RZEZ—F+A=+—80 FAEEM
guaranteed by the Group to a joint venture were utilised GERPAERZBITREEHAOAR
to the extent of approximately RMB514,062,000 (2020: #514,062,000 (ZZE = F: AR®
RMB464,520,000). 464,520,0007T ) ©
In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the EERA EROXTERYIGHERRIEH
guarantees at initial recognition and ECL allowance are FEEBEERERBTEKXR-

not significant.

38. COMMITMENTS 38. &IE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the (a) RMEER NEBEHB AT EARE:
end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
—E-— TE-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRTXE R
Construction of buildings FHEEF 253,264 266,484
Construction of plant and machinery TR M i 28 35,356 35,786
Capital contributions payable to B —EEERAFENZTE
joint venture 99,951 107,858
388,571 410,128
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not REE R - AR F W\ ERAE-

have any significant commitments.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Name and relationship of related parties
The directors are of the view that the following
companies are related parties:

0. BBARS
(a) A BRBKREBR

BEERBATRA BB

Name of party Relationship

BEE A8 &

Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine GZMT is a company of which Mr. Chen Chang is the ultimate equity
Tool Works Co., Ltd. (“GZMT") owner

BEMTEHIEARB AR QR ([FROTHK]) IR ARE S ERTKRERE A2 RA

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company is a joint venture of the Group

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company BA £ E 7 & & A A

The Group had no transactions with related parties
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Outstanding balances with a related party and a director:

(b) RBE=_Z=_—F+-_A=+—HILFE"
REERBEEB ARG (ZTTF:E) -

(c) BB REEZ RIS

2021 2020
—E-— TE-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Due from a related party e FE B 7

GZMT fﬁmﬂ%ﬁ = 84,522
Due to a director JETEE IR

Mr. Chen Chang B & %A 449,111 130,768

The outstanding balances with a related party and a
director are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment except for the outstanding balance
with a director as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
RMB50,000,000, which was repayable after one year.

TR FFEWRS

RZZEZZF+A=+—"HB HB—BES
/) & 214 4 8 A R #50,000,0007T 91 © 3% 4
BRER—FAIN BB IREEFNRE
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30. BB AR S (&)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the d) AEEXZEBEAENHH:
Group:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8% % & 2 NEYWEN 3,285 4,596
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAE FI TSI 3K 59 89
Total compensation paid to key SNEZEEBEABFTIEEE
management personnel 3,344 4,685
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMemE—SPHBERUBRE ZM
note 9 to the financial statements. 519 -
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. M I EMNSE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEMR SHENeRTANKREERNT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets EWMEE
2021 —E=-—F
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
% E
R E R
SREE
RMB’'000
AR®F T
Financial assets included in long term FFARHENFIE X
prepayments and deposits ReWamEE 2,986
Trade and bills receivables EFRERBER L EREE 503,106
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATERTFRIE - E A FE Y RIE
other receivables and other assets LEMEENSHEE 736,141
Pledged deposits [REZ Sk 249,719
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREeEEY 20,588
1,512,540
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. EMIAMNS E (®)
(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued) EWMEE (&)
2020 —RCRE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
R
AR 28
TREE
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Financial assets included in long term FFARHBITENEIE R
prepayments and deposits ZeWemEE 3,384
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W IR R % W R 5. 511,538
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATERTERIE - E A FE Y 5RIE
other receivables and other assets REMEENSREE 713,905
Pledged deposits e 22,712
Due from a related party JE W BR B 75 5RIA 84,522
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEEY 19,466
1,355,527
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

40. eI AN S

8 #®)

Financial liabilities cHAas
2021 —E-——f
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
1% 85 B A
STEH
SREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Trade and bills payables Z S EMNERRENZE 1,289,635
Lease liabilities HEAE 325
Financial liabilities included in other FT A E At B P RRIE K
payables and accruals B ERANSRARE 730,658
Due to a director B ESHE 449,111
Interest-bearing bank and other ERITRHEMES
borrowings (other than lease liabilities) (FHEB BRI 1,720,974
Fixed rate bonds and notes EEEHRERE 88,930
4,279,633
2020 —E-EF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
g X IR N
T2
cREE
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Trade and bills payables B S EMNERRENRE 614,511
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,365
Financial liabilities included in other FEE i 85 3RIE R
payables and accruals EEAERAMNcRBE 492,081
Due to a director FERZESHIA 130,768
Interest-bearing bank and other ATERITREMEES
borrowings (other than lease liabilities) (HEAaGERIN) 3,549,080
Fixed rate bonds and notes EEBEFLEE 148,511
4,937,316

236 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41, ERMTAZAFERAFESHR

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

BREAEEEATEAREHEENEHIANN K
SEHERTAMNKEERQFELT:

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—BZ-F —T-THF B —f —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARBTT AR®TR ARETTT
Financial liabilities cREaE
Interest-bearing bank and other  FESRITREMEE
borrowings (other than lease (HEAGERIN)
liabilities) 1,720,974 3,549,080 1,776,416 3,636,519
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREFREE 88,930 148,511 88,930 157,006
Due to a director FEREERE = 50,000 = 49,104
1,809,904 3,747,591 1,865,346 3,842,629

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial

EEECHHRERRFEY D EMEFR
BIRWERNEREE BZEMERRREN
ER GHARNRBAZEREE HtEERIEA
MEMEE FFAHRMENRBAREFERZS

liabilities included in other payables and accruals and an MAERER@ARARBZATE HEKEAEB
amount due from a related party approximate to their carrying BE FEARZETAREHANEIE-

amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

TR FFEWRS

EREENBBEZAFENEBRR S (REX
BAREERIMNENRSTRIAZARZ SR
AR TOTTERBRAR G A FE:
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41. ERITAZAFERAFEER (8

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other ARERTERAMEBEE TEEFREENAR
borrowings, fixed rate bonds and notes and an amount ENEERBZAFE  HUER EERB K
due to a director have been calculated by discounting the BRTNHIREU C TARKIBSHIEER - TRAE
expected future cash flows using rates currently available HEAFBEeRAE - R_TE-_—F+=-_A=+—
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining H AEEpENMEHEERE FERITRH
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the hEE TEEFLREBUARENESEHIE LS
Group’s own non-performance risk for finance lease payables, ETMETRBREH z ATEEYNHATEKR
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, fixed rate bonds RZEZ—F+A=+—BRZZEZZTF+=
and notes and an amount due to a director as at 31 December A=+—H ZEREHKAARZEMIAEZ
2021 were assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts FEHEHEAATFTETEERER

of these financial instruments carried at amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The fair value of warrants was estimated as at the date of RBREBFOAFEIRAR L ARFER B ER
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms fhEt - I B R R AR B AR R IR .

and conditions upon which the warrants were granted.

Fair value hierarchy AFEER

The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H AEELTETM
value as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). RATEAEZEREE(ZT_TF :®) -

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at RZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H AEELEEM
fair value as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). RATEAEZEMABE(ZZE_ZEF &) -
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41,
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

EMITACZAFERAFESER (&)

RFEER (F)
FRNE-REF_RZEABEEHESREER
EMABGBZATEFESER TEEAS =ML
BE=REL(ZT_TF M)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2020: Nil).
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: BEAFTERENAE:

Fair value measurement using

EATHEEETAFENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SEETS BEXT EXFRH
PR E% BEnAE BHEBAE
(F—#) (B=#) (B=&) st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
2021 —E-—F
Interest-bearing bank and ERITRHEMEE
other borrowings (other than (HEBBERIN)
lease liabilities) - - 1,776,416 1,776,416
Fixed rate bonds and notes TEEFMEE - - 88,930 88,930
2020 —ETF
Interest-bearing bank and ATERITRHEMEES
other borrowings (other than (HEAaG/RIN)
lease liabilities) - - 3,636,519 3,636,519
Fixed rate bonds and notes ELEHFRER - - 157,006 157,006
Due to a director B E S A - - 49,104 49,104

TR FFEWRS
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 I ERBREEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include bank
and other borrowings, fixed rate bonds and notes, cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group also has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces prudent
strategies on its risk management. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
and government loans with floating interest rates. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. Interest-bearing loans,
cash and short term deposits are stated at amortised
cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to
the statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.

If there was a general increase/decrease in the interest
rate of bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated operating results would
have decreased/increased by approximately RMB14.7
million (2020: RMB23.3 million), and there would have
been no impact on other components of the consolidated
equity, except for retained profits, of the Group.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. B AR EE B ERBUR (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (b) MR B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. AEFARRSEERBR - ZSRABKE L
These exposures arise from sales by operating units in EEMNBEMNNEEE I EE#ETT
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. BHE - AREHEEFL41% (ZZ T F:
Approximately 41% (2020: 12%) of the Group’s sales 12%) FZUETHENKEBUMEE
were mainly denominated in United States (“US”) dollars, AN B ETT ([ET])EtE .

which is other than the functional currencies of the
operating units making the sale.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies P
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at k&
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

ERRASEUININEFENEEEE
KadmREmENT

2021 2020
—E-—F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETT

Assets EE

Us dollar ETT 60,714 23,055
Liabilities =

Us dollar ETT 10,265 113,333
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at TR BN S R A & B R A& A E
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible FFIEEmMEERFIAEZBRTHNRETE
change in the US dollar exchange rate, with all other SR EBMGURE -

variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

TR FFEWRS
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 B EREEEERBE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Effect on profit before tax

(b) SMEEREER (4)
H BB AT R T

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
Increase in the US dollar rate of 3% 2 T [E 18 1N13% 1,513 (2,708)
Decrease in the US dollar rate of 3% I 78 = F 3% (1,513) 2,708
(c) Credit risk (c) EERR

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions
that are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit
Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 BIEEBREE R ZERBR (#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERMR (#)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEEEBREXER (#)
(Continued)
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for FrEdmehemEEN REREBE RS
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the MBERENERENEERRE -

financial guarantee contracts.
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZB-—f+=ZA=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total

1218 A 8 2HEH

FEBAR FEER
F—ER R (7S Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®T T ARET T

Financial assets included in long st AKHEITENM ZUIE K

term prepayments and deposits ResemEE 2,986 - 2,986
Trade receivables* B 5 e W AR - 508,402 508,402
Bills receivable S - 8,220 8,220
Financial assets included FEATERFIE - A Ath

in prepayments, other receivables JEUGRIE & H & &

and other assets ZEMEE

— Normal** —EE* 736,141 = 736,141
Pledged deposits EEFZe

— Not yet past due — 4 7 461 BP 249,719 = 249,719
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEY

— Not yet past due — &) 7 %61 Bf 20,588 = 20,588
Guarantees given to banks in RET—HBEERATZ

connection with facilities granted @& RRITIREH 2 R
to a joint venture

— Facilities drawn by ——E&& AT

a joint venture ERIRzAE

— Not yet past due — fm) 7K 480 HY 514,062 - 514,062
Guarantees in respect of mortgage FETAEEYERE E

facilities provided for certain R ZRBEERM
purchasers of the Group’s R
properties
— Facilities drawn by certain —ETAEEYEESEE

purchasers of the Group’s ERMzAE

properties 73,652 - 73,652

1,597,148 516,622 2,113,770
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 BIEEBREE R ZERBR (#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERRE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BRERBREXRELR (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2020 RZTZTF+-_A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total

1216 A 78 &1 T HITEHA

EEEE BEEEE
8B KAz st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Financial assets included in long st AKEIFENFZHIE K

term prepayments and deposits ResemERE 3,384 - 3,384
Trade receivables* Z 5 FE W BR 3R - 506,570 506,570
Bills receivable B E & - 11,301 11,301
Due from a related party JE 5 B B 75 3IE 84,522 - 84,522
Financial assets included FFATERFIE - H A

in prepayments, other receivables JEUGRIE I E 1 & &

and other assets ZEREE

— Normal** —IEH* 713,905 - 713,905
Pledged deposits EERZe

— Not yet past due — A R 18 Bf 22,712 - 22,712
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEEY

— Not yet past due — & 7 461 B 19,466 - 19,466
Guarantees given to banks in AET—HREERTZ

connection with facilities granted Bt & A R1TIR 4 2 E1R

to a joint venture

— Facilities not yet drawn by ——ME&& AT

a joint venture MR 2 B E 195,366 - 195,366

— Facilities drawn by ——ME&& AT

a joint venture ERIRzAE
— Not yet past due — fm) 7R 480 HA 317,111 - 317,111
Guarantees in respect of mortgage FETAEEYERE &

facilities provided for certain Rz RBEERM

purchasers of the Group’s ER

properties

— Facilities drawn by certain —ETAEEYEESEE

purchasers of the Group’s EREMZEE
properties 99,462 - 99,462
1,455,928 517,871 1,973,799
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(Continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
provision matrix is disclosed in note 22.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade
receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and
other borrowings with debt maturities spreading over
a range of periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s
outstanding borrowing obligation is not exposed to
excessive repayment risk in any one year. Due to the
capital intensive nature of the Group’s businesses, the
Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and credit
lines to meet its liquidity requirements.

TR FFEWRS

42 AR EEEERBE (&)

(c) FERM (&)
REBEBRRFERER (&)

*%

FhAN 5 B R FURVE 2 LR R0 B 5 B AR 5K
= - LA AR R B 6 B R B FE22

-

FRATRMNFE HiREFAREBEER
MEREENEREER ERAHALEE
HETERAENERRR S & RERAE
HIR KRB MABER THEREF]

EAAEBERE S E WM E S
EERBME —FTFEHERTBHR
R FE22 IR R -

HRAEBEEEARAEERINS
=HETRS BHLEFER-EARA
RNETERER /XSHT R
EHAMTEFMEE ARAEEESE
WEFRNEPBEREZ MR TRITE
Rt R @ A2 EERNERRR

oo

(d) "RBESRR

AEEMEER FREHHHEEETH
e EIRITREMEE BRISERSRH
E R A BEE N AR R 0
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. B AR EE B ERBUR (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REBES R (#)
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its AEBNRDESTERBHEBERT
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations HIF B MA AR B ER B & A REE
to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its IRESBENEBBAENERNRZNE
ability to obtain external financing to meet its committed N ERAEERARBRERERENMEMFGEES
future capital expenditure. With regard to its future 2 RIBZ—FF+_A=+—HB Fx&H
capital commitments and other financing requirements, BB ZRBITIRMEEARY?2,355,000,000
the Group has already obtained banking facilities THREEE EFEHAOARE
with several banks of up to an amount of RMB2,355 1,451,000,0007T °

million as at 31 December 2021, of which an amount of
approximately RMB1,451 million has been utilised.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RMEBR ASBERDITAORITRLR
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the WemBENIABRIAT:

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2021
ZE--F+ZA=+-—H

Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1year Total
BER LR—F —FHE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRE AR¥TR AR®BTRT AR®Tx

Trade and bills payables B IRNER R
JE I R IR = 1,289,635 = 1,289,635
Other payables H fth f& 5/ I8 = 730,658 = 730,658
Due to a director & & = FRIA 449,111 - - 449,111
Lease liabilities HEBE - 334 - 334
Interest-bearing bank and FFERRITRHEMEE
other borrowings (excluding (TEEREaRE)
lease liabilities) - 953,152 961,768 1,914,920
Fixed rate bonds and notes T EEH KEE = 95,791 = 95,791
449,111 3,069,570 961,768 4,480,449
Financial guarantees issued: =% H 2 B & &R
Maximum amount ERERERE
guaranteed 587,714 - - 587,714
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Trade and bills payables Z S ENERR
B RE
Other payables H & 5R8
Due to a director JEREEFIA
Lease liabilities HEBE
Interest-bearing bank and ATERITRHEMEE

other borrowings (excluding (TEREREARE)
lease liabilities)
Fixed rate bonds and notes TFEEHNZE

42 AR EEEERBE (&)

(d) REBE SRR (#)

31 December 2020
—E-TE+-_A=+—H

Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
RER PR —F —FE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETRE ARBETRTE AR®ETET ARETE

- 614,511 - 614,511
- 492,081 - 492,081
80,768 - 50,000 130,768
- 2,413 402 2,815

- 2,330,147 1,723,509 4,053,656
- 51,507 124,899 176,406

80,768 3,490,659 1,898,810 5,470,237

Financial guarantees issued: B3 2 @& &R :

Maximum amount EREREE
guaranteed 611,939 - - 611,939
(e) Capital management (e) EXEHE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

TR FFEWRS
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued)

42 AR EEEERBE (&)

() BEAXEE (&)
AEBFMBEERBLRERER  ZHL X
RBEHBAREE -BEHBEES BRTT
REMEERESBEFERE RBESHR

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debts divided by total assets. Total debts include
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and fixed

rate bonds and notes. The gearing ratios as at the end of WEEBGBLEERNT:
the reporting periods are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR®EFT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 8 $R1T R H b (& &

(note 26) (MF3E26) 1,721,299 3,551,445
Fixed rate bonds and notes (note 30) EEEHFRER (HFE30) 88,930 148,511
Total debts HE® 1,810,229 3,699,956
Total assets MEE 7,923,122 8,541,528
Gearing ratio BEEBELE 22.8% 43.3%

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. MEHEEE

On 26 April 2022, Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. RZZBEZZFWHAZ+AA AREzHEEZE
WMEARFERHKIME AR AR ([FHFS KT M
&) EE % NFA % AAbdel Hadi Abdullah Al
Qahtani & Sons, Co. ([AHQ J)&T & %
Bt - AHQEKMHRAEEE MESKIMNE
BlEMFHRE NS A SR ERI50% I - AHQ fE
2z RE AR 41,500,0005T (k& 7
#) AR ¥70,550,0007T) © A TEAK & - AN & B 51
BEBAEATAIMNTARER - BHFAE F2H
ARG HEA-_E-_—_FHNA-+/ B Ao

(the “PCKSP”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the disposal agreement with the joint
venture partner, Abdel Hadi Abdullah Al Qahtani & Sons,
Co. (the "AHQ"), pursuant to which AHQ has conditionally
agreed to purchase, and PCKSP has conditionally agreed
to sell, the 50% equity interest in the JV Company. The
consideration payable by AHQ is SR41.5 million (or equivalent
to approximately RMB70.55 million). Upon Completion, the
Group will cease to hold any interests in the JV Company. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
26 April 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI RE

31 December 2021 —Z-—4%+-A=+—H

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the AARRMERARZMBRARER DT

44, AP B Z BB R T

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
—EBE=—F —E_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 49,591 49,591
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 49,591 49,591
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Due from subsidiaries JE LS B BB A B3R IR 301,030 511,568
Cash and bank balances [ e MIRTTHE & 1,196 240
Total current assets RBEERE 302,226 511,808
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings TERITRHEMEE 1,974 103,266
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBRETER 35,081 25,720
Due to subsidiaries AL ENGIE S 63,704 65,578
Fixed rate bonds and notes TFEEEFLEE 88,930 33,903
Total current liabilities MEBAEERE 189,689 228,467
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 112,537 283,341
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEAERRSDARG 162,128 332,932
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Fixed rate bonds and notes FEEEFREE = 114,608
Total non-current liabilities B EERTE = 114,608
Net assets BEEFE 162,128 218,324
EQUITY R
Issued capital B BT A 88,856 88,856
Reserves (note) i (fFaE) 73,272 129,468
Total equity T 4R 7R 162,128 218,324
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR AL

31 December 2021 —Z——4%+-A=+—8

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. KRB 2 M BERR K (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: M 5
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARBZEEREWNT :
Exchange
Share Contributed Accumulated fluctuation
premium surplus losses reserve Total
R E BEAEH 2itER EXRDREE Lo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZTF—A—8 824,219 1,712,731 (2,325,921) (28,157) 182,872
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE2EFEAE - - (42,313) (11,091) (53,404)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZF

+-fA=+-8 824,219 1,712,731 (2,368,234) (39,248) 129,468
Total comprehensive loss for the year AFE2HEEBAH - - (52,222) (3,974) (56,196)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZT-—F

+=F=+-8 824,219 1,712,731 (2,420,456) (43,222) 73,272

45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45, #t B IR R

The financial statements were approved and authorised for PBRRER_Z_FNA-THhHEESSE
issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2022. BEE R B B o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFUBERE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis

set out in the note below is as follows:

MBENBE

AEBRTXMEMENEEREBEED AN RFE

MEAMEEREERAGR

E:3 U

Results E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B Z—EB-Tf —Z-NF ZTB-NF ZZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETRT ARBTT AR®TT
Revenue WA 1,813,370 1,141,807 1,193,961 1,681,566 873,293
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,617,854) (935,120) (981,769)  (1,358,041) (815,182)
Gross Profit EH 195,516 206,687 212,192 323,525 58,111
Other income and gains Hh A Rz 1,580,778 1,911,272 441,747 81,579 140,553
Selling and distribution expenses 56 & 7 5% A (52,906) (34,808) (55,821) (63,744) (107,330)
Administrative expenses THER (263,635) (287,638) (336,042) (437,020) (475,632)
Other expenses Hin B A (376,014) (300,702) (69,388) (93,432) (12,873)
Exchange (loss)/gain, net X (BiE) s 38 (33,476) (120,098) 23,528 16,241 (44,121)
Finance costs & A (144,253) (475,384) (450,058) (374,468) (426,286)
Impairment of property, M- BB REE2RE
plant and equipment (596,765) - - - (18,006)
Fair value (loss)/gain on KEMEZATE
investment properties (BE) & (17,000) (20,000) 78,008 21,779 -
Fair value gain/(loss) on TEemIAZATE
a derivative financial instrument Uz, (&18) - - 19,260 (22,984) -
Share of loss of a joint venture  fE{5 — & & A Al E1E (15,020) (2,668) (18,655) (2,724) (2,779)
Profit/(loss) before tax B%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw (B#5) 277,225 876,661 (155,229) (551,248) (888,363)
Income tax (expense)/credit BE () /K% (371,579) (253,750) 13,140 52,313 14,608
Profit/(loss) for the year FNsF,/ (EE) (94,354) 622,911 (142,089) (498,935) (873,755)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMEZARAS
(loss) for the year, net of tax (B#7) (MeriE) 63,175 178,815 (21,323) (116,857) 153,862
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) FRAZEE A,/ (EE)
for the year B (31,179) 801,726 (163,412) (615,792) (719,893)
Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) &k &F,/ (E1E)
(AE®) RMBAR® RMBARY RMBARY RMBAR®Y RMBARE
— basic and diluted —EAREE (0.09) 7© 0.627C (0.14) 7T (0.49) T (0.86) 7T

TR FFEWRS

WIRARARMEZRERAT 251



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FETBRE
Assets and Liabilities EEHEE
31 December
+=BA=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=B ~—ZT-FTH “T-NF —T-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETIT AR®TT AREBETT AR®BTR
Non-current assets IEREEE 2,966,975 4,034,502 4,435,885 5,437,956 5,986,437
Current assets MENVE E 4,956,147 4,507,026 4,053,921 4,570,337 4,166,659
Current liabilities mBBaE (4,809,986)  (5,457,229) (3,913,293) (4,610,046) (6,333,616)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,287,620)  (2,227,604) (4,521,544) (5,167,974) (2,973,415)
Total Equity R 825,516 856,695 54,969 230,273 846,065
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